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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Best Pacific International Holdings Limited
(the “Company” or “Best Pacific”, together with its
subsidiaries, collectively, the “Group” or “we”), | am
pleased to present the annual results for the year ended
31 December 2022.

Moving into 2022, the economic growth in both Mainland
China and Hong Kong was significantly impacted by the
anti-pandemic measures imposed during the outbreaks of
the 2019 novel coronavirus disease (“COVID”) at different
time throughout the year. The international geopolitical
tensions and the rising interest rates had amplified the
complications and challenges for all businesses and
economies. According to the International Monetary
Fund (“IMF”), global gross domestic product (“GDP”) for
2022 was estimated to be 3.4%, down 280 basis points
from 6.2% in 2021. Meanwhile, the inflationary pressure
persisted and the global inflation was reported to be
8.8% in 2022 by the IMF. Most central banks around the
globe had adopted contractionary monetary policies to
combat rising inflation and the majority of the international
economies had experienced a notable surge in interest
rates. The federal funds target rate of the United States of
America (“U.S.”) had been pulled up 9 times consecutively
since March 2022 and hit a fifteen-year high at a range of
4.75%-5.00%.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
TRHE

The above global economic headwinds and the tightened
financial conditions had led to a decline in consumer
confidence and worsened business sentiment. The
textile and garment sector had not been immune to
these challenges. In response to the prevailing market
uncertainties and noticeable inventory pressure, most
international brand customers had opted to reduce their
existing inventory levels and they generally turned to be
more conservative with respect to their order placements
in the second half of 2022. While recent financials showed
that certain brand customers were still financially strong,
most retailers were expected to continue their inventory
optimization exercises throughout the first half of 2023.

On the other hand, due to the Russia-Ukraine war and the
adverse economic impacts of COVID, we had continued
to observe increased costs pressure throughout most
of 2022. The overall upsurge in raw material prices had
certainly added weight to our production costs, which had
in turn adversely impacted our operating margins. Despite
our efforts to manage the upsurge in raw materials costs
through a combination of measures, the current economic
conditions are not turning in our favour.

The resilience of our business was being tested once
again, but we had confidence in our competitive edge and
sound financial conditions, which had taken us through the
era of black swans over the past few years and had made
Best Pacific even stronger. We believe that our talented
people, world-class innovation capabilities, international
footprint, strong partnerships with customers will continue
to win the applause from our esteemed customers. The
Group is also dedicated to maintaining healthy cash flows
and has implemented various measures, including cost
controls and production efficiencies optimization, so as to
weather through the current economic storm.
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Despite ongoing market uncertainties since the second half
of 2022, Best Pacific remains strongly committed to the
implementation of its long-term strategies. While market
conditions in 2023 are expected to be challenging amid
the current macroeconomic environment, Best Pacific will
continue to work closely with our customers and business
partners. By remaining steadily focused and putting our
strategies into actions, Best Pacific believes that we
can deliver promising returns for our shareholders and
stakeholders in the long run. Finally, | will also like to take
this opportunity to express my gratitude to our customers,
suppliers, business partners, and shareholders for their
unwavering support throughout the history of Best Pacific
and | would also like to extend our heartfelt appreciation
to the Board of Directors and all our dedicated employees
around the world for their relentless commitment, loyalty,
professionalism, and contributions to the Group.

Lu Yuguang
Chairman
Hong Kong, 27 March 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE N MO

MARKET AND BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2022, the global economy had been impacted by
unprecedented challenges including geopolitical tensions,
the resurgence of COVID in certain parts of China and
the associated control measures as well as the worsening
global economic conditions. According to the IMF, a
twenty first century record high global inflation was
reported to be 8.8% in 2022 and the estimated GDP
of 2022 of advanced economies was 2.7%, down from
5.4% in 2021. The GDP of the U.S. decreased from 5.9%
in 2021 to 2.0% in 2022 while the GDP of the Euro area
decreased from 5.3% in 2021 to 3.5% to 2022.

Alongside growing concerns of impending global
recession, major central banks in both developed and
emerging markets had been tightening their monetary
policies by introducing series of interest rate hikes
throughout 2022. The U.S. federal funds target rate
had been increased from approximately 0.125% at the
beginning of 2022 to approximately 4.375% in December
2022. The European Central Bank interest rate for
marginal lending facilities had also been increased from
0.25% at the beginning of 2022 to 2.75% in December
2022.

While other countries began to reopen their borders and
economies during the year, COVID related restrictions
continued to be imposed in China and consumer
confidence was hindered in 2022. Sporadic occurrences
of COVID infection had led to more frequent and wider-
ranged lockdowns in various regions in China in most time
of 2022. In the fourth quarter of 2022, wider outbreaks of
COVID occurring in China had led to tightened COVID-
related health measures and lockdowns in major cities until
the issuance of a series of new COVID response guidelines
by the government in December 2022. Production and
economic performance of China was inevitably hammered
and the GDP of China in 2022 was down to 3.0%
according to the National Bureau of Statistics of China, as
compared to 8.4% in 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the pandemic time, the global logistic problems
had made most overseas retailers to increase their
inventory levels aggressively. It had recently been reported
that inventory levels of most overseas major retailers were
still at high levels as sluggish retail sales had delayed the
overall destocking process. In general, most brand owners
had been conservative to their order placement in 2022,
especially towards the second half of the year. According
to the customs statistics of China, the export value of
textile products in the second half of 2022 was only 71.6
billion U.S. Dollars (“US$”), representing a notable drop
of US$5 billion in value or a 6.5% in percentage points,
as compared to the corresponding period in 2021. In
particular, export of textile and apparel products to the
U.S. and Europe had experienced a notable decrease by
approximately 14% in second half of 2022, as compared
to corresponding period in 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE N MO

Meanwhile, we faced rising costs pressures in 2022, which
undermined our profitability to a certain extent. Since
the outbreak of the Russia-Ukraine war, Brent Crude
oil price had been surging and peaked at over US$120
per barrel in mid-2022. Although it gradually decreased
to approximately US$86 per barrel by the end of 2022,
the prices of oil and many oil by-products were at a high
level in most time of 2022. Coupled with the loosening
monetary policies during the pandemic time in the past
few years, most major global economies had experienced
high inflationary pressure, which added pressure on our
overall raw materials procurement prices and utility costs
for most time in 2022.

Our business was inevitably affected to a certain extent
by the macroeconomic environment in 2022. Our overall
sales revenue recorded a year-on-year decrease of 6.3%
to approximately HK$4,492.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2022, as compared to HK$4,792.7 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021. As a result of
the overall higher raw materials prices, the drop in the
overall sales and the associated diseconomies of scale,
our overall Group’s gross profit margin was squeezed to
approximately 18.9% in for the year ended 31 December
2022, representing a decrease of 4.3 percentage points,
as compared to an overall Group’s gross profit margin of
23.2% in 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Despite these challenges, we remained committed to
providing high-quality products and services to our
customers, while finding ways to maintain our financial
stability in this challenging economic environment. We
strived our best to digest these costs pressure through a
combination of measures, which included but not limited
to further optimization of our production efficiencies,
more stringent wastage control and the continuous
exploration with our customers and partnering brands
on the possibilities of product price adjustments. On the
other hand, we also put focus on maintaining a healthy
gearing level for risk management purpose and to combat
the soaring interest costs. We continuously monitored
our operating cash flows and strived to lower our overall
debt level whenever possible in 2022. As of 31 December
2022, the net gearing ratio was standing at a healthy level
of 30.0% (2021: 28.9%). At the same time, we had net
cash generated from operating activities of approximately
HK$773.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2022, an increase of approximately HK$250.9 million, as
compared to approximately HK$522.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

Our international operations

Our international manufacturing footprint is one of our
core competitive advantages, Best Pacific is able to
provide sustainable supply-chain solutions to cater for the
best interests of our customers — which encompass the
reduction in production lead time, and the catering for
trade and tariff considerations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE N MO

VIETNAM

According to the statistics released by the General
Department of Customs of the Socialist Republic of
Vietnam (“Vietnam”), the export of textile and garment
products reached approximately US$37.57 billion in 2022,
up by approximately 14.7%, as compared to 2021. On
the other hand, Vietham achieved a GDP growth of 8.02%
in 2022, according to General Statistics Office of Vietnam,
outperforming a majority of the international economies.

The Group’s production base in Vietham had attained
significant regional and scale advantages subsequent to
years of strategic deployment, with the relevant operational
efficiencies optimised as originally planned. As a result
of the tightened geopolitics, our customers continued to
show increased interests in our production capacities in
Vietnam and we would expand our production capacities
in the existing manufacturing site located in Hai Duong
Province of Vietnam, in an orderly manner.

SRI LANKA

The Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka (“Sri
Lanka”) had faced a chaotic public debt default and
political instability in early 2022 but fortunately its
situation had soon been stabilized. In late March 2023,
the Executive Board of the IMF approved a 48-month
extended arrangement under the Extended Fund Facility
of approximately US$3 billion to support Sri lanka’s
economic policies and reforms. With the support from
our local joint venture partners, who were the top global
garment manufacturers, we were glad to have maintained
normal operations in the facilities in Sri Lanka throughout
the year. In order to attain the economies of scale, we
would continue our investment in the development of
phase two of our production facility located in Pannala, Sri
Lanka, as planned.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s revenue is primarily derived from the sales of
its major products, including elastic fabric, elastic webbing
and lace.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, revenue
amounted to approximately HK$4,492.8 million,
representing a decrease of approximately HK$299.9
million, or approximately 6.3%, from approximately
HK$4,792.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2021.
A comparison of the Group’s revenue for the year ended
31 December 2022 and the year ended 31 December
2021 by product categories is as follows:
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apparel
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Lace 58 76,267 1.7 89,784 1.9 (13,517) (15.1)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE N MO

Despite recognition from our customers for our innovation,
high product quality and our multi-region production
advantage, our sales revenue was inevitably affected
by the weakening global economies and the more
conservative approach in order placement as taken by
most of our brand customers, to control their inventory
levels towards the second half of 2022. Revenue from
the sales of elastic fabric amounted to approximately
HK$3,439.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2022, representing a decrease of approximately HK$183.7
million, or approximately 5.1%, as compared to the
year ended 31 December 2021. Apart from the general
undermined market sentiment, our elastic fabric business
was further dragged by a few selected customers as
they were still striving to turn around their businesses.
Sales revenue of elastic fabric to our sportswear and
apparel customers decreased by approximately 12.0%
in 2022 due to a relatively challenging macroeconomic
environment. However, an approximately 11.2% growth
in domestic sales revenue of our sportswear and apparel
fabric products was maintained in 2022, although growth
in the second half of the year slowed down to a certain
extent due to the weakened consumer confidence in light
of the more vigilant COVID-related restrictions in China
during that period. On the other hand, a steady growth
of revenue of elastic fabric to our lingerie customers
by approximately 9.2% was recorded in 2022 due to
the continuous penetration among our existing lingerie
customers.

With the overall lukewarm market condition for the
industry in the latter half of the year, revenue from the
sales of elastic webbing amounted to approximately
HK$977.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2022,
representing a decrease of approximately HK$102.6
million, or approximately 9.5%, as compared to 2021.

Cost of sales

The Group’s cost of sales mainly comprises costs of raw
materials, manufacturing overheads, and direct labour
costs.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE N wm MO

For the year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=t+—HLEE

2022 2021 Change
. —EF-F &
Cost of Cost of
sales % of cost sales % of cost
(HK$’000) of sales (HK$'000) of sales  (HK$'000) %
SHEMAE MEERE  HEMK HIEEKAR
(F&x) Batk  (F5T) Bat  (F%ExT) AT
Raw materials R 1,861,741 51.1 1,841,445 50.0 20,296 1.1
Manufacturing
overheads HEERY 1,369,720 37.6 1,403,762 38.1 (34,042) (2.4)
Direct labour HEEAL 395,311 10.9 414,603 1.3 (19,292) @.7)
Others Hitb 16,105 0.4 21,019 0.6 (4,914) (23.4)
Total st 3,642,877 100.0 3,680,829 100.0 (37,952) (1.0)
The Group’s cost of sales for the year ended 31 AEEHE_T-_—_F+-_A=+—HL

December 2022 amounted to approximately HK$3,642.9
million, representing a decrease of approximately HK$37.9
million or approximately 1.0%, as compared to the year
ended 31 December 2021. The overall decrease in cost
of sales in 2022 was primarily due to decrease in overall
sales revenue. Despite the decrease in overall sales of the
Group by approximately 6.3%, the cost of raw materials
did not follow a similar trend. In fact, the cost of raw
materials increased by 1.1% to HK$1,861.7 million for the
year ending 31 December 2022, with its contribution to
the overall cost of sales rising to approximately 51.1%.
Our raw materials were mainly synthetic materials or oil
by-products and the relevant unit prices were by large
correlated to the oil prices, which had generally been at a
high level throughout most of 2022. This upward trend in
raw material costs added pressure to the overall Group’s
profitability.

During the year, we continued to strive to streamline our
production processes and enhance our efficiencies so as
to curb the increasing labour and utility costs across all
manufacturing locations.

FEMEERKAAHSZ,642.9B8ET @ &
HE-_Z-_—F+_A=+—HILEFERD
#)37. 9B BEBILHLIT1.0% ° HEKAR =
7__¢Emm¢$%%m# LREIHE A
BN - -BEAEENEBHESE TR
m63%v1aﬁﬂﬁﬁi$fbamxmmt =
Bt BE-_ZE-_—_"F#+-_A=+—HL
FE - EMBRAEN11%ZE1,861.788
B BEHEEEERANLA EAZED
51.1% « AP EMBEERIEM R A
R EIES HWELAEEﬁﬁEEK i
HER - —FEREREAM o EMERK
KR ERBEMARNEBEEERFIES -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE N MO

Gross profit, gross profit margin and net profit margin EXN - BRNREFNER

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—-HLFE

2022 2021

—E2-— —E-—F
Gross profit Gross profit
Gross profit margin  Gross profit margin
ER ERR EM ERE
(HK$’000) (%) (HK$'000) (%)
(F#&7T) (Bok) (FEmT) (ADL)
Elastic fabric S E R 595,629 17.3 727,537 20.1
Elastic webbing o8 1 TS 227,712 23.3 348,089 32.2
Lace £ 26,572 34.8 36,206 40.3
Total st 849,913 18.9 1,111,832 238.2
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The overall gross profit of the Group decreased from
approximately HK$1,111.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2021 to approximately HK$849.9 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the overall
gross profit margin of the Group dropped year-on-year by
approximately 4.3 percentage points. Such decrease in
gross profit and gross profit margin was mainly due to (i)
decrease in sales revenue in the second half of 2022 and
the associated diseconomies of scale; and (i) the generally
higher unit raw materials prices throughout most of the
year.

Net profit of the Group decreased from approximately
HK$401.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2021
to approximately HK$283.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2022. The Group recorded a net profit margin
of approximately 6.3% for the year ended 31 December
2022, which represented a decrease of approximately 2.1
percentage points as compared to approximately 8.4%
for the year ended 31 December 2021. The decrease in
net profit margin was mainly due to the decrease in gross
profit for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the
sharp increase in finance costs as a result of the steep
ascending interest rates in the second half of the year.
Such impact was partly alleviated by (i) the increase in
net foreign exchange gain in other gains and losses as a
result of the currency depreciation of Renminbi (“RMB”),
Vietnam Dong (‘VND”) and Sri Lankan Rupee (“LKR”); (ii)
better control in selling and distribution and administrative
expenses; and (iii) the reversal of remeasurement of credit
loss allowance for trade receivables.

BEE N wm MO
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE N MO

Other income

The Group’s other income mainly consisted of bank
interest income, government grants, net proceeds from
sales of scrap materials and others. The following table
sets forth the breakdown of the Group’s other income for
the years indicated:

H A

AEBENEMRATEBRERITMEEA -
BTHE) - SHERER TSR F R M EAM
TRETIA S B R PR FE A HE A WA
A

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-A=1T—BLFE

2022 2021

—EC-CF —E-—%F

(HK$’000) (HK$'000)

(F#&7x) (F&T)

Bank interest income RITFBUA 16,038 21,850

Government grants B E® 15,308 12,250

Net proceeds from sales of scrap materials #5 & BE# P15 B F 58 8,540 4,404

Compensation income from customers B8 &P HEEIWA 1,226 1,084
Gain from bargain purchase from Wi —IEE B R BB R

acquisition of a business - 3,900

Others HAth 8,313 7,006

Total b 49,425 50,694

The other income for the year ended 31 December 2022
of the Group amounted to approximately HK$49.4 million,
which was comparable to approximately HK$50.7 million
recorded for the year ended 31 December 2021. The
decrease in bank interest income was mainly due to the
generally lower RMB deposit rates during the year as
compared to 2021 and such decrease was partially offset
by the increase in government grants and net proceeds
from sales of scrap materials.

HE_T-_—_F+-_A=1+—HIEFE K
EEMEMBANBL0.4BEET  BESE
—E-—F+-A=+—HILFEMEMYK
A#E50.7 B BB THEE  RITF BIRAR
BOETERARFAARBERFERE-F
——FRALEERIE - B2 BIE AR
JT f B & SH & BE R TS B FRE S D18 o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other gains and losses

Other gains and losses in the year ended 31 December
2022 mainly consisted of a net foreign exchange gain of
approximately HK$57.9 million, as a result of the currency
depreciation of RMB, VND and LKR during the year.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses primarily consisted of
employee benefit expenses, transportation, marketing and
promotional expenses and other selling and distribution
expenses. For the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2022, the Group’s selling and distribution expenses
represented approximately 4.2% and approximately 4.1%
of its total revenue, respectively. With the decrease in the
Group’s overall revenue, we had made concerted efforts
to control various costs in response to the prevailing
market conditions. The decrease in the ratio of selling and
distribution expenses against total revenue was mainly due
to the better management of respective costs during the
year.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses primarily consist of employee
benefit expenses, depreciation, motor vehicle expenses,
bank charges and other administrative expenses. For the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2022, the Group’s
administrative expenses represented approximately 7.0%
and approximately 6.4% of its total revenue, respectively.
The decrease in the ratio of administrative expenses
against total revenue was mainly due to the better
management of the respective costs during the year.

Research and development costs

The Group is dedicated to catering to the changing market
preferences by introducing innovative lingerie, sportswear
and apparel materials. For the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2022, our research and development costs
represented approximately 2.1% and approximately 2.3%
of our total revenue, respectively.

BEE N wm MO
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE N MO

Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs mainly represent interest
expenses for bank and other borrowings and lease
liabilities. The finance costs increased by approximately
22.9% from approximately HK$61.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021 to approximately HK$75.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2022. The
increase in finance costs during the year ended 31
December 2022 was primarily due to increase in overall
market lending interest rate during the year ended 31
December 2022.

Income tax expense

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime in Hong
Kong, the first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying
group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above
HK$2 million wil be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group
entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.
Accordingly, the Hong Kong Profits Tax for the qualifying
group entity had been calculated at 8.25% on the first
HK$2 million of the estimated assessable profits and at
16.5% on the estimated assessable profits above HK$2
million.

Under the law of the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate
of the PRC companies is 25% for both years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021, unless there is any applicable
preferential tax treatment.

The Company’s subsidiaries, Dongguan Best Pacific
Textile Company Limited (“Dongguan BPT”) and
Dongguan New Horizon Elastic Fabric Company Limited
(“Dongguan NHE”), had obtained the qualification as high
and new technology enterprises since 2010 and 2016,
respectively, which had been renewed for an additional
three years in the year ended 31 December 2022. Hence,
Dongguan BPT and Dongguan NHE had been subject to
the preferential tax treatment and the applicable tax rate
for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 was
15%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Withholding tax on dividends was calculated at 5% of the
dividends received and estimated dividends to be received
from the subsidiaries in the PRC during the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2021.

Pursuant to the relevant Vietnam Enterprises Income
Tax rules and regulations, the applicable tax rate for the
subsidiary operating in Vietnam is 20%. The subsidiary of
the Group in Vietnam is eligible for a tax holiday for two
financial years since the first financial year of taxable profits
and a tax concession at a tax rate of 10% for the following
four financial years. With the new incentive in place during
the year ended 31 December 2018 and by fulfilling certain
stated requirements as set by the Ministry of Industry and
Trade of Vietnam, the subsidiary of the Group in Vietnam
has been eligible for a tax holiday for four financial years
since 2018, a tax concession at a tax rate of 5% for the
following nine financial years and a tax concession at a tax
rate of 10% for the next following two financial years.

Withholding tax on shareholder’s loans interest was
calculated at 5% of the interest paid and estimated
interest to be paid by the subsidiary in Vietnam during the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

Pursuant to the Inland Revenue (Amendment) Act, No.
10 of 2021 in Sri Lanka, the applicable tax rate for the
subsidiaries of the Group operating in Sri Lanka is 24%
for both years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. By
fulfiling certain export requirements as set by the Board
of Investment of Sri Lanka, the subsidiaries of the Group
in Sri Lanka had enjoyed a preferential tax rate of 14%
for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. In
terms of the changes to the Inland Revenue Act No. 24 of
2017, as passed in parliament on 9 December 2022, the
subsidiaries of the Group in Sri Lanka are liable for income
tax rate of 30% from 1 July 2022 onwards. In addition,
one of these subsidiaries is currently eligible for a tax
holiday till the year ending 31 December 2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE N MO

Taxation arising in any other jurisdiction is calculated at the
rate prevailing in the relevant jurisdiction.

The effective tax rate of the Group remained steady,
which was approximately 10.5% for the year ended 31
December 2022 (for the year ended 31 December 2021:
approximately 12.1%).

Liquidity, financial resources and bank borrowings

As at 31 December 2022, net working capital
(calculated as current assets less current liabilities) was
approximately HK$178.1 million, representing a decrease
of approximately HK$637.1 million as compared to
approximately HK$815.2 million as at 31 December
2021. The current ratio (calculated as current assets/
current liabilities) is 1.1 times as at 31 December 2022, as
compared to 1.3 times as at 31 December 2021.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, net cash
generated from operating activities was approximately
HK$773.6 million, as compared to approximately
HK$522.7 million for the, year ended 31 December 2021.
The increase was mainly due to better control in collection
of trade receivables from customers and inventory levels
at year ended 31 December 2022.

Net cash used in investing activities amounted to
approximately HK$174.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2022, as compared to approximately HK$414.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2021. To achieve
our long term development goal and to cater for potential
business growth upon market recoveries, we continued
to invest approximately HK$387.2 million to purchase
property, plant and equipment during the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, net cash used in
financing activities amounted to approximately HK$377.5
million, as compared to approximately HK$363.9 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021. The cash used in
financing activities for the year ended 31 December 2022
was mainly used for repayment of borrowings, payment of
interests and dividends during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s net gearing ratio
was approximately 30.0% (as at 31 December 2021:
approximately 28.9%), which was calculated on the basis
of the amount of net debt position (sum of total bank
and other borrowings and bank overdrafts, less bank
deposits and bank balances and cash) as a percentage
of total equity. The Group was in a net debt position of
approximately HK$941.7 million as at 31 December 2022,
as compared to approximately HK$976.1 million as at 31
December 2021.

Working capital management

BEE N wm MO
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For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1+—HLEE

2022 2021 Change
—BCCF T BE)
(days) (%)
(X&) (Aot
Trade and bills receivables B ZRIFIER
turnover days ANESESEEEDS 61.1 63.1 2.0) 3.2)
Trade and bills payables B o EMNFIAR
turnover days JENRIBEERE 67.3 68.4 (1.1) (1.6)
Inventory turnover days FERAEKE 129.9 118.0 11.9 10.1
We have maintained stable trade and bills receivables as BEZT-__FR-FZ—F+ZA=1—

well as trade and bills payables turnover days for both
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

The increase in inventory turnover days was primarily due
to an increase in overall inventory balances as a result of
the elevated unit raw materials prices throughout most
time of 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE N MO

Capital expenditures

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s total
additions to property, plant and equipment amounted to
approximately HK$387.2 million (for the year ended 31
December 2021: approximately HK$230.6 million), in order
to achieve our long term development goal.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2022, the Group pledged bank
deposits of approximately HK$68.4 million (as at 31
December 2021: approximately HK$121.6 million)
to secure the bills payables issued by the Group in
connection with its trade transactions.

Foreign exchange risk

A substantial portion of the Group’s revenue is
denominated in US$ and HK$ and a portion of its
purchases and expenses are denominated in RMB, VND
and LKR. The Group manages its foreign exchange risk
by performing regular reviews and monitoring its foreign
exchange exposure. Our finance department monitors
our foreign exchange risk on a continuous basis by
analysing our domestic and overseas sales orders on
hand, expected domestic and overseas orders from
customers and estimated foreign currency payments
for our purchases and expenses. We intend to manage
our foreign exchange risks by () managing our sales,
purchases and expenses denominated in HK$ and RMB
through our subsidiaries in Hong Kong and Mainland
China, respectively, managing our sales, purchases and
expenses denominated in US$ through our subsidiaries
in Hong Kong, Vietnam and Sri Lanka, and managing
our purchases and expenses denominated in VND and
LKR through our subsidiaries in Vietham and Sri Lanka,
respectively; and (i) holding cash and bank deposits
denominated in HK$ primarily by the Company and
its subsidiaries in Hong Kong, holding cash and bank
deposits denominated in US$ primarily by the Company
and its subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Vietnam and Sri Lanka,
and holding cash and bank deposits denominated in RMB,
VND and LKR primarily by our subsidiaries in Mainland
China, Vietnam and Sri Lanka, respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities.

Employees and remuneration policies

As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed a total
of 9,050 full-time employees (as at 31 December 2021:
8,957). The Group remunerates its staff according
to their performance, qualification, experience and
industry practices, and conducts regular reviews of its
remuneration policy.

The remuneration committee of the Company was set up
primarily for reviewing the Group’s remuneration policy
and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and
senior management of the Group, having regard to factors
including but not limited to salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of
the Directors and employees, employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group, and whether the remuneration is
commensurate with the performance.

There has been no significant change in the Group’s
remuneration policy, and the Group will continue to
provide regular training and competitive remuneration
packages to its staff. The Group’s remuneration packages
include salary, bonuses, allowances and retirement
benefits based on employee’'s performance, skills and
knowledge. The Group also provides additional benefits
to its employees that include subsidised accommodation,
meals, accident and medical insurance and share-based
remuneration granted to eligible employees under the
share-based incentive plans of the Company from time to
time.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE N MO

Dividend policy

The Board intends to maintain a long term, stable
dividend payout ratio of not less than 20% of the Group’s
distributable profit for the year, providing shareholders with
an equitable return.

The Board has resolved to declare a final dividend of
HK4.22 cents per ordinary share in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2022 (the “Final Dividend”) (for
the year ended 31 December 2021: HK11.8 cents). The
Final Dividend is expected to be paid on 14 August 2023
to shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 10 July 2023, subject to the
approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company on 27 June 2023 (the
“AGM”).

An interim dividend of HK7.28 cents per share was paid
by the Company on 30 November 2022 (2021: HK$7.5
cents).

FUTURE STRATEGIES AND PROSPECTS

Global GDP is projected to fall to 2.9 percent in 2023
by the IMF before rising to 3.1 percent in 2024, such
projected global GDP for 2023 and 2024 is below the
historical annual average of 3.8 percent in the period
between 2000 and 2019. Despite the Group’s major brand
customers’ continuing efforts to work closely with their
core supply chain partners, we anticipate their inventory
optimization exercises will continue throughout the first
half of 2023, which in turn may negatively impact our
order book during the respective period. Nevertheless, we
have noted signs of improvements in inventory level of our
core U.S. apparel brand customers recently and we hope
to see more proactive replenishment of their inventories in
the latter half of 2023, alongside a more stable economic
situation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

International footprint

Despite the mentioned challenges facing by the market,
the Group remains dedicated to adapting to the changing
market conditions and finding innovative solutions to
meet the needs of its customers and partners. Over
the past few years, supply chain disruption has been a
key issue, driven by a combination of factors such as
the Sino-US trade war, the pandemic and the Russia-
Ukraine conflict. As a result, customers are seeking to
build greater resilience into their supply chains, and to
reduce their dependence on any sole supplier or region.
Although we are taking a more prudent approach in
evaluating our capital investments in the short term, Best
Pacific is committed to our multi-location manufacturing
strategy and we plan to further enhance the operational
efficiencies of our overseas manufacturing sites in Vietnam
and Sri Lanka, so as to cater for the best interests of our
customers.

Domestic markets

On the other hand, the Group had achieved double-digit
growth in its domestic fabric business in 2022, thanks
to the tighter partnerships with both domestic garment
customers and sportswear and apparel brands. Albeit
the impact of COVID, most of the leading sportswear
brand owners have recently announced an encouraging
set of results in 2022 and growth is expected by the
industry leaders to pick up in China subsequent to its full
reopening since the beginning of 2023. Looking ahead,
there are promising signs in China that retail sentiment will
strengthen as the pandemic remains under control and
the relevant COVID related restrictions are relaxed. With
the growing concern for health consciousness among
people, the sportswear and apparel market is expected to
pick up notably. As a leading textile player in the field, we
will keep abreast of the development trend of the industry
and capitalise on the emerging opportunities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE N MO

Raw material

Raw materials prices have been on a downward trend
since the third quarter of 2022 and we expect the relevant
prices will remain stablised given the current weak market
demands. This will certainly help alleviate some of the
cost pressures faced by the Group in 2023. The Group
is committed to maintaining strong relationships with
its supply-chain partners and it will continue to focus
on delivering high-quality products and services to its
customers in this challenging economic environment.

Capital expenditure and cashflows

As at 31 December 2022, the overall annual designed
production capacities of elastic fabric, elastic webbing
and lace of the Group were approximately 242.4
million meters, 1,923.3 million meters and 45.0 million
meters, respectively. Since the start of 2023, our core
manufacturing sites have been experiencing a decrease
in capacity utilisation of approximately 20% below the
normal levels. As a result, the Group will exercise more
caution in any new capital investment plans. We will
further optimize production efficiencies at the existing
production sites while emphasizing risk management and
will remain agile and vigilant and to respond swiftly to the
ever-changing market conditions. In addition, the Group
has implemented various costs control measures and we
also put our emphasis on maintaining healthy operating
cash flows, aiming to gradually lowering our debt level
SO0 as to counter some of the increasing finance costs.
Nevertheless, subsequent to the continuous hikes in
interest rates, the Group’s finance costs may inevitably
increase considerably.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Sportswear and apparel markets

Sportswear and apparel business has been the Group’s
growth drivers for years. Despite a contraction in sales
revenue from sales of elastic fabric to our sportswear
and apparel customers in 2022, we are confident that
the segment has only been affected by the short-term
economic headwinds and the fundamentals of the
sportswear and apparel industry remain strong. With
vast market potentials, we anticipate a positive long-term
growth momentum in the industry. Best Pacific believes
that innovations and technological advancement are
the keys to sustainable future growth, we will continue
to deploy resources to strengthen our innovation and
research and development capabilities and to satisfy our
customers’ rising demand for innovative sportswear and
apparel products. We are prepared to proactively seize
growth opportunities as the market recovers.

The challenges posed by COVID have allowed us to
cultivate stronger relationships with our customers,
supply-chain partners and staff. We believe that our world-
class innovation capabilities, international footprint, strong
partnership with customers and our talented people have
laid a solid foundation for Best Pacific’s sustainable growth
and future success.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EELHE

The Directors are pleased to present their report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and
trading of elastic fabric, elastic webbing and lace. Details
of the Group’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2022 are set out in Note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group’s turnover and results by operating segment
are set out in Notes 5 and 6 to the consolidated financial
statements and Management Discussion and Analysis of
this annual report.

There is no change in the principal activities of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022 are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Profit
or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income on page 97.

The Board recommends the payment of a Final Dividend
of HK4.22 cents per ordinary share for the year ended 31
December 2022 (for the year ended 31 December 2021:
HK11.8 cents). Subject to approval by shareholders of
the Company at the forthcoming AGM, the Final Dividend
will be distributed on 14 August 2023 to shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on 10 July 2023.

An interim dividend of HK7.28 cents per share was paid
to shareholders on 30 November 2022 (for the year ended
31 December 2021: HK7.5 cents).
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from 21 June 2023 to 27 June 2023, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares of the Company
will be effected. In order to determine the identity of
shareholders who are entitled to attend and vote at the
AGM, all share transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged not later than
4:30 p.m. on 20 June 2023 with the Company’s Hong
Kong branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

Subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming
AGM, the proposed Final Dividend will be payable to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 10 July 2023 and the
register of members of the Company will be closed
from 5 July 2023 to 10 July 2023, both days inclusive,
during which no transfer of shares of the Company will
be registered. In order to qualify for the proposed Final
Dividend, all share transfer documents accompanied by
the relevant share certificates shall be lodged not later
than 4:30 p.m. on 4 July 2023 with the Company’s Hong
Kong branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EELHE

BUSINESS REVIEW AND FUTURE
DEVELOPMENT

A review of the business of the Group during the year, a
discussion on the Group’s future business development as
well as the Group’s relationships with its key stakeholders
are set out in the Chairman’s Statement as well as the
Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 5 to 7
and pages 8 to 29 of this annual report. An analysis of the
Group’s performance during the year using financial key
performance indicators is set out in the Group’s Five- year
Financial Information Summary on page 264 of this annual
report. Saved as disclosed in this annual report, the Group
has no other significant events after the end of the financial
year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this
annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A description of possible risks and uncertainties that
the Group may be facing are set out in the Chairman’s
Statement as well as the Management Discussion and
Analysis on pages 5 to 7 and pages 8 to 29 of this
annual report. The financial risk management objectives
and policies of the Group are set out in Note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

Discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and
performance, relationships with its key stakeholders and
compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have
a significant impact on the Group will be provided in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2022 which
will be published on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
whose shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Group’s
operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in the PRC, Hong Kong, Vietnam, Sri Lanka
and the U.S.. The Group has compliance procedures
in place to ensure adherence to applicable laws and
regulations which pose significant relevance to the
Group. For the year ended 31 December 2022, to the
best knowledge and belief of the Board, the Group has
complied in material respects with the relevant laws and
regulations of the Cayman Islands, the PRC, Hong Kong,
Vietnam, Sri Lanka and the U.S..

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Employees are regarded as one of the most important
and valuable assets of the Group. The Group strives to
reward and recognise performing employees by providing
a competitive remuneration package and implementing
a sound performance appraisal system with appropriate
incentives for its employees, and to promote career
development and progression by appropriate training
and providing opportunities within the Group for career
advancement.

The Group maintains stable and cooperative relationships
with its customers. To ensure that our products remain
competitive, the Group closely monitors market trends,
listens attentively to customer demands and produces
products that accommodate their needs. The Group also
manages the relationships with its suppliers to ensure
reliability, stability and quality of various materials supplied
to the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EELHE

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Group’s subsidiaries are set out in Note
41 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movement in the issued share capital of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2022 are
set out in Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in
the “Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity” on
pages 100 and 101.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the distributable reserves of the
Company amounted to approximately HK$687.8 million, of
which approximately HK$43.9 million has been proposed
as the Final Dividend for the year ended 31 December
2022.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the amended and restated articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles”) or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2022 amounted to
approximately HK$659,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, sales to
the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 42.5% of the Group’s total sales for the
year (of which sales to the Group’s largest customer
accounted for approximately 13.5%). Purchases from the
Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
35.1% of the Group’s total purchases for the year (of
which purchases attributable to the largest supplier
accounted for approximately 15.9%).

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest customers and suppliers.

BORROWINGS

Details of bank and other borrowings of the Group as
at 31 December 2022 are set out in Note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in Note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities for the year ended 31 December 2022.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to
the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lu Yuguang
Mr. Zhang Haitao
Mr. Wu Shaolun
Ms. Zheng Tingting
Mr. Chan Yiu Sing
Mr. Lu Libin

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Yat Ming
Mr. Ding Baoshan
Mr. Kuo Dah Chih, Stanford

According to Article 83(3) of the Articles, the Directors
shall have the power from time to time and at any time
to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual
vacancy on the Board or as an addition to the existing
Board. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of
shareholders after his appointment and be subject to re-
election at such meeting and any Director appointed by
the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold
office only until the next following annual general meeting
of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.
Besides, Article 84(1) of the Articles stipulates that at each
annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the
time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3),
the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting
at least once every three years.
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Pursuant to the aforesaid provisions in the Articles, Mr.
Zhang Haitao (“Mr. Zhang”), Ms. Zheng Tingting (“Ms.
Zheng”) and Mr. Lu Libin will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming AGM. All the above Directors, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

PROFILES OF DIRECTORS

Profiles of the Directors are set out on pages 63 to 71 of
this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors (except for Ms. Zheng,
Mr. Chan Yiu Sing (“Mr. Chan”) and Mr. Lu Libin) has
entered into a service agreement with the Company for
an extended term of three years commencing on 23 May
2020. Mr. Chan and Mr. Lu Libin had each entered into a
service agreement with the Company for a term of three
years commencing on 10 February 2021. Ms. Zheng
had entered into a service agreement with the Company
for an extended term of three years commencing on 23
November 2021. Each service agreement will continue
thereafter until terminated by either party by giving to
the other party at least three months’ prior notice in
writing. Each of the independent non-executive Directors
(except for Mr. Kuo Dah Chih, Stanford (“Mr. Kuo”)) were
appointed for an extended term of three years with effect
from 23 May 2020. Mr. Kuo was appointed for a term of
three years with effect from 28 May 2021.
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All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Articles and Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”). None of the Directors proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming AGM have a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ FEES AND EMOLUMENTS

The Directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval
at general meetings. Other emoluments are determined
by the Board with reference to Directors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Group.

Details of the emoluments of every Director for the year
ended 31 December 2022 are set out in Note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the sections headed
“CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS” below and “RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS” in Note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements, no Director had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to
the business of the Group to which the Company, or any
of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party during the year ended 31 December 2022.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, none of
the Directors of the Company had any interest in any
competing business with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.
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Mr. Lu Yuguang (“Mr. Lu”) and Grandview Capital
Investment Limited (“‘Grandview”), being the controlling
shareholders of the Company (the “Controlling
Shareholders”), have each provided a written
confirmation to the Company confirming that he/it has
complied with the terms of the Deed of Non-competition
for the year ended 31 December 2022. The independent
non-executive Directors of the Company have also
reviewed the status of compliance by each of the
Controlling Shareholders and confirmed that, as far as they
can ascertain, each of the Controlling Shareholders has
complied with the terms of the Deed of Non-competition.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS -
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND/OR
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in
the shares, underlying shares and/or debentures (as the
case may be) of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO) or which were required to be entered into
the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO or which were otherwise required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, are set out below:
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(1 The Company ()] b NN
Number Approximate
of shares/ percentage of
Long/short underlying shareholding
Name of Director  position Capacity shares  Notes (%)
BREY
‘ Bt/ 188 BAL
EEpE i/ KA 54 ROEE M (%)
Mr. Lu Yuguang Long position Beneficial owner 3,000,000
ERXEE 59) BaEAA
Long position Interest held by his
controlled corporation 637,500,000 1
5Y) HXEEERANER
640,500,000 61.59
M(. Z\Eang Haitao Long position Interest held b;fhhi/s spouse 78,292,000 2 7.52
RERLE iv=) HECBRAER
Ms. Zheng Tingting  Long position Beneficial owner 3,292,000
et 59) BEaBAA
Long position Interest held by her
controlled corporation 75,000,000 3
1A HEREERANER
78,292,000 7.52
Mr. Wu Shaolun Long position @gp/eﬂoial owner 3,000,000
RmELE a=) BERBAA
Long position Interest held by his
controlled corporation 37,500,000 4
1A HEEERANER
40,500,000 3.89
Mr. Chan Yiu Sing Long position Beneficial owner 850,000 0.08
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Notes:

These 637,500,000 ordinary shares were held by Grandview,
which was wholly owned by Mr. Lu. Under the SFO, Mr.
Lu was deemed to be interested in such shares held by
Grandview.

These 78,292,000 ordinary shares were held by Ms. Zheng,
the Chief Operating Officer and an executive Director of the
Company and her controlled corporation (details in Note 3
below). Ms. Zheng is the spouse of Mr. Zhang, the Chief
Executive Officer and an executive Director of the Company.
Under the SFO, Mr. Zhang was deemed to be interested
in such shares held by Ms. Zheng and her controlled
corporation.

These 75,000,000 ordinary shares were held by Mega
Brilliant Enterprises Limited (‘Mega Brilliant”), which was
wholly owned by Ms. Zheng. Under the SFO, Ms. Zheng
was deemed to be interested in such shares held by Mega
Brilliant.

These 37,500,000 ordinary shares were held by Lakefront
Capital Investment Limited (‘Lakefront”), which was wholly
owned by Mr. Wu Shaolun (“Mr. Wu”). Under the SFO, Mr.
Wu was deemed to be interested in such shares held by
Lakefront.
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() Associated Corporation (within the meaning of

m  HEEE(ERREZRPERHM)

the SFO)
Grandview Capital Investment Limited Grandview Capital Investment
Limited
Approximate
percentage of
Long/short Number of shareholding
Name of Director position Capacity shares (%)
RN
Bkt
EEpR ¥, %R 14 RH B (%)
Mr. Lu Yuguang Long position Beneficial owner 10,001 100
ERNEE 5= BB A

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none
of the Directors or chief executive of the Company had
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or were required, pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS -
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS'’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2022, so far as was known to
the Directors of the Company, the following persons/
entities (other than the Directors or chief executive of
the Company) had, or were deemed to have, interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO:
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Number of Approximate
shares/ percentage of
Name of substantial Long/short underlying shareholding
shareholder position Capacity shares Notes (%)
BFREAQ
el Aokt
TERRHEE BB %, %R 14 ROEE M (%)
Grandview Capital Long position Beneficial owner 637,500,000 1 61.30
Investment Limited e EnEAA
FMR LLC Long position Interest held by 103,876,900 2 9.99
5=} its controlled
corporations
HEEAERE S
i dad
Mega Brilliant Long position Beneficial owner 75,000,000 3 7.21
Enterprises g EnEBA
Limited
Pandanus Associates Long position Interest held by 72,094,000 4 6.93
Inc. e its controlled
corporations
HEEAERES
HEa
Pandanus Partners L.P.  Long position Interest held by 72,094,000 4 6.93
=y its controlled
corporations
HEEAERE S
R
FIL Limited Long position Interest held by 72,094,000 4 6.93
e its controlled
corporations
HEEAERE S
i dod
FIDELITY PURITAN Long position Beneficial owner 55,310,000 5 5.32
TRUST ey EnEAA
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Notes:

Grandview was wholly owned by Mr. Lu, the Chairman
and an executive Director of the Company and Mr. Lu was
deemed to be interested in the 637,500,000 ordinary shares
of the Company held by Grandview pursuant to the SFO. Mr.
Lu’s interests in shares are disclosed in this annual report
in the section headed “DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS -
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND/OR DEBENTURES”.

FMR LLC was deemed to be interested in the 103,876,900
ordinary shares of the Company through its 100% controlled
corporations and 483A Bay Street Holdings LP, which was
owned or controlled as to 18% by Bay Street Holdings LLC.

Mega Brilliant was wholly owned by Ms. Zheng, the
Chief Operating Officer and an executive Director of the
Company, and Ms. Zheng was deemed to be interested in
the 75,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company held by
Mega Brilliant pursuant to the SFO. Mr. Zhang, the Chief
Executive Officer and an executive Director of the Company,
is the spouse of Ms. Zheng and was accordingly deemed to
be interested in the 75,000,000 ordinary shares which Ms.
Zheng was deemed to be interested in for the purposes of
the SFO. Ms. Zheng’s and Mr. Zhang’s interests in shares
are disclosed in this annual report in the section headed
“DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS — DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND/OR DEBENTURES”.

Pandanus Associates Inc. is a general partner of and has
100% control over Pandanus Partners L.P., which owned
or controlled 37.01% of the voting rights in FIL Limited. FIL
Limited then indirectly owned or controlled 82% of the voting
rights in 483A Bay Street Holdings LP. By virtue of Part XV
of the SFO, each of Pandanus Associates Inc., Pandanus
Partners L.P. and FIL Limited was deemed to be interested
in the 72,094,000 ordinary shares of the Company via 483A
Bay Street Holdings LP and its 100% controlled corporations.

FIDELITY PURITAN TRUST held the 55,310,000 ordinary
shares of the Company directly.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022,
the Directors were not aware of any other persons/
entities (other than the Directors and chief executive of
the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 8 May 2014, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) as governed by
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme, which
shall be valid and effective for 10 years from its adoption
date, are summarised below:

Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to reward the
eligible participants who have contributed to the Group
and to encourage them to work towards enhancing the
value of the Company and its shareholders.

Eligible participants

The Board may at its discretion make offers inviting the
Directors and employees of the Group and any advisors,
consultants, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents,
customers, business partners, joint venture business
partners, promoters or service providers of any member
of the Group who the Board considers, in its absolute
discretion, have contributed or will contribute to the
Group, to take up options to subscribe for shares of the
Company, subject to such conditions as the Board may
think fit.
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Total number of shares available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme

@)

10% limit

Subject to the following paragraph, the maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not, in
aggregate, exceed 10% of the number of shares
of the Company in issue on the listing date (i.e.
23 May 2014) (not taking into account any shares
which may be allotted and issued pursuant to the
over-allotment option under the IPO) (the “Scheme
Mandate Limit”). Options lapsed in accordance
with the terms of the Share Option Scheme and (as
the case may be) such other share option schemes
of the Company will not be counted for the purpose
of calculating the Scheme Mandate Limit.

The Company may, from time to time, refresh the
Scheme Mandate Limit by obtaining the approval
of the shareholders in a general meeting, provided
that the total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company under the
refreshed limit does not exceed 10% of the shares
of the Company in issue as at the date of the
shareholders’ approval of the refreshed limit.

The Company may also seek separate approval of
the shareholders in a general meeting for granting
options beyond the Scheme Mandate Limit or the
refreshed limit, provided that the options in excess
of such limit are granted only to eligible participants
specifically identified by the Company before such
approval is sought.
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b)) 30% limit

The overall limit on the number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company must not, in aggregate,
exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue
from time to time.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each participant
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period must not exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue from time to time. Where any further
grant of options to a grantee would result in the shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
granted and to be granted to such person (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such
further grant exceeding 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue, such further grant must be separately approved
by the shareholders in general meeting with such grantee
and his associates abstaining from voting.

Performance target

The Share Option Scheme allows the Board, when offering
the grant of any option, to impose any condition including
any performance target, which must be met before the
option shall vest and become exercisable.
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Minimum period for which an option must be held

The Board may at its discretion, when offering the grant
of any option, impose any minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised.

Exercise price

The exercise price shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion but in any event shall be not less than
the highest of:

(@) the closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant;

(b) the average closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotations sheets
of the Stock Exchange for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(©) the nominal value of the shares of the Company.

Amount payable upon acceptance of option

HK$1.00 is payable by each eligible participant to the
Company on acceptance of an offer of option.

The Company has not granted any share options under
the Share Option Scheme since its adoption on 8 May
2014.

The total number of shares available for issue upon
exercise of all share options which are not yet granted
under the Share Option Scheme is 73,530,000 shares,
representing approximately 7.07% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of this annual report
(i.e. 1,039,808,000 shares).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Certain related party transactions as disclosed in Note 40
to the consolidated financial statements also constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules, which are required
to be disclosed in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. Other than those disclosed as connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions in the
relevant section of this annual report, the related party
transactions are not connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions, or are exempt from reporting,
announcement and shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The following transactions between certain connected
persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) and the Group
have been entered into and/or are ongoing for which
relevant disclosure had been made by the Company by
way of announcement in compliance with the disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

a. Sales of elastic fabric and elastic webbing to
Dongguan PF Group

On 3 May 2019, Dongguan BPT and Dongguan
NHE (as suppliers) entered into a sales agreement
(the “Sales Agreement”) with Dongguan Premium
Fashion Company Limited (“Dongguan PF”) (as
purchaser) in relation to the sale of elastic fabric,
elastic webbing, lace, printing and embroidery for
a term of three years commencing on 4 May 2019
to 3 May 2022. Pursuant to the Sales Agreement,
the selling price for elastic fabric shall be between
the price range of RMB5 to RMB200 per meter
(tax inclusive); the selling price for lace shall be
between the price range of RMB0.5 to RMB80 per
meter (tax inclusive); the selling price for printing
and embroidery shall be between the price range
of RMB5 to RMB40 per meter (tax inclusive) or the
price range of RMB0.5 to RMB15 per piece (tax
inclusive); and the selling price for elastic webbing
shall be between the price range of RMB0.5 to
RMB2 per meter (tax inclusive). The selling price
ranges for the goods under the Sales Agreement
were determined after arm’s length negotiation
between the parties thereto and with reference
to (i) the historical and prevailing market price of
the same and similar goods in the area, (i) the
historical and prevailing selling prices of Dongguan
BPT and Dongguan NHE for the goods, and
(iii) the credit worthiness and potential business
growth of Dongguan PF. The annual cap for the
transaction amount under the Sales Agreement
for the period from 1 January 2022 to 3 May 2022
shall be RMB30 million. Further details of the Sales
Agreement were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 3 May 2019.
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On 30 June 2021, in view of the more-than-
expected sales of the products by Dongguan
BPT and Dongguan NHE to Dongguan PF and
to allow greater flexibility to cater for the parties’
business needs, Dongguan BPT, Dongguan NHE
(as suppliers), and Dongguan PF (as purchaser)
entered into a supplemental agreement to the
Sales Agreement, pursuant to which (i) Dongguan
PF may designate it and its associates from time
to time to purchase elastic fabric, lace, printing and
embroidery from Dongguan BPT (or any company
of the Group designated by Dongguan BPT) and
elastic webbing from Dongguan NHE (or any
company of the Group designated by Dongguan
NHE) and (i) the annual cap for the transaction
amount under the Sales Agreement for the period
from 1 January 2022 to 3 May 2022 shall be
RMB50 million (the “Supplemental Agreement”).
Further details of the Supplemental Agreement
were disclosed in the Company’s announcement
dated 30 June 2021.

From 1 January 2022 to 3 May 2022, sales
to Dongguan PF and its associates by the
Group under the Sales Agreement amounted to
approximately RMB45,452,060.

On 3 May 2022, in contemplation of the expiry
of the Sales Agreement (as amended by the
Supplemental Agreement) on 3 May 2022,
Dongguan BPT and Dongguan NHE (for themselves
and on behalf of its associates as suppliers) entered
into a renewed sales agreement (the “Renewed
Sales Agreement”) with Dongguan PF (for
itself and on behalf of its associates (collectively,
‘Dongguan PF Group’as purchaser) in relation
to the sale of elastic fabric, elastic webbing, lace,
printing and embroidery for a term commencing
on 4 May 2022 to 31 July 2022. The terms under
the Renewed Sales Agreement are substantially
the same as those under the Sales Agreement (as
amended by the Supplemental Agreement), save
that the annual cap for the transaction amounts
under the Renewed Sales Agreement for the
period from 4 May 2022 to 31 July 2022 shall be
RMB40 million. Further details of the Renewed
Sales Agreement were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 3 May 2022.
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From 4 May 2022 to 31 July 2022, sales to
Dongguan PF Group by the Group under the
Sales Agreement amounted to approximately
RMB13,326,260.

On 21 June 2022, in contemplation of the expiry of
the Renewed Sales Agreement on 31 July 2022,
Best Pacific Textile Holdings Limited (‘BPTHL”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
(for itself and on behalf of its associates (collectively,
“BPTHL Group”), as seller) and Dongguan PF (for
itself and on behalf of Dongguan PF Group, as
purchaser) entered into a new sales agreement (the
“‘New Sales Agreement”) in relation to the sale
of elastic fabric, elastic webbing, lace, printing and
embroidery by members of the BPTHL Group to
the Dongguan PF Group for a term of three years
commencing from 1 August 2022 to 31 July 2025.
Pursuant to the New Sales Agreement, the selling
price and terms for elastic fabric, elastic webbing,
lace, printing and embroidery offered by the
member(s) of the BPTHL Group to the Dongguan
PF Group shall be agreed after arm’s length
negotiation between the BPTHL Group and the
Dongguan PF Group based on normal commercial
terms after taking into consideration (i) the historical
and prevailing market price of the same and similar
goods in the area, (i) the historical and prevailing
selling prices of the Group for the goods to
independent third party customers, (i) the Group’s
cost of sale of the goods, (iv) the size of the orders,
and (v) the credit worthiness and potential business
growth of the Dongguan PF Group, and in any
event shall be no more favourable than those
offered to independent third parties. The annual
caps for the transaction amount under the New
Sales Agreement for the period from 1 August 2022
to 31 December 2022 was RMB68 million and that
for the financial years ending 31 December 2023,
2024 and 2025 shall be RMB230 million, RMB350
million and RMB286 million respectively. Further
details of the New Sales Agreement were disclosed
in the Company’s announcement dated 21 June
2022.
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From 1 August 2022 to 31 December 2022, sales
to Dongguan PF Group by the BPTHL Group
under the New Sales Agreement amounted to
approximately RMB42,320,840.

As at 3 May 2019 when the Sales Agreement was
entered into, Dongguan PF was originally owned
as to 50% by Ms. Wu Wanxiong (the spouse of
Mr. Lu, the Chairman and an executive Director of
the Company, the sister of Mr. Wu, an executive
Director of the Company and the mother of Mr. Lu
Libin, the Chief Strategy Officer and an executive
Director of the Company), 30% by Ms. Zheng (the
Chief Operating Officer and an executive Director
of the Company and the spouse of Mr. Zhang, the
Chief Executive Officer and an executive Director of
the Company), 10% by Mr. Wu Junjie (the son of
Mr. Wu) and 10% by Mr. Lu Canping (the nephew
of Mr. Lu). As at 30 June 2021, 3 May 2022, 21
June 2022 and the date of this annual report,
Dongguan PF was owned as to 40% by Ms. Wu
Wanxiong, 40% by Ms. Zheng, 10% by Mr. Wu
Junjie and 10% by Mr. Lu Canping. Accordingly,
Dongguan PF is a connected person of the
Company pursuant to Rule 14A.07 of the Listing
Rules, and the transactions contemplated under
each of the Sales Agreement, the Supplemental
Agreement, the Renewed Sales Agreement and
the New Sales Agreement constituted continuing
connected transactions for the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Brandix Group

On 6 November 2020, BPTHL, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (for itself
and on behalf of the BPTHL Group, as seller) and
Brandix Lanka Limited (“Brandix”) (for itself and
on behalf of its affiliates (collectively, “Brandix
Group”), as purchaser) entered into a sales
framework agreement (the “Brandix Framework
Agreement’) for a term of three years commencing
on 6 November 2020 to 5 November 2023 in
relation to the sale and purchase of synthetic fabric
and webbing and any other products as may be
agreed between the parties from time to time on
normal commercial terms and subject to and upon
the terms and conditions to be agreed between the
relevant members of BPTHL Group and Brandix
Group, setting out, among other things, the
products to be supplied, specifications, quantity,
price, delivery method and payment arrangement.

The annual caps for the transaction amounts
under the Brandix Framework Agreement for the
financial year ended 31 December 2022 and for
the financial year ending 31 December 2023 shall
be US$63 milion and US$64 million respectively.
During the financial year ended 31 December 2022,
the sales to Brandix Group by BPTHL Group under
the Brandix Framework Agreement amounted to
approximately US$22,363,166. Further details
of the Brandix Framework Agreement were
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 6
November 2020.
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As at 6 November 2020 and the date of this annual
report, Best Pacific Textiles Lanka (Private) Limited
was owned as to 75% by the Company, via Best
Pacific International Sri Lanka (Pannala) Limited,
and 25% by Brandix. Accordingly, members of
Brandix Group (including Brandix) are connected
persons of the Company at the subsidiary level
under Rule 14A.06(9) of the Listing Rules and
the transaction contemplated under the Brandix
Framework Agreement constitutes a continuing
connected transaction for the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Sub-lease of a land for the use of production
plant by MAS Fabric Park

On 22 December 2006, Trischel, a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company since completion
of the acquisition on 1 August 2018, entered into
an agreement (the “Sub-Lease Agreement”) with
MAS Fabric Park (Private) Limited (‘MAS Fabric
Park”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
MAS Holdings (Pvt) Ltd (‘MAS”) and a substantial
shareholder of Trischel, for sub-leasing a piece of
land, situated in Nangalla and Thulhiriya Villages in
the District of Kegalle, Sabaragamuwa Province,
Sri Lanka, with an approximate area of 3.37818
hectares, to Trischel for a term of 98 years and 7
months commencing on 22 December 2006 and
ending on 29 July 2105.

Pursuant to the Sub-Lease Agreement, the initial
ground rent was US$29,218 per annum as at
signing of the Sub-Lease Agreement, which shall
be adjusted annually in line with the ground rent
charged or chargeable at other industrial zones
as published by Board of Investment of Sri Lanka
(“BOI"), a governmental authority in Sri Lanka, and
shall be paid on or before 22 December each year.
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The annual cap for the transaction amount under
the Sub-Lease Agreement for the financial year
ended 31 December 2022 shall be US$97,000.
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
ground rent paid to MAS Fabric Park by Trischel
under the Sub-Lease Agreement amounted to
approximately US$42,825. Further details of the
Sub-Lease Agreement were disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 4 December
2017.

Trischel is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company in which 51% is indirectly owned by the
Company via Best Pacific International Sri Lanka
(Thulhiriya) Limited and 49% is owned by MAS
Capital (Private) Limited (“MAS Capital”), which is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of MAS. Accordingly, MAS
Fabric Park, as an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of MAS, is a connected person of the Company
at the subsidiary level under Rule 14A.06(9) of the
Listing Rules.

Utilities services provided by MAS Fabric Park

On 22 December 2006, Trischel also entered into
a services agreement (the “Services Agreement”)
with MAS Fabric Park, pursuant to which MAS
Fabric Park shall provide Trischel with electricity,
steam, water, effluent discharge and fire hydrant
water supply. The Services Agreement shall
come into force and will be valid so long as the
Sub-Lease Agreement remains valid and effective.

The initial monthly base service charge payable
by Trischel to MAS Fabric Park was US$5,000 as
at signing of the Services Agreement which shall
be adjusted annually with reference to the London
Interbank Offered Rate (‘LIBOR”). In addition to
the monthly base service charge, Trischel shall also
pay to MAS Fabric Park the utilities fees in amounts
calculated with reference to the actual number of
units or volume of use.

PHEBEETNTEEZE T - —_4F1+_-A
—+—HUEYBREENRZERFE
FRAI7,000ETT - HE-T -
T A=+—HLFE ' TrischeliRi&
o M 7% [MIMAS Fabric Park Xz < &9ty
MAE#42,825% 7T - BEADHEHER
E—FSHBERARABSHAE-ZT—
+tFF+_ANB 2 REREEE -

Trischel X BAR R RIFEZEN B
NA)C AARRFBEBEBest Pacific
International Sri Lanka (Thulhiriya)
Limited % ¥ B 51 % % 1 & HMAS
2 & BAAMAS Capital (Private)
Limited (MAS Capitall) A&
A9%[xHE - H It - BB ETHASE
14A.06(9) % - MASFIE 2 E W B A A
MAS Fabric Park i AK A28 A 5 7E 18
NAIERBEENT -

MAS Fabric ParkiZ 2 F R i BRI

RZEERF+ZA=Z+=ZA8 "
Trischel JREEMAS Fabric Parkz] 37 Ak
B ((BREHBZE]) - Btk - MAS
Fabric ParkZB A Trischeli2 & 11 + %
s K TEKEER BB B R K R
S NolmENBERRER S
PRF& e i E R B AR ©

R ET IR %05 » Trischel BT MAS
Fabric ParkZ ¥ & A ERRIFEE A
50007 ' WEEFR2=EMBIRTT
EEFE ([RBBTRERE]) T
FHEE o B AEARRFBE BN + Trischel
JNFE[AIMAS Fabric Park st <48 #5{#
MERENHBERBEFESE A
e -

BEST PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2022



The annual cap for the transaction amounts under
the Services Agreement for the financial year
ended 31 December 2022 shall be US$9,462,000.
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
total service charge paid to MAS Fabric Park by
Trischel under the Services Agreement amounted
to approximately US$4,677,512. Further details
of the Services Agreement were disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 4 December
2017.

Installation, maintenance and operation
services in relation to a biomass thermic oil
heater provided by MAS Fabric Park

On 15 July 2016, Trischel entered into a
memorandum of understanding (the “MOU”)
with MAS Fabric Park in relation to provision
by MAS Fabric Park to Trischel of installation,
maintenance and operation services in relation to
a biomass thermic oil heater for a term of 10 years
commencing on 15 July 2016 and ending on 14
July 2026. MAS Fabric Park shall bear the total
cost of investment on purchasing and installation of
the said heater pursuant to the MOU.

MAS Fabric Park shall charge Trischel at a rate
determined according to the MOU for the energy
consumed subject to review (and agreement
between the parties to the MOU) annually in line
with the percentage change in firewood prices and
costs of labour, maintenance and electricity relating
to the operation of the oil heater. MAS Fabric
Park shall in addition to the above costs, charge a
minimal administrative charge.

The annual cap for the transaction amounts under
the MOU for the financial year ended 31 December
2022 shall be US$2,715,000. During the year
ended 31 December 2022, the total service charge
paid to MAS Fabric Park by Trischel under the
MOU amounted to approximately US$469,859.
Further details of the MOU were disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 4 December
2017.
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EEEHE
f. Sales of synthetic textiles and textile related

58

products to MAS Group

On 30 June 2021, BPTHL, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company (for itself and on behalf
of the BPTHL Group, as seller), entered into a
framework agreement (the “MAS Framework
Agreement”) with MAS Capital (for itself and on
behalf of its affiliates (collectively, “MAS Group”),
in relation to the sale of synthetic textiles and
textile related products including synthetic fabrics
by BPTHL Group to MAS Group for a term from 1
August 2021 to 31 December 2022. Pursuant to
the MAS Framework Agreement, BPTHL Group
has agreed to sell synthetic textiles and textile
related products including synthetic fabrics to MAS
Group from time to time on normal commercial
terms and subject to and upon the terms and
conditions contained in the purchase orders to be
agreed between the relevant members of BPTHL
Group and MAS Group, setting out, among other
things, the products to be supplied, specifications,
quantity, price, delivery method and payment
arrangement. Further details of the MAS Framework
Agreement were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 30 June 2021.

The annual cap for the transaction amounts
under the MAS Framework Agreement for
the financial year ended 31 December 2022
shall be US$115 million. During the financial
year ended 31 December 2022, the sales to
MAS Group by BPTHL Group under the MAS
Framework Agreement amounted to approximately
US$77,509,421.

Trischel is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company in which 51% is indirectly owned
by the Company and 49% is owned by MAS
Capital. Accordingly, MAS Capital, as a substantial
shareholder of Trishel, is a connected person of
the Company at the subsidiary level under Rule
14A.06(9) of the Listing Rules.
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Independent non-executive Directors’ confirmation

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the aforementioned continuing connected transactions
conducted during the year ended 31 December 2022 and
confirmed that such transactions have been entered into:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;
(b) either on normal commercial terms or, if there are

not sufficient comparable transactions to judge
whether they are on normal commercial terms, on
terms no less favourable to the Group than terms
available to or from (as appropriate) independent
third parties; and

(c) in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole.

Review by the Company’s auditor

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the
Company'’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group'’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits
or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised) “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Our auditor has issued its
unmodified independent assurance report on continuing
connected transactions of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022 on pages 50 to 58 of this annual
report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the independent assurance report has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

An audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) was
established by the Board with written terms of reference
in compliance with the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. The Audit Committee comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Cheung Yat Ming,
Mr. Ding Baoshan (“Mr. Ding”) and Mr. Kuo Dah Chih,
Stanford (“Mr. Kuo”). Mr. Cheung Yat Ming is the
chairman of the Audit Committee.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
from pages 72 to 89 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, at
least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital was
held by the public as at the latest practicable date prior to
the issue of this report.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21
OF THE LISTING RULES

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 15
June 2020, the Company (as guarantor) and its six wholly-
owned subsidiaries (as borrowers) entered into a facility
agreement (the “Facility Agreement”) with certain banks
in Hong Kong for a syndicated loan comprising HK$1.8
billion equivalent multicurrency term loan and revolving
credit facilities, with a maturity of 42 months from the date
of first drawdown of the term loan facility. The Facility
Agreement contains specific performance obligations
on Mr. Lu, the controlling shareholder of the Company,
requiring that he shall at all times:

BEREEg

ExgRyTERZEe ([BRERE])
HEMBEBENTS LR RIS+ 5 A
HOEEE AT ([RXERTR L) - FX
RESBR-UBYIFATES  BIR-5
e TEWRE(TRED RFABELE
(TERE]) - R—BRERBZZEENE
fE o

TEER
RABERMEBDEEBENETI N ARF
WET2EEZFEOBMEEAWME -

ABREFERENTEHS

ERARQR AR ARBTESHERLESE
AT RAFRTIBERNREERTTH
B ARARREBEITIRATREVE2%HAR
B/E o

BiE LR AFE1321RETHIRE

BMARRBHA S -_ZTFA+HEHHD
RNEFMER - Aoa (ERERA) REKMH
2EWB AR (FERMER) BEENSE TIRIT
MIEEER (BFE18EBTLEEZ TEERN
THERMBREEMRE  RNEHERRE
BONRERB BAREET 4218 B BIHE) 5T —TE Bl
Efpin ((MEWRE]) - mEWZHBERAR
NAEBRBRRERELSENSTRNET 3K
HIR

60 BEST PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2022



(i) maintain, directly or indirectly, at least 30% of the
issued share capital of the Company and that such
issued share capital shall remain unencumbered;

(ii) be the single largest shareholder of the Company;
(iii) be the Chairman of the Board of the Company; and

(iv) maintain control over the management and
business of the borrowers, the Company and the
material subsidiaries.

As of the date of this annual report, Mr. Lu is an executive
Director and the Chairman of the Board as well as the
controlling shareholder of the Company, holding direct and
indirect interests in 640,500,000 shares of the Company,
representing approximately 61.59% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of this report, and is
treated as the single largest shareholder of the Company.

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement, if Mr. Lu breaches
any of his specific performance covenants as mentioned
above, the borrowers shall prepay the syndicated loan
together with the interests and all other amounts accrued
in connection therewith in full within 21 days (or such
longer period as the borrowers and the agent of the
syndicated loan may agree) from the date of the notice
delivered by the agent to the borrowers.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which he/she may incur
or sustain in or about the execution of the duties of his/her
office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and
officers of the Group throughout the year.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Saved as disclosed in this annual report, the Group had
no other significant events after 31 December 2022 and
up to the date of this annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2022 have been audited by
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. A resolution will be
submitted at the forthcoming AGM to re-appoint Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as independent auditor of the
Company.

By order of the Board
Lu Yuguang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2023
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Below is the biographical details of Directors and senior
management of the Group as at 31 December 2022:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LU Yuguang (E/£Y), aged 57, is the Chairman
of the Company. He was appointed as a Director
on 14 June 2013 and re-designated as an executive
Director of the Company on 21 January 2014. Mr. Lu is
also the chairman of the nomination committee of the
Company (the “Nomination Committee”). Mr. Lu has
approximately twenty-eight years of experience in the
textile industry and he formulates overall management
plans and oversees the strategic business development
of the Group. He is currently the legal representative and
the chairman of Dongguan NHE, the chairman of the
board of directors of Dongguan BPT and a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Lu first started to
engage in the textile industry in August 1994 when he
was a chairman of Dongguan Runda Elastic Weaving
Company Limited (“Dongguan Runda”), a company
engaged in the manufacturing, production and sale of
elastic webbing. Throughout the years, Mr. Lu has been
an active entrepreneur in Dongguan City and Guangdong
Province. Mr. Lu has been a member of the Dongguan
High-Tech Industry Association (3 2= = #T B il E E &)
since July 2009 and had been a committee member of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of the
Dongguan Municipal (SR EHZ E€) from December
2011 to December 2021. Since July 2017 and April 2017,
Mr. Lu has been appointed as the president of Dongguan
City MaChong Association of Enterprises with Foreign
Investment (RZEMINGIREPEREMABESE) and an
executive director of World Dongguan Entrepreneurs
(RIS E) respectively. From January 2018 to
December 2021, Mr. Lu had been the vice president of
the Dongguan City Association of Enterprises with Foreign
Investment (REEMINEIRE R EWHE). In March 2019, Mr.
Lu was appointed as the vice president of the Dongguan
Trademark Brand Development Promotion Association
(RETREIZMEERFEMRES). In July 2009, Mr. Lu
was awarded with the “Chinese Enterprise Management
Innovation Achievement Award” (0 {b 2 & 12 8% 5 5t
#%) by the China Academy of Management Science (F
EERIEMIET). Mr. Lu is the brother-in-law of Mr. Wu
and the father of Mr. Lu Libin. As at 31 December 2022,
Mr. Lu was the controlling shareholder of the Company.
Details of Mr. Lu’s interests in the share capital of the
Company are set out in the section headed “DISCLOSURE
OF INTERESTS - DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND/OR DEBENTURES” in this
annual report.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREEEGN

Mr. ZHANG Haitao (55/8/E), who was formerly named
as Mr. ZHANG Dahai (5RX8), aged 52, is the Chief
Executive Officer of the Group. He was appointed as
a Director on 14 June 2013 and re-designated as an
executive Director of the Company on 21 January 2014.
He was also appointed as a member of the Remuneration
Committee on 20 March 2018. He is currently a director
and the general manager of Dongguan BPT and
Dongguan NHE and a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Group. Mr. Zhang formulates and executes overall
corporate directions and business strategies of the Group.
He has approximately twenty-eight years of experience in
the textile industry. Mr. Zhang has worked in the Group
since February 2003 and held the position of general
manager at Dongguan BPT. Prior to working in the Group,
Mr. Zhang worked for Pioneer Elastic Fabric (China)
Company Limited (RAFTSE MY (FE) BIRAF]) as the
business manager between March 1995 and March 1998.
Between January 1998 and April 1999, and later from July
2001 to May 2010, Mr. Zhang was the general manager
of Dongguan Runda. Mr. Zhang has been a director of the
Guangdong Textiles Association (BRE 4 &%) since
November 2009 and an individual life member of the Hong
Kong General Chamber of Textiles Limited (&/&#h4%rE
&) since September 2013. Since December 2019, Mr.
Zhang has been the Vice Chairman of The Hong Kong
Intimate Apparel Industries’ Association Ltd. Mr. Zhang
completed a fashion technology course at Beijing Institute
of Fashion Technology (At FARFEEERT) in July 1992 and
further obtained a master degree in software systems at
the University of St. Thomas in the U.S. in May 2001. Mr.
Zhang is the spouse of Ms. Zheng, the Chief Operating
Officer and an executive Director of the Company. As
at 31 December 2022, Mr. Zhang was interested in the
shares of the Company, details of which are set out in
the section headed “DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS -
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND/OR DEBENTURES” in this annual report.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. WU Shaolun (R4f®), aged 58, is an executive
Director of the Company. He was appointed as a Director
on 14 June 2013 and re-designated as an executive
Director of the Company on 21 January 2014. He is
currently a director and the deputy general manager of
Dongguan BPT and Dongguan NHE, and a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Wu is principally
responsible for the Group’s infrastructure and the general
management of Dongguan BPT and Dongguan NHE. He
has over twenty-seven years of experience in the textile
industry. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wu worked in
Dongguan Runda as the deputy general manager from
April 1995 to May 2010. Since February 2003, Mr. Wu
has been the deputy general manager of Dongguan BPT.
In addition, he has been the deputy general manager of
Dongguan NHE since 2010. Mr. Wu has been a member
of the Dongguan High-tech Industry Association (BRZem
SETEAMAEZEWS) since July 2009 and a director of the
Dongguan City Association of Enterprises with Foreign
Investment ((RZEMINGIRE B E) since November
2013. Mr. Wu is the brother-in-law of Mr. Lu and the
uncle of Mr. Lu Libin. As at 31 December 2022, Mr. Wu
was interested in the shares of the Company, details of
which are set out in the section headed “DISCLOSURE
OF INTERESTS - DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
UNDERLYING SHARES AND/OR DEBENTURES” in this
annual report.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXNSREEEBN

Ms. ZHENG Tingting (£/124%), aged 47, is an executive
Director of the Company, the Chief Operating Officer and
vice-president (marketing) of the Group and a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Group. She is responsible
for the overall operations, manufacturing and developing
and implementing the sales and marketing strategies of
the Group. Prior to joining the Group in December 2006,
Ms. Zheng joined the Guangzhou office of Parker Pen
(Shanghai) Limited as a sourcing specialist in January
2004. In December 2006, Ms. Zheng joined Dongguan
Runda and worked as the vice-president when she left
in May 2010. Since May 2010, she has joined Dongguan
NHE in the same capacity. Also, starting from December
2006, Ms. Zheng worked as a sales manager in Dongguan
BPT. In December 2008, she was promoted as the
vice-president (marketing) of the Group. Ms. Zheng was
promoted as the chief operating officer of the Group since
1 September 2014. Ms. Zheng graduated from the English
department of Xi’an Translation College (FaZ&z25Z3l
EF3) in the PRC in June 1996. Subsequently in January
2017, she graduated from the Northwestern University
and The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology
with a master degree in business administration. Ms.
Zheng is the spouse of Mr. Zhang, the Chief Executive
Officer and an executive Director of the Company. As
at 31 December 2022, Ms. Zheng was interested in the
shares of the Company, details of which are set out in
the section headed “DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS -
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND/OR DEBENTURES” in this annual report.
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Mr. CHAN Yiu Sing ((R#22), aged 43, is an executive
Director of the Company, the Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary of the Group and a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Chan is responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting, budgeting
control, financing and fund management, as well as
ensuring and maintaining the standards of corporate
governance of the Group. Mr. Chan has over fifteen years
of experience in audit, investment, accounting and finance.
He joined an international audit firm in February 2006 and
was a manager of such audit firm until May 2012 prior to
joining the Group in February 2013. Since August 2022,
Mr. Chan has been an independent director of Magic
Empire Global Limited, a company listed on the National
Association of Securities Dealers Automated Quotations
(Stock Code: MEGL). Mr. Chan graduated from the
University of New South Wales in Australia with a master’s
degree in commerce in June 2005 and a bachelor’s
degree in accounting and finance in October 2003. He is
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. As at 31 December 2022, Mr. Chan
was interested in the shares of the Company, details of
which are set out in the section headed “DISCLOSURE
OF INTERESTS - DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND/OR DEBENTURES” in this
annual report.

Mr. LU Libin (EX#), aged 29, is an executive Director
of the Company and has been the Chief Strategy Officer
of the Group since June 2019. Mr. Lu Libin is primarily
responsible for assisting the Board in formulating future
development strategies and directions for the Group.
Mr. Lu Libin joined the Group as the sales manager in
June 2017, and was responsible for coordinating various
departments and operations across different countries.
Since August 2021, Mr. Lu Libin has been the vice
president of Dongguan Dongcheng Young Entrepreneurs
Association (REEMHRMBFFEERHE). Since October
2021, Mr. Lu Libin has been the vice president of
Dongguan Houjie Town Chamber of Commerce (R &
#HEm®). Since December 2021, Mr. Lu Libin has been
a committee member of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference of the Dungguan Municipal (%

E=MHIHZE E€). Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lu Libin
worked as an associate in the investment banking division
at BOCOM International (Asia) Limited from January 2016
to May 2017. Mr. Lu Libin obtained his bachelor’s degree
in finance from the University of Connecticut in the United
States of America in January 2016. Mr. Lu Libin is the
son of Mr. Lu, the Chairman and an executive Director of
the Company, and the nephew of Mr. Wu, an executive
Director of the Company.
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EXNSREEEBN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. CHEUNG Yat Ming (55—88), who was formerly
named as Mr. CHEUNG Yiu Tai (58#2%%), aged 54, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director of
the Company on 8 May 2014. He is also the chairman
of the Audit Committee, and a member of both the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
of the Company. He has extensive experience in the fields
of investment, real estate and property market research,
corporate finance and auditing. Prior to joining the Group,
he was a staff accountant and semi-senior accountant
at Arthur Andersen & Co. in Hong Kong and China
from August 1991. In August 1994, he joined Citicorp
Commercial Finance (HK) Limited as an administration and
accounting manager and was promoted with Citibank’s
corporate title of assistant vice-president in September
1996. In October 1997, he joined Salomon Brothers Hong
Kong Limited as an equity research associate. He joined
Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette as a research associate in
its equity department in May 1999. In November 2000, he
joined HSBC Markets (Asia) Limited as its head of Hong
Kong and China property research. In 2005, he joined
Cohen & Steers Asia Limited as an executive director and
a vice-president in its investment research department
and was promoted in January 2007 as a senior vice-
president and Asia Pacific chief investment officer. In June
2009, he joined DBS Vickers (Hong Kong) Limited as its
head of research. From August 2011 to June 2013, he
worked as the chief investment officer of Neutron Greater
China Equity Long/Short Fund as managed by Neutron
INV Partners Limited. From June 2013 to February 2020,
he worked as the executive director, chief executive officer
and responsible officer of New Century Asset Management
Limited, which is the manager of New Century Real Estate
Investment Trust, a REIT previously listed on the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 1275). From March 2014 to
March 2020, he served as an independent non-executive
director of Springland International Holdings Limited, a
company previously listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock
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Code: 1700). From February 2020 to March 2020, he
served as the chief executive officer of FEC Hospitality
REIT Pte. Ltd. Since 17 March 2020, he has been the
chief executive officer of Neutron Pacific Limited. Since
20 August 2021, he has been the responsible officer
of Win Full Investment Management Group Limited.
He became a certified public accountant of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in January
1995, a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in September 1999 and a fellow member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales in September 2017. In June 2010, he received the
Outstanding Chinese Business Leader Award (1 Z= £ 75
¥ 81 EE) from the HongQi (41L& Tl)) and China Report
(FREI¥R38). He graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with a bachelor degree in accountancy in
November 1991.

Mr. Cheung Yat Ming was appointed as a director of
Neutron Greater China Equity Long/Short Fund, an
exempted limited company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 11 June 2010 to conduct securities investment
business. The company had ceased to trade and was
not in operation, had no assets, nor liabilities to creditors,
shareholders or any other third party at the time when
he was one of the directors of the company, and the
shareholders of the company believed that it was for
the best interests of the company to be struck off from
the register of companies in the Cayman Islands. The
company was subsequently struck off from the register
on 31 December 2013. He was also a director of Neutron
Capital Management Ltd., an exempted limited company
incorporated in the Cayman lIslands on 11 June 2010 to
conduct securities investment business. The company had
ceased to trade and was not in operation, it also had no
assets, nor liabilities to creditors, shareholders or any other
third party at the time when he was one of the directors
of the company, and the shareholders of the company
believed that it was for the best interests of the company
to be struck off from the register of companies in the
Cayman Islands. The company was subsequently struck
off from the register on 31 December 2013.
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EXNSREEEBN

Mr. DING Baoshan (] Ell), aged 59, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director of the Company on
8 May 2014. He is also the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of both the Audit Committee
and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Ding was an executive director of
Denway Motors Limited from 2000 to 2007, which was
initially listed on the Stock Exchange but was delisted in
2010 upon its privatisation. Starting from July 2000, Mr.
Ding also worked as the chief economist and the deputy
general manager of Guangzhou Automobile Industry
Group Company Limited (BMAEITEEBEARAR
Al), managing various departments until October 2007.
Starting from 2008, he was the general manager of Beijing
Shengshi Huaxuan Investment Company Limited (1t 7 8%
HESIEE AR A F) until June 2015. From May 2011
to November 2017, he was an independent director of
Qinghai Huading Industrial Company Limited (& /8% 5
EEARAA]), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 600243). Mr. Ding has also taken
up the position as the chairman and an executive director
of Pizu Group Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 8053) since December
2012, and subsequently resigned as the chairman on
15 November 2016, and later resigned as the executive
director on 9 January 2019. From March 2015 to April
2021, Mr. Ding had been an independent director of
Shanxi Guoxin Energy Corporation Limited (L7584 Bl%7
BRI BBR/AT]), a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (Stock code: 600617). Since June 2021,
Mr. Ding has been an independent director of Shanxi
Blue Flame Holding Company Limited (LLI78 &5} 422 % A%
A AR]), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 000968). Mr. Ding graduated from
the Beijing Iron and Steel Institute (1t R IMEE2RT) with a
bachelor degree in mining machinery in July 1985. In June
1988, Mr. Ding completed a master degree in engineering
at Beijing University of Science and Technology (1t
BHEKE) in the PRC. Mr. Ding graduated from China
Social Science Institute ({F BI*- & #EF) with a doctorate
degree in economics in July 1991.
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Mr. KUO Dah Chih, Stanford (35X), aged 62, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director of
the Company on 28 May 2021. He is also a member
of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr. Kuo has
extensive experience in the textile and apparel industry.
Since 1982, Mr. Kuo has served as a managing director
of Gunzetal Limited, which is a leading worldwide supplier
of high quality thread products to the apparel and non-
apparel industry. By engaging in product development
with retailers, Gunzetal Limited is a vertically integrated
thread producer which provides spinning, dyeing,
finishing, and direct distribution to the end sewing users.
Since 1982, he has also served as a managing director
of Woodard Textile Manufacturing Co., Ltd. which is a
leading worldwide supplier of high quality yarn and thread
products to the apparel and non-apparel industry. In
2010, he was appointed as a member of the Executive
Committee of Sustainable Fashion Business Consortium.
From 2012 to 2022, Mr. Kuo was appointed as a member
of the Board of Trustees at Deerfield Academy (USA).
From 2015 to 2022, he has served as the vice-chairman
of Federation of HK Jiangsu Community Organizations.
Since 2015, he had been serving the General Committee
of the Federation of Hong Kong Industries and as the
chairman of Group 17 (Spinning). In 2016, Mr. Kuo was
appointed as the chairman of The Hong Kong Cotton
Spinners Association and a member of the School
Committee of Diocesan Boys’ School. In 2017, Mr. Kuo
was appointed as a member of the General Committee
of Textile Council of Hong Kong. In 2019, he was elected
as the vice-chairman of the Hong Kong Intimate Apparel
Industries’ Association. From 2019 to 2022, Mr. Kuo was
a member of the Vocational Training Council Fashion and
Textile Training Board. In 2020, he was appointed as a
member of the Board of Directors (Class B) of The Hong
Kong Research Institute of Textiles and Apparel Limited
and a director of the Diocesan Boys' School Foundation
Limited and the convenor of Endowment & Administration
Sub-Committee. Mr. Kuo obtained both of his bachelor’s
degree in management and his bachelor's degree in
electrical engineering from Massachusetts Institute of
Technology in the United States of America in 1982.
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tEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard
of corporate governance which is essential to the
sustainable development and growth of the Company.
The Board is of the view that the Company has met all
the applicable code provisions in force set out in the CG
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2022 (the
“Reporting Period”).

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors of the
Company and the Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the Model Code throughout the Reporting
Period.

The Company has also established a code no less
exacting than the Model Code for securities transactions
by senior management who are likely to be in possession
of unpublished price-sensitive or inside information of the
Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Board
comprises nine members, consisting of six executive
Directors, namely Mr. Lu (Chairman of the Board), Mr.
Zhang (Chief Executive Officer), Mr. Wu, Ms. Zheng (Chief
Operating Officer), Mr. Chan (Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary) and Mr. Lu Libin (Chief Strategy
Officer), and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Cheung Yat Ming, Mr. Ding and Mr. Kuo.

The biographical information of the Directors as well as the
relationships between the members of the Board are set
out on pages 63 to 71 of this annual report.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are
held by Mr. Lu and Mr. Zhang respectively. The Chairman
provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning and leadership of the Board. The Chief
Executive Officer focuses on the Company’s business
development and daily management and operations
generally. Their respective responsibilities are clearly
defined and set out in writing.

Independent non-executive Directors

During the Reporting Period, the Board at all times
met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors representing at least one-third of
the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received written confirmation from each
of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of
his independence in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company is of the view that all independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

Directors’ Appointment, Re-election and Retirement

A person may be appointed as a member of the Board at
any time either by the shareholders in general meeting or
by the Board upon recommendation by the Nomination
Committee.

According to the Articles, the Board has the power from
time to time and at any time to appoint any person as a
Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as
an addition to the existing Board. Any Director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
until the first general meeting of shareholders after his/
her appointment and be subject to re-election at such
meeting and any Director appointed by the Board as an
addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until
the next following annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election. Besides, at each
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the
time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least
once every three years.
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Al AR N/
PEERRS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company, and each of the independent
non-executive Directors has signed a letter of appointment
with the Company. All Directors are appointed for a
specific term of three years, subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election in accordance with the Articles.

Pursuant to the aforesaid provisions in the Articles, Mr.
Zhang, Ms. Zheng and Mr. Lu Libin will retire by rotation
at the forthcoming AGM. All the above Directors, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions
of the Board and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic
decisions and performance and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing
and supervising its affairs. Directors of the Board take
decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.

All Directors, including independent non-executive
Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism to
the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the
information of the Company as well as the services
and advice from the company secretary and senior
management. The Directors may, upon request,
seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’'s expenses for
discharging their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of
other offices held by them and the Board regularly reviews
the contribution required from each Director to perform his
responsibilities to the Company.
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The Board reserves for its decision all major matters
relating to policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal
control and risk management, material transactions (in
particular those that may involve conflict of interests),
financial information, appointment of Directors and
other significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the
Board, directing and co-ordinating the daily operation
and management of the Company are delegated to the
management.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Pursuant to the code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code,
all Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant. The Company
should be responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of a listed company director. The
Company updates Directors on the latest development
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements from time to time, in order to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices. The Company also
arranges suitable professional development seminars
and courses for the Directors. For instance, every newly
appointed Director will receive induction on the first
occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and full awareness of Directors’ responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
statutory requirements.

The Directors informed the Company that they had
received sufficient and relevant training and continuous
professional development during the Reporting Period.
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Records of training by the Directors are maintained by the
company secretary. Training records of Directors in 2022
are as follows:

EERXNBIICEBARNERT - EX
R-T - ZFRElReixm T

Directors Type of trainings
2= EINEE
Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. Lu Yuguang EEH LA A&B
Mr. Zhang Haitao DNEED s A&B
Mr. Wu Shaolun RmAEE A&B
Ms. Zheng Tingting gtz + A&B
Mr. Chan Yiu Sing PRIBE A& A B&C
Mr. Lu Libin EWEE A&B
Independent non-executive Directors BAFHITES

Mr. Cheung Yat Ming R—ISEAE A B&C
Mr. Ding Baoshan TEILEE A B&C
Mr. Kuo Dah Chih, Stanford PRI ST A B&C

A reading materials relating to the Group, general business, A: MEAEASKE  —MEK - EmHENEK

latest development of the Listing Rules and other applicable
legal and regulatory requirements

B: attending a training session on directors’ duties and latest
development of the Listing Rules conducted by legal advisers
of the Company

C: attending briefings, seminars, webinar or training courses

BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEES

Under code provision C.5.1 of the CG Code, the Board
should meet regularly and Board meetings should be
held at least four times a year at approximately quarterly
intervals and under code provision C.2.7 of the CG Code,
the chairman of the Board should at least annually hold
meeting with the independent non-executive Directors
without the presence of other Directors.

During the Reporting Period, four Board meetings were
held. In addition, the Chairman held a meeting with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence
of other Directors.

MERIHEMBERERREERENME

B: 2MARERERENNERERRER
LIRS ERNEINN S

C: 2MER - g BREZIRIFIIRE

EXERESEREE

RIFEEEIATRIFTRIEXC.5.11F » &
FeREHAFERABFREDEITORX
(ROBFE—RX) : RELEE AT ST

AEXC27 EFgXFREVEBFA
BUFNTEFRT - RRBAHMESZLE

A ay
e o

RBEHEA > RRARERITHORESTES
e I EFEBUFNTEFRIT R
BAEHEMBESHENEE

76 BEST PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2022



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

A tentative schedule for regular Board meetings will be
provided to the Directors at the beginning of the year. At
least 14 days’ notice for all regular Board mestings will be
given to all Directors and all Directors must be given the
opportunity to include items or businesses for discussion
in the agenda. For all other Board meetings, reasonable
notice will be given. Relevant agenda and accompanying
Board papers will be sent to all Directors at least three
working days in advance of every regular Board meeting.

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the
Company are established with defined written terms of
reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees
are posted on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website and are available to shareholders
upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee
are independent non-executive Directors and the list of
the chairman and members of each Board committee is
set out under “Corporate Information” on page 2 of this
annual report.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 8
May 2014 in compliance with Rules 3.21 and 3.22 of the
Listing Rules. The Audit Committee has three members,
namely, Mr. Cheung Yat Ming, Mr. Ding and Mr. Kuo and
is chaired by Mr. Cheung Yat Ming.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the
Board in reviewing the financial information and reporting
process, risk management and internal control systems
and procedures, audit plan and relationship with external
auditors, and arrangements to enable employees of the
Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters of the Company.
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The full terms of reference of the Audit Committee are
available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company’s website.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee held
three meetings for the purpose of, among other matters,
to review annual results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021, the interim results of the Group for
the six months ended 30 June 2022 and significant issues
on the financial reporting and compliance procedures, risk
management and internal control systems, effectiveness of
the Company’s internal audit function, and arrangements
for stakeholders to raise concerns about possible
improprieties.

The external auditors attended all the above meetings to
discuss with the Audit Committee on issues arising from
the audit and financial reporting matters.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee
on 8 May 2014 in compliance with Rules 3.25 and 3.26 of
the Listing Rules. The Remuneration Committee has three
members, namely Mr. Ding, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Cheung
Yat Ming and is chaired by Mr. Ding.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee
include reviewing and making recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management, the
remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and
senior management, and establishing transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy
and structure to ensure that no Director or any of
his associates will participate in deciding his own
remuneration.

The full terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
are available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company’s website.
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During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee
met one time for the purpose of, among other matters,
reviewing and making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration policy, structure, the remuneration
packages of all Directors and senior management and
other related matters.

The details of the remuneration paid to the Directors for
the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in Note 10
to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of the emoluments of every executive Director,
who are the Company’s senior management, which are
required to be disclosed pursuant to code provision E.1.5
of the CG Code are set out in Note 10 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on
8 May 2014 in compliance Rule 3.27A of the Listing Rules.
The Nomination Committee has three members, namely
Mr. Lu, Mr. Cheung Yat Ming and Mr. Ding and is chaired
by Mr. Lu.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee
include reviewing the Board composition, developing and
formulating relevant procedures for the nomination and
appointment of Directors, making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment and succession planning of
Directors, and assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors.
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The procedures and criteria for the Nomination Committee
to select and recommend candidates for being appointed
as Directors are summarised below:

(@)

80

diversity in all aspects, including but not limited
to skills, knowledge, gender, age, ethnicity,
cultural and educational background, professional
experience and other personal qualities of the
candidate;

ability to exercise sound business judgment and
possess proven achievement and experience in
directorship including effective oversight of and
guidance to management;

commitment of the candidate to devote sufficient
time for the proper discharge of the duties of a
Director;

potential/actual conflicts of interest that may arise if
the candidate is selected;

independence of the independent non-executive
director candidates as required under the Listing
Rules;

in the case of a proposed re-appointment of an
independent non-executive Director, the number of
years he/she has already served; and

identifying any persons who may be suitable and
qualified to become members of the Board and
select, or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of, any persons nominated for
directorships.
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In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination
Committee would take into account various aspects set
out in the Board diversity policy, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of services. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. A summary of the Company’s
board diversity policy is set out on pages 84 to 85 of this
annual report.

The full terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
are available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company’s website.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee
met one time for the purpose of, among other matters,
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board.
The Nomination Committee considered the diversity of
the Board is appropriate and considered the features or
mechanism under the Board and governance structure are
effective in ensuring that independent views and input are
available to the Board.

Corporate Governance

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set
out in the code provision A.2 of the CG Code.

The Company has formulated a comprehensive corporate
governance manual containing various policies and
procedures governing the functioning of the Board
and its committees, appraisal and remuneration, risk
management, financial reporting, conflict of interest,
connected transactions, shareholders’ communication and
other aspects of corporate governance and management
of the Company.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the
Model Code and the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS EERZESHNEERLETHE
AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS
The attendance record of each Director at the Board and BEEFHEAREHENGRNAAAIES
Board committee meetings and general meetings of the ghEEZLE "‘é} FEABRERGH LN
Company held during the Reporting Period is as follows: N
Meetings attended/Meetings held
HESEAY SRETRY
Annual
general  Extraordinary Nomination Remuneration Audit
Name of Directors meeting general meeting Board Committee Committee Committee
ESfF RRBFAE  RREHAS Ezg REZEE FHzSS ENEES
Lu Yuguang 17 1 4/4 1 N/A TER N/A RNEA
EExX
Zhang Haitao 1/1 17 4/4 N/A TEA 1/1 N/A TEA
KEE
Wu Shaolun 1 il 4/4 N/A TE R N/A TR N/A TE R
R
Zheng Tingting 1 1/1 4/4 N/A TER N/A TER N/A TNEA
Ly
Chan Yiu Sing 1 1 4/4 N/A TR N/A FER N/A TER
RIRE
Lu Libin il 17 4/4 N/A TR N/A FER N/A TE R
B
Cheung Yat Ming il il 4/4 i 1 33
k—15
Ding Baoshan il il 4/4 il il 3/3
TEW
Kuo Dah Chih, Stanford N 11 4/4 N/A TR N/A TER 3/3
BN
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report
on pages 90 to 96 of this annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the
Company in respect of audit services and non-audit
services (mainly for review of the condensed consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the six months ended
30 June 2022 and tax compliance services) for the year
ended 31 December 2022 amounted to approximately
HK$2.3 million and approximately HK$0.7 million
respectively.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Group has in place the sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard
shareholders’ investment and assets of the Group.
The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group.
Such risks would include, amongst others, material
risks relating to environmental, social and governance
(“ESG”). The systems are designed to manage the risk
of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. From time to time and at
least once a year, the Board reviews the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group in order to ensure that they meet with the
dynamic and ever changing business environment as
well as the requirements under the Listing Rules. To
enhance the objectiveness and creditability of the review,
an independent audit firm has been engaged to conduct
the appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Audit
Committee, with reference to and based on the internal
audit report issued by the independent audit firm,
conducted a review on the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions, adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting, internal control and financial reporting
functions, as well as those relating to ESG performance
and reporting, and training programmes and budget.
The Board has considered and discussed the internal
audit report issued by the independent audit firm, the
work conducted by the independent audit firm, the Audit
Committee’s view on the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems and their effectiveness. The Board
and the Audit Committee are satisfied with the adequacy
and effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control of the Group.

DIVERSITY

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Diversity
Policy”) on 23 May 2014. A summary of this Diversity
Policy, together with the measurable objectives set for
implementing this policy, and the progress made towards
achieving those objectives are disclosed as below.

Summary of the Board Diversity Policy

In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has
been considered from a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments
will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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Monitoring and Reporting

The Nomination Committee will report annually, in the
corporate governance report, on the Board’s composition
under diversified perspectives, and monitor the
implementation of the Diversity Policy.

As at 31 December 2022, the Board’s diversified
composition was summarized as follows:

10

EEHA

Executive Directors (6)

HITESE©)

Number of Directors

Designation Gender

s MR

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
nine Directors. Three of them are independent non-
executive Directors who do not have any executive or
management role in the Company nor have they been
under the employment of any member of the Group,
thereby promoting critical review and control of the
management process. The Board, after considering the
Nomination Committee’s view, considers that independent
views and inputs in relation to the Company’s affairs
have been maintained. The Board is also characterised
by significant diversity, whether considered in terms
of gender, age, experience, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skKills,
knowledge and length of service.

The Board currently has one female member. The
Board targets to maintain at least the current level of
female representation at all times. In considering the
Board’s succession, the Nomination Committee would
engage independent professional search firm(s) to help
identify potential candidates for Non-executive Directors,
as and when appropriate. The Board will continue to
take opportunities to increase the proportion of female
members over time as and when suitable candidates are
identified.
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Gender Ratio in the Workforce

As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed a total of
9,050 full-time employees (including senior management).
Among which, 64.0% were male employees and 36.0%
were female employees. The Board considers that gender
diversity in the workforce has been maintained. The Group
is determined to maintain gender diversity and equality
in terms of the whole workforce and will also ensure
that there is gender diversity when recruiting staff and is
committed to provide career development opportunities for
all staff. The Board expects the above is achievable with
suitable effort in promoting the gender diversity culture,
which the Group has been advocating for so. Further
details on the information on the Group’s employees will
be disclosed in the Group’s Environmental, Social and
Governance Report 2022, to be separately published by
the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Yiu Sing, the Company Secretary appointed by
the Board, is a full-time employee of the Company; and
in the opinion of the Board, possesses the necessary
qualifications and experience, and is capable of performing
the functions of a company secretary. During the
Reporting Period, Mr. Chan has taken not less than 15
hours of professional training. The Company will continue
to provide funds for Mr. Chan to take not less than 15
hours of appropriate professional training in each financial
year, as required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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INSIDE INFORMATION POLICY AND
PROCEDURES

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong and the Listing Rules and the
overriding principle that inside information should be
announced as soon as reasonably possible when it is the
subject of a decision. The procedures and internal controls
for the handling and dissemination of inside information
are as follows:

(@) the Group conducts its affairs with close regard
to the disclosure requirement under the Listing
Rules as well as the “Guidelines on Disclosure of
Inside Information” published by the Securities and
Futures Commission of Hong Kong in June 2012;

(b) the Group has implemented and disclosed its policy
on fair disclosure by pursuing broad, nonexclusive
distribution of information to the public through
channels such as financial reporting, public
announcements and its website; and

(©) the Group has strictly prohibited unauthorised use
of confidential or inside information.
COMMUNICATIONS WITH

SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication
with shareholders is essential for enhancing investor
relations and investors’ understanding of the Group’s
business performance and strategies. The Company also
recognises the importance of transparency and timely
disclosure of its corporate information, which enables
shareholders and investors to make the best investment
decision.

The Company maintains a website at www.bestpacific.com
as a communication platform with shareholders and
investors, where information and updates on the Group’s
business developments and operations and other
information are available for public access.

Enquiries and suggestions from shareholders or investors
to the Board are welcomed by mail to the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong at 38th Floor,
No. 9 Wing Hong Street, Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon, Hong
Kong or via email to ir@bestpacific.com for the attention of
the Investor Relations Department. Inquiries are dealt with
in an informative and timely manner.
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Besides, shareholders’ mestings provide an opportunity for
communication between the Board and the shareholders.
It is the Company’s general practice that the Chairman of
the Board as well as chairmen of the Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee, or in their absence, their duly appointed
delegates, who are members of the relevant committees,
will be available to answer questions at the general
meetings of the Company. In addition, the Company wiill
invite representatives of the auditor to attend its annual
general meeting to answer shareholders’ questions about
the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content
of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and the
independence of the auditor.

The Board has reviewed the implementation and
effectiveness of the Shareholders’ communication
policy. Having considered the multiple channels of
communication and engagement in place, it is satisfied
that the Shareholder’s communication policy has been
implemented during the Reporting Period and is effective.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on
each substantial issue, including the election of individual
Director, for shareholders’ consideration and voting. The
Company’s shareholders may convene an extraordinary
general meeting (the “EGM”) or put forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings as follows:

(1) Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-
up capital of the Company may request the Board
to convene an EGM pursuant to Article 58 of the
Articles by sending a written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong. The
purpose of requiring such general meeting must be
stated in the written requisition.
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2 If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other
than a retiring Director for election as a Director of
the Company at a general meeting, pursuant to
Article 85 of the Articles, the shareholder (other than
the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend
and vote at the general meeting shall send a written
notice, duly signed by the shareholder, of his/her
intention to propose such person for election and
also a notice signed by the person to be proposed
of his/her willingness to be elected. These notices
should be lodged at the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong, or the office of the
Company’s branch share registrar. The period for
lodgement of such notices shall commence on the
day after the despatch of the notice of such general
meeting and end no later than 7 days prior to the
date of such general meeting.

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must provide
their full name(s), contact details and identification, in the
originally signed written requisition, notice or statement
(as the case may be), in order to give effect thereto.
Information of shareholder(s) may be disclosed as required
by law. Shareholders may refer to the Articles for further
details of the rights of shareholders.

All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meetings
of the Company shall be voted by poll except where
the chairman decides to allow a resolution relating to a
procedural or administrative matter to be voted on by
a show of hands pursuant to the Listing Rules and the
Articles. The poll results shall be posted on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company after each
shareholders’ meeting.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Reporting Period, there was no significant
change in the Articles of the Company.

The latest version of the Articles of the Company is
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
AR G

Deloitte

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

BEST PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Best Pacific Inter national Holdings Limited (the
“Company’) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) set out on pages 97 to 263, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (‘HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Impairment assessment of trade receivables
Key audit matter

We identified impairment assessment of trade receivables
as a key audit matter due to the significance of trade
receivables to the Group’s consolidated financial position
and the involvement of subjective judgement and
management estimates in evaluating the expected credit
losses (‘ECL”) of the Group’s trade receivables at the end
of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’'s net trade
receivables amounting to approximately HK$631.7 million
and out of these trade receivables of approximately
HK$40.8 million were past due.

As disclosed in Note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the management of the Group identifies
trade receivables that are credit-impaired under HKFRS
9 and assesses their ECL individually. The management
of the Group estimates the amount of lifetime ECL of the
remaining trade receivables based on provision matrix
through grouping of various debtors that have similar
loss pattern, after considering internal credit ratings of
trade debtors and/or past due status of respective trade
receivables. The credit loss allowance amount is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows. The
assessment of credit risk of trade receivables involves high
degree of estimation uncertainty.

As disclosed in Note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s lifetime ECL on trade receivables
as at 31 December 2022 amounting to approximately
HK$19.9 million.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment assessment of trade receivables
(Continued)

How our audit address the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of
trade receivables included:

92

Understanding key controls on how the
management of the Group estimates the credit loss
allowance for trade receivables;

Testing the accuracy of information used by the
management of the Group to develop the provision
matrix, including past due trade receivables as
at 31 December 2022, on a sample basis, by
comparing individual items in the analysis with the
relevant sales invoices and monthly statement for
sales;

Challenging management’s basis and judgement
in determining credit loss allowance on trade
receivables as at 31 December 2022, including
their identification of credit-impaired trade
receivables which are assessed for ECL individually,
the reasonableness of management’s grouping of
the remaining trade debtors into different categories
in the provision matrix by internal credit ratings of
trade debtors and/or past due status of respective
trade receivables, and the basis of estimated loss
rates applied in each category in the provision
matrix; and

Testing subsequent settlements of trade
receivables, on a sample basis, by inspecting
supporting documents in relation to cash receipt
from trade debtors subsequent to the end of the
current reporting period.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
pased on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concemn.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Lee Wing Cheong, Wilfred.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GeRmkEMEEmEER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ—ZFT - —F+ - A=+—HILFE

2022 2021
—E-C-F —E-—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BsE TER TAET
Revenue WA 5 4,492,790 4,792,661
Cost of sales SHERM AR (3,642,877) (3,680,829)
Gross profit EH 849,913 1,111,832
Other income HBA 7 49,425 50,694
Other gains and losses Hmles REE 8 58,522 1,906
Net remeasurement of credit loss allowance B HRBARBEEEBE 38
for trade receivables BEETTEF8E 2,670 (11,967)
Selling and distribution expenses HERNHEFRAX (182,788) (202,647)
Administrative expenses TBRFEX (286,637) (336,170)
Research and development costs e g (101,178) (99,205)
Share of result of a joint venture DEEECEEE 2,539 3,906
Finance costs LRV 9 (75,794) (61,732)
Profit before taxation BrE AR A 12 316,672 456,617
Income tax expense FTSRiRAY 13 (33,194) (55,271)
Profit for the year FEREF 283,478 401,346
Other comprehensive (expense) income:  Hftb 2 (B ) Wz :
ltems that may be reclassified HigmpesanEs
subsequently to profit or loss: BRAEE
Exchange differences arising on ME BN EBEER
translation of foreign operations bE =58 (340,456) 98,201
Share of translation reserve of DMEEETENBRE
a joint venture & (873) 918
ltems that will not be reclassified to Hg gsmnEsEns
profit or loss: #IERE :
Remeasurement of retirement benefit BRENEERNER
obligations, net of tax FHE (KR TIE) (1,228) 1,887
Other comprehensive (expense) income for FREMZE (Bx%) k3
the year (342,557) 101,006
Total comprehensive (expense) income for FRZE (Bx%) LM
the year (59,079) 502,352
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to FREGER (&8)
— Owners of the Company — RNRRBE A 299,199 401,794
— Non-controlling interests — R (15,721) (448)
283,478 401,346
Total comprehensive (expense) income FRELEZE (%)
for the year attributable to W EE
— Owners of the Company — RNRRHEEA (42,848) 502,086
- Non-controlling interests — IEFRR R (16,231) 266
(59,079) 502,352
Earnings per share BREF 15
- Basic (HK cents) — EAR GBI 28.77 38.64

BRBEERIERERAR / —E-—FFR)

97



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BB R

As at 31 December 2022 WZ_ZE-_—_#F+-_A=+—H

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B FET FHET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB KR 16 2,818,476 2,925,355
Right-of-use assets CHAEEE 17 287,229 350,376
Interest in a joint venture REELENER 18 39,417 38,669
Deposits e 21 39,409 58,349
Deferred tax assets BIEMIAE E 30 9,071 5,576
3,193,602 3,378,325
Current assets REBEE
Inventories BE 19 1,135,776 1,456,797
Trade and bills receivables B ZRMGIA R EREE 20 654,745 849,430
Other receivables, deposits and HMEWRIE - He & 21
prepayments TEFIE 127,460 128,194
Tax recoverables GRS 4,526 4,783
Pledged bank deposits DR ITTER 22 68,428 121,607
Short term bank deposits RERIRITIE R 22 36,954 163,814
Bank balances and cash IRITHER RIS 22 1,051,165 898,868
3,079,054 3,623,493
Current liabilities i I=Ri
Trade payables B ZENFUR 23 301,525 370,193
Bills payables ANESE 24 227,611 444,038
Other payables and accrued charges Hth e {508 R EEH B 25 289,707 357,062
Contract liabilities GEHEE 26 41,049 34,855
Bank borrowings RITIER 27 1,992,685 1,511,615
Lease liabilities HESE 28 38,177 42,743
Tax payables JEGTIE 10,191 46,745
Derivative financial instrument PTESRTA 29 - 1,092
2,900,945 2,808,343
Net current assets RBEEFE 178,109 815,150
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBERS 3,371,711 4,193,475
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRI R

As at 31 December 2022 A-ZE - —_F+=-_F=+—H

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B FET FBT
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank and other borrowings RITREAE R 27 105,515 648,789
Lease liabilities HEBE 28 93,369 128,972
Deferred income EEWA 14,294 15,390
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBER 30 9,735 9,698
Retirement benefit obligations BIREFEE 32 8,191 9,789
Other liabilities HEtwaE 2,160 7,591
233,264 820,229
Net assets EEFE 3,138,447 3,373,246
Capital and reserves EXRRf#E
Share capital [N 31 10,398 10,398
Reserves fE 3,029,817 3,271,060
Equity attributable to owners of AATEEAEEES
the Company 3,040,215 3,281,458
Non-controlling interests FERER 98,232 91,788
Total equity FERIEEE 3,138,447 3,373,246
The consolidated financial statements on pages 97 to 263 FITEZE263EMMAVKHRKREETETERN
were approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March TECCF-ATEAMEREUNTRE
2023 and are signed on its behalf by: HE
Lu Yuguang Zhang Haitao
EEX RAEE
Chairman Executive Director
TE HITEE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

,\\/ \

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z=—

dE N/
* / ~ uu:un

2ER

T _Ft+-A=t—HLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ADTRE AL
Retirement PRC Non-

Share Share Other benefit Special  statutory Translation Retained controlling Total
Capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity

RIER HE
BE  ROEE  RftfE R KERE  IERRE  RERE  REER axt FERER EREE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FEx TFiEgn TFiEn TiEn TiEn Tign T Fix Fix FEn Fi#gn

(Note a) (Note b) (Note ¢)

(Wizta) (Matb)  (MiEc)
At 1 January 2021 R-B--F-f-A 10,398 593,250 106,715 576 (13,070) 199,079 (16,922) 2,054,277 2,934,303 83878 3,018,181
Profit (loss) for the year FERT (BR) - - - - - - - 401,794 401,794 (448) 401,346

Exchange differences arising on BEENEBELNEL 28

translation of foreign operations - - - - - - 98,201 - 98,201 - 98,201
Share of translation reserve of MhagbrrhERFE

ajoint venture - - - - - - 918 - 918 - 918
Remeasurement of retirement RINEFIEANER

benefit obligations, net of tax it 8 (1B HRTR) - - - 1,173 - - - - 1,173 74 1,887
Other comprehensive income FREMRERE

for the year - - - 1,173 - - 99,119 - 100,292 714 101,006
Total comprehensive income FRZENEEE

for the year - - - 1173 - - 99,119 401,794 502,086 266 502,352
Capital injection from non-controling ~ — M BA R ERKETE

shareholder of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - 7,644 7,644
Transfer from retained profits to ARBENEZPEEERHE

the PRC statutory reserve - - - - - 18,518 - (18,518) - - -
Dividends recognised as distribution ~ BERAIEMRE (iE14)

(Note 14) - - - - - - - (154,931)  (154,931) - (154,931)
At 31 December 2021 R-B--f+-A=+-H 10,398 593,250 106,715 1,749 (13,070) 217,597 82,197 2,282,622 3,281,458 91,788 3,373,246
Profit loss) for the year FERF (58) - - - - - - - 299199 2091199  (15721) 283,478
Exchange differences arising on BREENEBELR

translation of foreign operations EHZE - - - - - - (340,456) - (340,456) - (340,456)
Share of translation reserve of AMEAECFALRE

ajoint venture - - - - - - (873) - (873) - (873)
Remeasurement of retirement RNEREANER

benefit obligations, net of tax HE (EMBRBIE) - - - (718) - - - - (718) (510) (1,228)
Other comprehensive (expense) EREMRE (FR)

income for the year e - - - (718) - - (341,329) - (342,047) (510)  (342,557)
Total comprehensive (expense) FR2E (FX) fased

income for the year - - - (718) - - (341,329) 299,199 (42,848) (16,231) (59,079)
Capital injection from non-controling ~ —RiMEZA RIFHERIREF 4

shareholder of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - 22,675 22,675
Transfer from retained profis to BREBEFBZEETRHE

the PRC statutory reserve - - - - - 14,536 - (14,536) - - -
Dividends recognised s distribution ~ BEZAIEEIIRE (i 14)

(Note 14) - - - - - - - (198395  (198,395) - (198,395)
At 31 December 2022 R=B-—f+=F=1+-H 10,398 593,250 106,715 1,031 (13,070) 232,133  (259,132) 2,368,890 3,040,215 98,232 3,138,447
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Notes:

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GAEREDE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

Other reserve of the Group amounting to approximately
HK$106,715,000 represents the difference between the
nominal value of the shares issued by the Company and
the carrying value of the non-controlling interests held by
Sunbrilliant Capital Investment Limited and Lakefront Capital
Investment Limited and the share capital of Best Pacific
Textile Holdings Limited (‘BPT Holdings”) prior to the
completion of a group reorganisation on 16 January 2014.

Several subsidiaries of the Company provided financial
guarantees to its related companies and the fair value of the
financial guarantees was recognised as deemed distribution
to the shareholders at initial recognition. These financial
guarantees were released in previous years.

The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) statutory reserve
is non-distributable until the end of the operation periods of
respective PRC subsidiaries. The transfer to this reserve is
determined according to the relevant laws in the PRC and by
the board of directors of the PRC subsidiaries in accordance
with the Articles of Association of the subsidiaries. It can be
used to make up for previous year’s losses or convert into
additional capital of the PRC subsidiaries of the Company
upon approval from the relevant authority in the PRC.

BEE -

BRBEERIERERAR / —E-—FFR)

REBMEAMHEFEL 106,715,000 7T © 35
A E)EELT 2 B E{E B Sunbrilliant Capital
Investment Limited & Lakefront Capital
Investment Limited A8 & JE1ER% 12 AR E (B
RBRGHERERAR ([BRABSIER])
Rl —E—MF— A+ <BREESHF
HIRA 2 =50 -

ARRETHEAR BEBE R RRETSE
ER - BBEROAFERERERRER
RRERARRD K - ZFVBERDRBE
FEMR -

REARKAE ([HE)) ZEFRBEESTD
BB AR EERRBTAIDIK « HZ#iH
HBEHPRENBELARNEZTSRENELR
AMABEIZARIRPEARERETE - &
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gzqﬂ B A R EF BRI BRI
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FaBTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E - FE - —“F+-A=+—HILFE

2022 2021
—EBC-CE %
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER FAEL
Operating activities RETH
Profit before taxation BT A& A 316,672 456,617
Adjustments for: BTIIRBELRE
Interest income FIEMA (16,038) (21,850)
Finance costs RERA 75,794 61,732
Share of result of a joint venture NMEEELEREE (2,539) (3,906)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 0E - BERZERE 327,107 333,972
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 46,410 30,689
Change in fair value of a derivative financial instrument TESBTANDFEES (1,092) (310)
Gain from bargain purchase from acquisition of a WEE—REBORERE R
business - (3,900
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEYE - BEREEESE 4217 135
Net remeasurement of credit loss allowance for trade BN EEEBEREEN
receivables EFE (2,670) 11,967
Amortisation of deferred income 3o TN (2,792) (2,883)
Allowance for slow-moving inventories T SR 41,426 35,151
Unrealised exchange gain arising on translation of MBS EERHIREPELR
current accounts within group entities RERPE H e (44,197) (17,173)
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital ‘2E& ¢ ZHAINELRETE 738,508 880,241
Decrease (increase) in inventories BERD (510) 219,550 (633,084)
Decrease (increase) in trade and bills receivables BHREWTIERERERR D (Em) 174,643 (45,788)
Decrease (increase) in other receivables, deposits and HEKHE - e REMRERD
prepayments (4hn) 8,707 (49,036)
(Decrease) increase in trade payables BHREMFIECRD) Em (55,552) 123,576
(Decrease) increase in bills payable FERZE O B (191,540) 111,146
(Decrease) increase in other payables and accrued charges A fE(T B R E B (L) &0 (50,940) 48,434
Increase in contract liabilities BHBEE 6,837 1,360
(Decrease) increase in retirement benefit obligations RIKBFIET CB) 10 (4,063) 1,041
Cash generated from operations REXBMERE 846,150 537,890
Income tax paid BRI (72,589) (15,217)
Net cash from operating activities REZDERLFR 773,561 522,673
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

'iﬂ/\

A

N =
i/}zﬁifﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

2022 2021
—E-CF —E--F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bzt FET THEL
Investing activities REEH
Placement of pledged bank deposits FHEERRITER (146,157) (233,410)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits RREEARITER 191,573 191,050
Interest received w2 h) 16,572 20,509
Addition of property, plant and equipment AEWE - BFEREE (366,006) (224,599)
Cash outflow on acquisition of a business WEEEB 2 BE RN 33 - (27,598)
Government grants received BRSNS 2,531 1,473
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and ﬁ’i%% R R EME
equipment A 9,597 7,254
Placement of short term bank deposits with original ~~ FIREZ|IHERBE=A 2
maturity over 3 months RBBRTER (38,239) (161,645)
Withdrawal of short term bank deposits with original ~ REURZIHB#EB={E7 2
maturity over 3 months RERITEX 155,272 8,536
Dividend income received from interest on a REREELERERNRE
joint venture LN - 906
Repayment from related companies REBEA 7 HBR 519 385
Advance to related companies ) BB N AV - (26)
Advance form related companies PEL kNGl o 110 2,890
Net cash used in investing activities RETHRARSTE (174,228) (414,275)
Financing activities MEEE
Interests paid ERFIE (90,883) (66,221)
Dividends paid BERRE (198,395) (154,931)
Capital injection from a non-controlling shareholder of ~ —F& B2 A1 FEFEAR
a subsidiary BETE 22,675 7,644
New bank borrowings raised FILRITER 1,584,596 2,652,182
New syndicated loan raised BEEER - 873,656
New other borrowing raised AIEE AR 35,491 25,116
Repayment of lease liabilities EEEEEAE (38,899) (20,745)
Repayment of bank borrowings BIERTER (1,343,852) (2,560,939)
Repayment of syndicated loan ERERER (328,856) (1,148,781)
(Repayment) drawdown of bank overdrafts (B8) BRBITES (19,425) 29,111
Net cash used in financing activities RETHRARSTFE (377,548) (363,908)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents BeRBRLZEMRIFR 221,785 (255,510)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning ENNRERELEEY
of the year 898,868 1,092,855
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXREHHTE (69,488) 61,523
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year, FRONBERBEGEEY
represented by BATIER % 1,051,165 898,868
Bank balances and cash RITRHEERS 22 1,051,165 898,868
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E - FE - —“F+-A=+—HILFE

104

GENERAL INFORMATION

Best Pacific International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is a public company incorporated
as an exempted company and registered in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability under the
Companies Law Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands on
14 June 2013. Its immediate and ultimate holding
company is Grandview Capital Investment Limited,
which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
(“BVI’) and is wholly owned by Mr. Lu Yuguang
(“Mr. Lu”), who is the Chairman and executive
director of the Company. The Company’s shares
have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 23 May 2014. The address
of the Company’s registered office and principal
place of business are disclosed in the corporate
information section to the annual report.

The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) are manufacturing and
trading of elastic fabric, lace and elastic webbing.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries
are set out in Note 41.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong
Kong dollar (“HK$”), which is the same as the
presentation currency of the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

21 Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current
year

In the current year, the Group has applied
the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“‘HKICPA”) for
the first time, which are mandatorily effective
for the Group’s annual periods beginning on
1 January 2022 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the
Conceptual
Framework

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 2021

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment -
Proceeds before
Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts —
Cost of Fulfiling a
Contract

Amendments to HKFRSs ~ Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2018-
2020

The application of the amendments to
HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures
set out in these consolidated financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI A

w3

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z=—

106

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

2.2 New and amendments to HKFRSs in
issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the
following new and amendments to HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

HKFRS 17 (including the Insurance Contracts'
October 2020 and February
2022 Amendments to
HKFRS 17)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and  Sale or Contribution of Assets

HKAS 28 between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint
Venture?
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as

Current or Non-current

and related amendments

to Hong Kong

Interpretation 5 (2020)°
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with

Covenants®
Amendments to HKAS 1and  Disclosure of Accounting

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Policies’

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates'

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction'

- —FH+-_A=+—HIEFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

22 New and amendments to HKFRSs in
issue but not yet effective (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after a date to be determined.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or
1 January 2024.

Except for the amendments to HKFRSs
mentioned below, the directors of the
Company anticipate that the application of all
other new and amendments to HKFRSs will
have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification
of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current (the “2020 Amendments”) and
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current
Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022
Amendments”)

The 2020 Amendments provide clarification
and additional guidance on the assessment
of right to defer settlement for at least twelve
months from reporting date for classification
of liabilities as current or non-current, which:

° specify that the classification of
liabilities as current or non-current
should be based on rights that are in
existence at the end of the reporting
period. Specifically, the 2020
Amendments clarify that:

0] the classification should not
be affected by management
intentions or expectations to
settle the liability within 12
months; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS 2. [
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL )

REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

22 New and amendments to HKFRSs in
issue but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification
of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current (the “2020 Amendments”) and
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current
Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022
Amendments”) (Continued)

(ii) if the right is conditional
on the compliance with
covenants, the right exists if
the conditions are met at the
end of the reporting period,
even if the lender does not test
compliance until a later date;
and

° clarify that if a liability has terms
that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement
by the transfer of the entity’s own
equity instruments, these terms do
not affect its classification as current
or non-current only if the entity
recognises the option separately
as an equity instrument applying
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation.

In addition, Hong Kong Interpretation 5
was revised as a consequence of the
Amendments to HKAS 1 to align the
corresponding wordings with no change in
conclusion.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

22 New and amendments to HKFRSs in
issue but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification
of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current (the “2020 Amendments”) and
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current
Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022
Amendments”) (Continued)

The 2022 Amendments modify the
requirements introduced by the 2020
Amendments on how an entity classifies
debt and other financial liabilities with
covenants as current or non-current. The
amendments specify that only covenants
with which the entity is required to comply
with on or before the end of the reporting
period affect the entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting date. Covenants
which are required to comply with only after
the reporting period do not affect whether
that right exists at the end of the reporting
period.

The amendments also specify the disclosure
requirements about information that enables
users of financial statements to understand
the risk that the liabilities could become
repayable within twelve months after the
reporting period, if the entity classifies
liabilities arising from loan arrangements as
non-current when the entity’s right to defer
settlement of those liabilities is subject to
the entity complying with covenants within
twelve months after the reporting period.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities
as at 31 December 2022, the application
of the amendments will not result in
reclassification of the Group’s liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS

2.2

110

New and amendments to HKFRSs in
issue but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of
Accounting Policies

HKAS 1 is amended to replace all instances
of the term “significant accounting policies”
with “material accounting policy information”.
Accounting policy information is material
if, when considered together with other
information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make
on the basis of those financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting
policy information may be material because
of the nature of the related transactions,
other events or conditions, even if the
amounts are immaterial. However, not
all accounting policy information relating
to material transactions, other events or
conditions is itself material. If an entity
chooses to disclose immaterial accounting
policy information, such information must
not obscure material accounting policy
information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making
Materiality Judgements (the “Practice
Statement”) is also amended to
illustrate how an entity applies the “four-
step materiality process” to accounting
policy disclosures and to judge whether
information about an accounting policy is
material to its financial statements. Guidance
and examples are added to the Practice
Statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

22 New and amendments to HKFRSs in
issue but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of
Accounting Policies (Continued)

The application of the amendments is not
expected to have significant impact on the
financial position or performance of the
Group but may affect the disclosures of
the Group'’s significant accounting policies.
The impacts of application, if any, will be
disclosed in the Group’s future consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of
Accounting Estimates

The amendments define accounting
estimates as “monetary amounts in financial
statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty”. An accounting policy may
require items in financial statements
to be measured in a way that involves
measurement uncertainty — that is, the
accounting policy may require such items
to be measured at monetary amounts that
cannot be observed directly and must
instead be estimated. In such a case, an
entity develops an accounting estimate
to achieve the objective set out by the
accounting policy. Developing accounting
estimates involves the use of judgements or
assumptions based on the latest available,
reliable information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

2.2

112

New and amendments to HKFRSs in
issue but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

In addition, the concept of changes in
accounting estimates in HKAS 8 is retained
with additional clarifications.

The application of the amendments is not
expected to have significant impact on the
Groups’ consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax
related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of
the recognition exemption of deferred
tax liabilities and deferred tax assets
in paragraphs 15 and 24 of HKAS 12
Income Taxes so that it no longer applies
to transactions that, on initial recognition,
give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences.

The Group will further assess whether
application of the amendments will have an
impact on the deferred tax. The impacts
on application, if any, will be disclosed in
the Group’s future consolidated financial
statements.

BEST PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2022

E M B R E KB HE] B
BB EENREBTA (&)

ERGERNESR (BT F)
B taati9ESE (&)

B5h - BB RIERIESHNOE
S S 2 E AT URE
W — R -

EAZEEIATEHIGHA
SENGEMBHRREKEKX

B 48R
HE o

BRI ERE125 (BFTA)
HE-XGELZCEERER
B ZEEHE

ZIBEI AT BB G AR
F125 AT/ F1SERTNE 24 ER
FEEHIEEEMELEHIEE
ERRANHCEGE FETH
HAREVRERAREESSE
FEMTA IR TR EEZER

AEBEKE - HFERERBZS
ERIREEH AEBIELRIA
EREE - BANTE (IE)
R AR B RE R & B 75 R
RAWE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA. For the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, information is considered
material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decision made by
primary users. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on the historical cost
basis except for a financial instrument that
are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange
for goods and services.
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114

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liability, the Group
takes into account the characteristics of
the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability
at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes
in these consolidated financial statements
is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment (“HKFRS 2"), leasing transactions
that are accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 16 Leases (“HKFRS 16”), and
measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 /nventories
or value in use in HKAS 36 /mpairment of
Assets (“HKAS 36”).

A fair value measurement of a non-
financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (Continued)

For financial instruments which are
transacted at fair value and a valuation
technique that unobservable inputs is to be
used to measure fair value in subsequent
periods, the valuation technique is calibrated
so that at initial recognition the results of the
valuation technique equals the transaction
price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes,
fair value measurements are categorised into
Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its
entirety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement
date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than
quoted prices included within Level
1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly;
and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable
inputs for the asset or liability.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the
investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to
affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or
not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins
when the Group obtains control over the
subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income from
the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit
palance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to
the financial statements of subsidiaries to
bring their accounting policies into line with
the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries
are presented separately from the Group’s
equity therein, which represent present
ownership interests entitling their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

BEST PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Business combinations

A business is an integrated set of activities
and assets which includes an input and
a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to
create outputs. The acquired processes
are considered substantive if they are
critical to the ability to continue producing
outputs, including an organised workforce
with the necessary skills, knowledge, or
experience to perform the related processes
or they significantly contribute to the ability
to continue producing outputs and are
considered unique or scarce or cannot be
replaced without significant cost, effort, or
delay in the ability to continue producing
outputs.

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted
for using the acquisition method. The
consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-
date fair values of the assets transferred by
the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group
to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HMEVBHRREHREERTIE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STBUR ()

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies 3.2 FEEHHBE(E)
(Continued)

EBas(E)

RUHE B - PR s 2 A
BEMMAZEZBBEAERF

Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed

are recognised at their fair value, except BER - BRINEA -
that:
o deferred tax assets or liabilities, BB EESEE &

and assets or liabilities related to
employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 /ncome
Taxes (“HKAS 12") and HKAS 19
Employee Benefits (“HKAS 19”)
respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments
related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements
of the Group entered into to replace
share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 at the
acquisition date (see the accounting
policy below);

° assets (or disposal groups) that
are classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that
standard; and
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

BEST PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

o lease liabilities are recognised and
measured at the present value
of the remaining lease payments
(as defined in HKFRS 16) as if the
acquired leases were new leases at
the acquisition date. Right-of-use
assets are recognised and measured
at the same amount as the relevant
lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect
favourable or unfavourable terms
of the lease when compared with
market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the
sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests
in the acquiree, and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree (if any) over the net amount
of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed as at acquisition date.
If, after re-assessment, the net amount
of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are initially measured at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets or at fair value. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis.

Interests in joint ventures

A joint venture is a joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have joint control
of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control
is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require
unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of
joint ventures are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of joint ventures used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of
the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity
method, an investment in a joint venture
is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the joint
venture. Changes in net assets of the joint
venture other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted
for unless such changes resulted in changes
in ownership interest held by the Group.
When the Group’s share of losses of joint
venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that
joint venture (which includes any long term
interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the joint venture),
the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the joint
venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes a joint venture.
On acquisition of the investment in a joint
venture or acquisition of additional interest
in a joint venture, any excess of the cost of
the investment over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised
as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an
objective evidence that the interest in a
joint venture may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying
amount of the investment (including goodwill)
is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs of disposal)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised is not allocated to any
asset, including goodwill that forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to
the extent that the recoverable amount of
the investment subsequently increases.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HMEVBBRFEHREERTE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EBR (#)

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies 3.2 FEEHBE(E)
(Continued)
Interests in joint ventures (Continued) REELENER (&)
When a group entity transacts with a joint ESEEREASEENEGED
venture of the Group (such as a sale or ¥ETRS (LWEE) & -
purchase), profits and losses resulting from HELEPENRFHFIEAMNIE
the transactions with the joint venture are mERRAEENELG A TR
recognised in the Group’s consolidated = MEERNERNEELHERE
financial statements only to the extent of EAREGEDENER -
interests in the joint venture that are not
related to the Group.
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEHZBA

The Group recognises revenue when (or
as) a performance obligation is satisfied,
i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good
or service (or a bundle of goods or services)
that is distinct or a series of distinct goods
or services that are substantially the same.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue
is recognised over time by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of
the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided
by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or
enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not
create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has
an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point
in time when the customer obtains control of
the distinct good or service.

The Group’s revenue from sales of goods
is recognised at a point in time when goods
are delivered and control has been passed
to customers.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. BEMKBREREERTE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SEBE (&)
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies 3.2 FEEHBE(E)
(Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFAEHNZWA (&)

(Continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s
obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration
is due) from the customer.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until
there is reasonable assurance that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in
profit or loss on a systematic basis over
the periods in which the Group recognises
as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose
primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as
deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the useful lives of the related
assets.

Government grants related to income
that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss (as
other income) in the period in which they
become receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is
recognised as an expense in the period in
which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset
arising from development activities (or
from the development phase of an internal
project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

° the technical feasibility of completing
the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale;

° the intention to complete the
intangible asset and use or sell it;

o the ability to use or sell the intangible
asset;
° how the intangible asset will generate

probable future economic benefits;

° the availability of adequate technical,
financial and other resources to
complete the development and to use
or sell the intangible asset; and

° the ability to measure reliably
the expenditure attributable to
the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-
generated intangible asset is the sum of
the expenditure incurred from the date
when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria listed above. Where no
internally-generated intangible asset can
be recognised, development expenditure is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HMEVBBRRGHREERIE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SETEE &)
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies 3.2 FEEHBE(E)
(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment M- BERSEE

Property, plant and equipment, other than
properties in the course of construction
for production, supply or administrative
purposes, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

Properties in the course of construction
for production, supply or administrative
purposes are carried at cost, less recognised
impairment loss. Costs include any costs
directly attributable to bringing the asset to
the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management including costs
of testing whether the related assets are
functioning properly, and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. Sale proceeds of items that are
produced while bringing an item of property,
plant and equipment to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by
management (such as samples produced
when testing whether the asset is functioning
properly), and the related costs of producing
those items are recognised in the profit or
loss. The costs of those items are measured
in accordance with the measurement
requirements of HKAS 2. Depreciation of
these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write
off the cost of assets (other than the
construction in progress) less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment
is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Ownership interests in leasehold land and
building

When the Group makes payments for
ownership interests of properties which
includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is
allocated between the leasehold land and
the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition. To
the extent the allocation of the relevant
payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “right-of-
use assets” in the consolidated statement
of financial position. When the consideration
cannot be allocated reliably between non-
lease building element and undivided interest
in the underlying leasehold land, the entire
properties are classified as property, plant
and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or
after the date of initial application or arising
from business combinations, the Group
assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception or modification date. Such
contract will not be reassessed unless the
terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

The Group as lessee
Short term leases

The Group applies the short term lease
recognition exemption to leases of staff
quarters, warehouses, office premises,
motor vehicles and machinery and
equipment that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option.
Lease payment on short term leases is
recognised as expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HMEVBHRREHREERTIE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STBUR ()

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies 3.2 FEEHHBE(E)

(Continued)

Leases (Continued) HE (&)

The Group as lessee (Continued) KEFEZABA (E)

Right-of-use assets FERAEEE

The cost of right-of-use asset includes: FRBEENKAEE

. the amount of the initial measurement . HEBEBENVIRTES
of the lease liability; L

. any lease payments made at or . F s B Hisk 2 ATEL A
before the commencement date, less HHEERNFOREA 2 UK
any lease incentives received; MEER:

. any initial direct costs incurred by the . AEEEEMERAIBE
Group; and 28R &

. an estimate of costs to be incurred . REEFR LB REBE
by the Group in dismantling and E - WERBEEEMETS
removing the underlying assets, M HAEREEREZME
restoring the site on which it is B GFR  GR PR E AR RE
located or restoring the underlying 1S EEREFTAA ©

asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, R EERK AR AR RE
less any accumulated depreciation and WERREEBETE  WitH
impairment losses, and adjusted for any EaEMERESRTEELHA
remeasurement of lease liabilities. o
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132

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of
the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term are depreciated from
commencement date to the end of the
useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the
lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as
a separate line item on the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are
accounted under HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in
the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease,
the Group recognises and measures the
lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is
not readily determinable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The lease payments include:

° fixed payments (including in-

substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend
on an index or a rate, initially
measured using the index or rate as
at the commencement date;

° amounts expected to be payable
by the Group under residual value
guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase

option if the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating
a lease, if the lease term reflects
the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease
liabilities are adjusted by interest accretion
and lease payments.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and
makes a corresponding adjustment to the
related right-of-use assets) whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there
is a change in the assessment of
exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the date of
reassessment.

° the lease payments change due
to changes in market rental rates
following a market rent review in
which cases the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using the
initial discount rate.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification
as a separate lease if:

° the modification increases the scope
of the lease by adding the right to use
one or more underlying assets; and

° the consideration for the
leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-
alone price for the increase in scope
and any appropriate adjustments
to that stand-alone price to reflect
the circumstances of the particular
contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)
LLease modifications (Continued)

For a lease modification that is not
accounted for as a separate lease, the
Group remeasures the lease liability based
on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement
of lease liabilities by making corresponding
adjustments to the relevant right-of-use
asset. When the modified contract contains
a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component
on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. BEMBBREREEREER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BETEE(#)
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies 3.2 IFEESHBE(E)

(Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the
Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets
are estimated individually. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount
individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether
there is indication that corporate assets
may be impaired. If such indication exists,
corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, when a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset
(or a cash-generating unit) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion
of corporate assets which cannot be
allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group
of cash-generating units, including the
carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to
that group of cash-generating units, with the
recoverable amount of the group of cash-
generating units. In allocating the impairment
loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwiill
(if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below
the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have
been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit or
the group of cash-generating units. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. BEMKBREREERTE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SETHE &)
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies 3.2 FEEHBE(E)

(Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets
(Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
(or cash-generating unit or a group of
cash-generating units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group
of cash-generating units) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of
each individual group entity, transactions
in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the
settlement of monetary items, and on
the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the
consolidated financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting
period, and their income and expenses are
translated at the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case,
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of translation
reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. @ﬁ’,ﬂ iﬁﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁzgﬁﬁﬂig
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL = 5T I
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies 3.2 FEEHBEE)
(Continued)
Employee benefits EEER
Retirement benefit costs RIKEBFIE A
Payments to defined contribution retirement ﬁ TSGR A ET S (F17n
benefit plans (such as state-managed %”é;fiﬂﬁﬂﬁa FIET & - 58
retirement benefit schemes, the Mandatory ’|E’D\ BB B RE2RE
Provident Fund Scheme and the State ﬁ/ﬁ) S ATHIFRIE ’]E’ME,% =
Social Insurance Fund) are recognised as 12 1 AR 75 LA /8 HE 78 HR 4 3K B 1
an expense when employees have rendered E@%F’fﬁi‘i
service entitling them to the contributions.
For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, MATEAERIKEFGE M
the cost of providing benefits is determined s REREEMNONATIERAE
using the projected unit credit method, with FTEMA MK AER S FEE R
actuarial valuations being carried out at SHEAERNETHEESMG T
the end of each annual reporting period. In NETE BEAKSENRER
determining the present value of the Group’s MEENRAEREENE PR
defined benefit obligations and the related T RS K 38 15 AR 75 Ak AR (40 3@
current service cost and, where applicable, B BEZTENEMNAR -
past service cost, the Group attributes REE K@M EBREAN R
benefit to periods of service under the plan’s %o AT WEEIE TaART
benefit formula. However, if an employee’s FEELZAESMNEH - K
service in later years will lead to a materially SEeUEREEUNTRER
higher level of benefit than earlier years, the A
Group attributes the benefit on a straight-line
basis from:
(@  the date when service by the (@ HEBINZTEETH
employee first leads to benefits under BRI 2 A B A B
the plan (whether or not the benefits B (Twmzmies g
are conditional on further service) BIRTE B
()  the date when further service by the (o) BRIEBERS - ZeTEIE

employee will lead to no material
amount of further benefits under the
plan, other than from further salary
increases.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Retirement benefit costs (Continued)

Remeasurement, comprising actuarial
gains and losses, the effect of the changes
to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the
return on plan assets (excluding interest),
is reflected immediately in the consolidated
statement of financial position with a charge
or credit recognised in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they
occur. Remeasurement recognised in
other comprehensive income is reflected
immediately in retained profits and will not
be reclassified to profit or loss.

Past service cost is recognised in profit or
loss in the period of a plan amendment or
curtailment and a gain or loss on settlement
is recognised when settlement occurs.
When determining past service cost, or a
gain or loss on settlement, an entity shall
remeasure the net defined benefit liability
or asset using the current fair value of plan
assets and current actuarial assumptions,
reflecting the benefits offered under the plan
and the plan assets before and after the
plan amendment, curtailment or settlement,
without considering the effect of asset ceiling
(i.e. the present value of any economic
benefits available in the form of refunds from
the plan or reductions in future contributions
to the plan).

REMBBRREREERTE
BRTEE(#)

3.2 FREFHEER(AE)

BERA (&)
BIKEFIL A (&)
BRBERaLER  BEL

BE(MEENE) ZEHNE
HMEtERNEELHEANEG
BRI KRR - R E A
2 Wt ARERIOER G A ©
PRE A 2 H WS N R Z B
AAERERBRRREEN - B

KA gEfsBERA -

B E IR A AR & EHE R] Al
AR AERERER  MEEZ
Wassk BB IR S E B LR
R RETBERBEAE =K
BEZBANEER  BRA
FERFEEEE MM FER
BREBRRXEFFTERTENE
BREEFRE  RERGEE
7 BUR A TS AR R B ET 8
Met8lBEmREHNETN - B
TEBEELRZFE (BRI
B &t 81 R FR kAT &1 /9 R R ALK
B BRI XA B A o] 487 ) 25
MERE) °

BEERERERAT/ —E- —FER 141



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= A

wN ([

R ey i

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E - FE - —“F+-A=+—HILFE

142

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Retirement benefit costs (Continued)

Net interest is calculated by applying the
discount rate at the beginning of the period
to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
However, if the Group remeasures the net
defined benefit liability or asset before plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement,
the Group determines net interest for the
remainder of the annual reporting period
after the plan amendment, curtailment or
settlement using the benefits offered under
the plan and the plan assets after the plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement
and the discount rate used to remeasure
such net defined benefit liability or asset,
taking into account any changes in the net
defined benefit liability or asset during the
period resulting from contributions or benefit
payments.

Defined benefit costs are categorised as
follows:

° service cost (including current service
cost, past service cost, as well as
gains and losses on curtailments and

settlements);
o net interest expense or income; and
° remeasurement.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial
position represents the actual deficit or
surplus in the Group’s defined benefit plans.
Any surplus resulting from this calculation is
limited to the present value of any economic
benefits available in the form of refunds
from the plans or reductions in future
contributions to the plans.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Retirement benefit costs (Continued)

Discretionary contributions made by
employees or third parties reduce service
cost upon payment of these contributions to
the plan.

When the formal terms of the plans specify
that there will be contributions from
employees or third parties, the accounting
depends on whether the contributions are
linked to service, as follows:

o If the contributions are not linked to
services (for example contributions
are required to reduce a deficit arising
from losses on plan assets or from
actuarial losses), they are reflected in
the remeasurement of the net defined
benefit liability or asset.

° If contributions are linked to services,
they reduce service costs. For
the amount of contribution that is
dependent on the number of years
of service, the entity reduces service
cost by attributing the contributions to
periods of service using the attribution
method required by HKAS 19
paragraph 70 for the gross benefits.
For the amount of contribution that is
independent of the number of years
of service, the entity reduces service
cost in the period in which the related
service is rendered.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Termination benefits

A liability for a termination benefit is
recognised at the earlier of when the Group
entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the
termination benefit and when it recognises
any related restructuring costs.

Short term and other long term employee
benefits

Short term employee benefits are recognised
at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid as and when
employees rendered the services. All short
term employee benefits are recognised as
an expense unless another HKFRS requires
or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the
cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing
to employees (such as wages and salaries
and annual leave) after deducting any
amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long
term employee benefits are measured at the
present value of the estimated future cash
outflows expected to be made by the Group
in respect of services provided by employees
up to the reporting date. Any changes in the
liabilities” carrying amounts resulting from
service cost, interest and remeasurements
are recognised in profit or loss except to
the extent that another HKFRS requires
or permits their inclusion in the cost of an
asset.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until
such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remains
outstanding after the related asset is ready
for its intended use or sale is included in
the general borrowing pool for calculation
of capitalisation rate on general borrowings.
Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of
the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on
taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from “profit before taxation” as
reported in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding
tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and
interest in joint venture, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
is reviewed at the end of the reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
for leasing transactions in which the Group
recognises the right-of-use assets and
the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are
attributable to the right-of-use assets or the
lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease
liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
requirements to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. Temporary
differences relating to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities are not recognised at
initial recognition and over the lease terms
due to application of the initial recognition
exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income
taxes levied to the same taxable entity by
the same taxation authority.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised
in profit or loss, except when they relate
to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the
consolidated statement of financial position
include:

(@ cash, which comprises of cash
on hand and demand deposits,
excluding bank balances that are
subject to regulatory restrictions that
result in such balances no longer
meeting the definition of cash; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprise
of short-term (generally with original
maturity of three months or less),
highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible to a known amount
of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in
value and restricted deposits arising
from pre-sale of properties that are
held for meeting short-term cash
commitments. Cash equivalents are
held for the purpose of meeting short-
term cash commitments rather than
for investment or other purposes.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents (Continued)

For the purposes of the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents as defined above, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.
Such overdrafts are presented as short-term
borrowings in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Inventories

Inventories mainly consist of textile products
and are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost of inventories
is calculated using the weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale.
Costs necessary to make the sale include
incremental costs directly attributable to the
sale and non-incremental costs which the
Group must incur to make the sale.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value except for
trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured
in accordance with HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers (‘HKFRS
15”). Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”))
are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating
interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts and payments (including
all fees and points paid or received that form
an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement
of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at
amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective is to
collect contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

REMBBRREREERTE

SEBGR (&)
3.2 FEEHBE(E)
SRWMIA(E)

BEST PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2022

ERNEZEZRFTEEREER
T BB AR M AR
MEBWARME R D EHT
EoBERENMERDERBRA RS
MEESCRBERTFHX
(EE) BRERENGE B’
R YRR (BRERERE
BERMEARIEREE D 2 — 1)
ENKERMEZEER R
DA R E AR B ITE) EX
BRI M AREFEM R

EHMEE
EREEN DB NLETE

30|

AR MR EREERR
HESHX AT E

o SREERBMNBKEA
MBS REZEHEAT
BE K

. BRMRFNEE R HESL
ZHREREBMERNAR
ERAREEAEZFE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement
of financial assets (Continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently
measured at FVTPL, except that at the
date of initial recognition of a financial asset
the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in other comprehensive
income if that equity investment is neither
held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 applies.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method for financial assets
measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the
credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial
asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer
credit-impaired.

3.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment
under expected credit loss (‘ECL”) model
on financial assets (including trade and bills
receivables, other receivables and deposits,
pledged bank deposits, short term bank
deposits, bank balances) which are subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS
9. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will
result from all possible default events over
the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”)
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that
is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting date. Assessment are done
based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL
for trade receivables. Trade receivables that
are credit-impaired are assessed for ECL
individually. The ECL on the remaining trade
receivables are assessed collectively using a
provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

REMBBRREREERTE
BRTEE#)

3.2 FESHBE(E)

SRMITAE(E)
TREE (&)
T REERE
AEBEREEHEESE (A
HEEEE]) BEXARRERS
RS R BB 957 B TR E T
HHEREE (BIEE 5 BN
BN EREE - HaEKRERIE
Mike - E}mﬁﬁ TIFER L
HASRITIE R~ SR1TAEER) 1T
B L - EEHEEEESER
BEMEAHET  URBAEE
/AEEPPSLAX{:T BREY &AL o

T HEBREEEEEHABETLA
R TEET FEA R FT A 7] BE Y IE %Y
EHBEANBEHEESSE -
B - 12@ABHEEEIR
([12BRAEHEERRE]) &
FEENHRE BHE12@ AR
RREBEEMEHNEHERNT S
THEBHEEBE - FHEIR
FK%IL&FEﬁE%%
WHEEAFENAE -
—&%ﬁ AW EIE S =l
V& B AR R R R SR O TE DRI AY
FHEEL T -

NEEBKRIE S ERFIAE

REMBHEEEE - #41E

EREZE 5 EWRIE B TE

EEEBEBEETRENGM - 8T

RN IBENEHEESE

Tﬂ%ﬁﬁ BEARN B EERE
ITEREET(E

BAERRERERAR/ —E-—F5RK 155



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= A

wN ([

156

R ey i

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial assets at amortised
cost, the Group measures the credit loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when
there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, in which
case the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the
Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. WMEVBEBRRGEREERFTE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SEBER (#)

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies 3.2 FEEHBE(E)
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) SRMIA(E)
Financial assets (Continued) THEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) TREERE (&)
(i) Significant increase in credit risk (i) BRI ARIE N (&)

(Continued)

In particular, the following information FRIZ  ErHEEERR

is taken into account when assessing EBANRIE IR EE L

whether credit risk has increased TER :

significantly:

. an actual or expected . BT B AN ES
significant deterioration in the (A INHBEE
financial instrument’s external SRR ER S TER
(if available) or internal credit BEZIL
rating;

. significant deterioration in . SN T IS (E B R
external market indicators of BEREERL - B
credit risk, e.g. a significant WEEBENRER
increase in the credit spread, AREEENES
the credit default swap prices EE A IRIE

for the debtor;

. existing or forecast adverse . TEEEEREBA
changes in business, financial BITHEBE TN
or economic conditions that EERAPN RN ES
are expected to cause a %~ B RS A B AR
significant decrease in the JUHY IR A8 S TR Al BY
debtor’s ability to meet its debt TR L
obligations;
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. WMEVBEBRRGFEEERFTE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EBR (#)
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies 3.2 FEEHBE(E)
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) SRMIA(ZE)
Financial assets (Continued) THEE (&)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk
(Continued)
U an actual or expected

significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;
and

o an actual or expected

TREERE(E)
() (EERBKIEENE)

. EBALEREDN
ERSEREER

£ &

. BHEBARITE

significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic,
or technological environment
of the debtor that results in
a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the
above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z=—

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

U

Significant increase in credit risk
(Continued)

Despite the aforegoing, the Group
assumes that the credit risk on a
debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if
the debt instrument is determined to
have low credit risk at the reporting
date. A debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk if (i) it has a
low risk of default, (i) the borrower
has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations
in the near term and (iiij adverse
changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but
will not necessarily, reduce the ability
of the borrower to fulfil its contractual
cash flow obligations. The Group
considers bank balances and cash
and other receivables to have low
credit risk when it has an internal or
external credit rating of “investment
grade” as per globally understood
definitions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. WMEVBEBRRGFEEERFTE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EBR (#)
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies 3.2 FEEHBE(E)
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) SRMIA(ZE)
Financial assets (Continued) THEE (&)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk
(Continued)

The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of the criteria used
to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past
due.

(i) Definition of default

For internal credit risk management,
the Group considers an event of
default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the
debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group
considers that default has occurred
when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z=—

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired
when one or more events of default
that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable
data about the following events:

@)

significant financial difficulty of
the issuer or the borrower;

a breach of contract, such as
a default or past due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower,
for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

it is becoming probable
that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R MY A

- —FH+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. BEMBEBREREEREE

SEBEE (&)

3.2 FESHBEK(E)
$RMITAEE)
TREE (&)

BRBEERIERERAR / —E-—FFR)

TREEREE)

(i)

EERELREE

ERLE-ARZEHATH
BEMFAKRERER
TR E ZENETE -
TREERBEERE -
TRMEEFEREZER
BREATAIERSEN

(@ EITASIELRA
BRI EE

b)) EREH MEH
AR

() BEHZzEHHEERE
RSB R A
B2 A KR
B TEITE—
RERTEDATT
EEZBEGKMS
&

(d) BT B RIRERE X
ETHMM K E
eI

161



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

.
e

162

R ey i

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z=—

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

BEST PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset
when there is information indicating
that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, for
example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings,
or in the case of trade receivables,
when the amounts are over two
years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off
may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HMEVBHRREREERTIE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ST BUR (4#)

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies 3.2 TEEHRE(E)

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) SWMITE(EZ)

Financial assets (Continued) DEEE ()

Impairment of financial assets (Continued) SREERME (&)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL ) EHEEER YIS R
The measurement of ECL is a EHEEERY e AE
function of the probability of default, Z/'WE%;A EZ'] 16 5 T( B0
loss given default (i.e. the magnitude ﬁ ?6;%@ m E’] Té%éfﬁ)

R} 5% wYHY TR =4

of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects

KB HE R 2 B - B A
PR MENBRE ZFHE
TIEREREMEE R AR
ZESLBUBREL - BHIE
EBBRMGRBRIAEE

an unbiased and probability-weighted A8 Eﬁé%@ﬁfq}ﬁﬁﬁ{’ﬁﬁm%
amount that is determined with the BB 1T 8 1E B A 1R 18R 2 A
respective risks of default occurring EFHeHE -

as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference —RmE  FAE{EEEIE
between all contractual cash DIRBEHNENAEE
flows that are due to the Group in FIEAHER e REHASE
accordance with the contract and the EfEHWR s RERE
cash flows that the Group expects to MR =% - W HRER
receive, discounted at the effective BT ERAMNZERALE -
interest rate determined at initial

recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade ET 8B ERSEN S
receivables are considered on FEHEEERIKSERE
a collective basis taking into BWHEREREEAEES
consideration past due information B (hn AT I M T B A
and relevant credit information such ) 15 J5r e B L E o
es forwarclooking macrosconomic £ 85 2 T4 I A
information. For collective assessment, BB - 4 B 1 TAEEE

the Group takes into consideration
the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

W)

Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)

o Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of
debtors; and

° External credit ratings where
available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed
by management to ensure the
constituents of each group continue to
share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based
on the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset unless the financial
asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based
on amortised cost of the financial
asset.

The Group recognises an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss for all
financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade receivables where
the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a credit loss
allowance account.
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$RMIA(E)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset
only when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the asset expire or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
assets to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset
measured at amortised cost, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions
of a liability and on equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method or at FVTPL.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. @ﬁ’,\j ﬁi%ﬁ?ﬁzgﬁﬁﬂig
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL =1
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies 3.2 FEETHEEX(E)

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) S@MIA(E)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL
when the financial liability is () contingent
consideration that may be paid by an
acquirer as part of a business combination
to which HKFRS 3 applies, (ii) held for
trading, or (iii) it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of repurchasing it in the near
term;

o on initial recognition it is a part of

a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual
pattern of short term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated
and effective as a hedging instrument.

For financial liabilities that are designated
as at FVTPL, the amount of change
in the fair value of the financial liability
that is attributable to changes in the
credit risk of that liability is recognised
in other comprehensive income, unless
the recognition of the effects of changes
in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit
or loss. Changes in fair value attributable
to a financial liability’s credit risk that are
recognised in other comprehensive income
are not subsequently reclassified to profit or
loss; instead, they are transferred to retained
profits upon derecognition of the financial
liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities, including trade payables,
bills payables, other payables and accrued
charges and bank and other borrowings, are
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the proceeds received, net
of direct issue costs.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. ?ﬁi_\’_@f MR REREERTE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SEBGR (&
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies 3.2 FEEHEEE)
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) SMIAE)
Changes in the basis for determining the AF|EBEENBEHNETEH
contractual cash flows as a result of interest e E R R

rate benchmark reform

For changes in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows of a financial asset or
financial liability to which the amortised cost
measurement applies as a result of interest
rate benchmark reform, the Group applies
the practical expedient to account for these
changes by updating the effective interest
rate, such change in effective interest rate
normally has no significant effect on the
carrying amount of the relevant financial
asset or financial liability.

A change in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows is required by interest
rate benchmark reform if and only if, both
these conditions are met:

° the change is necessary as a
direct consequence of interest rate
benchmark reform; and

° the new basis for determining the
contractual cash flows is economically
equivalent to the previous basis (ie
the basis immediately preceding the
change).

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair
value at the date a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair values at the end of
the reporting period. The resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting
policies, which are described in Note 3, the
management of the Group is required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

The followings are the key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that has a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within
the next financial year.
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170

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

The management of the Group identifies trade
receivables that are credit-impaired and assesses
their ECL individually. The management of the
Group estimates the amount of lifetime ECL of the
remaining trade receivables based on provision
matrix through grouping of various debtors
that have similar loss pattern, after considering
internal credit ratings of trade debtors and/or past
due status of respective trade receivables. The
credit loss allowance amount is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows.
The assessment of credit risk of trade receivables
involves high degree of estimation uncertainty.
When the actual future cash flows are less than
expected or more than expected, a material
impairment loss or a material reversal of impairment
loss may arise accordingly in future periods.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL and the
Group’s trade receivables are disclosed in Notes
20 and 38.

There is net reversal of impairment losses under
ECL model of HK$2,670,000 credited to profit
or loss during the year ended 31 December
2022 (2021: net impairment loss under ECL
model of HK$11,967,000 charged to profit or
loss). The carrying amount of trade receivables
is HK$631,727,000 netting of allowance of
HK$19,948,000 (2021: HK$821,163,000 netting of
allowance of HK$24,636,000) as at 31 December
2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Allowance for inventories

Management of the Group reviews the inventory
ageing analysis at the end of the reporting period
and identifies the slow-moving or obsolete
inventory items that are no longer suitable for use
in production or sales. Management estimates
the net realisable value for such inventories based
primarily on the latest invoice prices, estimated
costs of completion and current market conditions.
In addition, the Group carries out regular inventory
review with reference to inventory ageing analysis,
management experience and judgement on the
expected future saleability of goods and provides
necessary allowance if the net realisable value is
estimated to be below the cost.

There is allowance for slow-moving inventories of
HK$41,426,000 (2021: HK$35,151,000) charged to
profit or loss during the year ended 31 December
2022. The carrying amount of inventories is
HK$1,135,776,000 (2021: HK$1,456,797,000) as
at 31 December 2022.

4.

FERBEMET R (&)

FERE

RSB E IR B o B A R 2R B
FEREOT - B TBEABEE
ELHENTIHXREFTEER - &
BEXERBEROERER - A5
SERARA R E RIS Z S
ERAEEFEE - U AEEES
ErERELOT  BEEEREYE
an TR HA R O3 85 1 10 1 i E R E B 7
B - WA A B ERIFESE R A
BiFET IR E B -

B2 -_—_F+=-A=+—H1t
FE  BMALEZNBROBER
E41,426,0008 0 (=T = —%F :
35,151,000/ 70) fER #E - R=F
%+ -A=+—8 GFEKRAE
£1,135,776,0008 0 (ZZ = —4 :
1,456,797,000/87T) °
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REVENUE

The Group’s revenue is derived from manufacturing
and trading of elastic fabric, lace and elastic
webbing in the PRC, Hong Kong, the Socialist
Republic of Vietnam (“Vietnam”) and the
Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka (“Sri
Lanka”), net of discounts and sales related taxes.

5. WA

AEBPARERTE - BE

terEAME (R MTERR
EI&QI%#\WU%E%%D%L—J

L&Eﬂ?‘é%ﬁ MR E R

B NOE T

i &fﬁﬁﬁ FARLIA o

(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts (i) REEFFEAZVAMAS
with customers
Revenue from manufacturing and trading of KERELREEEMHEYE
elastic fabric, lace and elastic webbing are B BAREBESSH R AR
recognised at a point in time. BIRFHERR o
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE-_E_—_f+=ZA=+-—
BIEFE
Manufacturing Manufacturing
and trading of and trading of
elastic fabric elastic
and lace webbing Total
HEREE
B SEs HEREE
RE# BHAT st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Types of goods EmEH THET TER THERT
Sales of products Em#HE
Elastic Fabric B E R
— Sportswear and apparel — BERERRE 2,146,456 - 2,146,456
- Lingerie — AKX 1,292,507 - 1,292,507
3,438,963 - 3,438,963
Lace i 76,267 - 76,267
Elastic webbing B RT - 977,560 977,560
3,515,230 977,560 4,492,790
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REVENUE (Continued) 5. WA#E)
()  Disaggregation of revenue from contracts (i) REEFEHZWAMS (&)
with customers (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-_E_-_—F+=ZA=+-—
HIEFE
Manufacturing

and trading of ~ Manufacturing
elastic fabric ~ and trading of

and lace elastic webbing Total
MY E R EREE

o B RS et

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Types of goods EmER FET FET FET

Sales of products EmHE

Elastic Fabric B YR

- Sportswear and apparel  — BE)REE K RE 2,438,897 - 2,438,897

- Lingerie - AKX 1,183,780 - 1,183,780

3,622,677 - 3,622,677

Lace 0 89,784 - 89,784

Flastic webbing B - 1,080,200 1,080,200

3,712,461 1,080,200 4,792,661
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REVENUE (Continued)

(ii)

Performance obligations for contracts
with customers

The Group manufactures and trades the
elastic fabric, lace and elastic webbing to the
wholesale market.

For manufacturing and trading of elastic
fabric, lace and elastic webbing, revenue is
recognised when control of the goods has
been transferred, being the point in time
when the goods have been shipped to the
customer’s specific location (delivery).

Following the delivery, the customer has
full discretion over further processing, the
manner of distribution and sales price of the
goods and has the primary responsibility
when selling the goods and bears the risks
of obsolescence and loss in relation to the
goods. The normal credit term is 30 to 90
days from the date of issuance of a monthly
statement for sale delivered in that month.

The Group applies the practical expedient
of HKFRS 15 which allows the Group not to
disclose the information of the transaction
price allocated to the remaining performance
obligation for contract with customers,
as the original expected duration of the
performance obligation arising from the
manufacturing and trading of elastic fabric,
lace and elastic webbing are all within one
year.

5.

WA (&)

(ii)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The financial information reported to executive
directors of the Company, being the chief operating
decision makers (“CODM”), for the purpose
of assessment of segment performance and
resources allocation focuses on types of goods
delivered.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments
under HKFRS 8 Operating Segments are as
follows:

U Manufacturing and trading of elastic fabric
and lace

This segment derives its revenue from
manufacturing and trading of elastic fabric
and lace made from synthetic fibres that are
commonly used in high-end knitted lingerie,
sportswear and apparel products.

o Manufacturing and trading of elastic webbing

This segment derives its revenue from
manufacturing and trading of elastic
webbing made from synthetic fibres that are
commonly used as shoulder straps, lingerie
trims and waistbands.

2 EHER

AARBATER (AETBEERR
E(XEREREE])) 2MUURTH
DHMERLRERD WM B ERE
REMNEmIOER -

AEERBEBEEVHRES ERNFSHR

HED R ERATIMEDFAT

. HENESBEUHSYEH LT

HAMRARBEREREES
P A M B E e SE M  E R
K EBREMREER -

. BUEN B BB
o RBEAKREREREER

PREIESUENBMEES  — R
ARE® - AXEREBRS -
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and trading of
elastic fabric

Manufacturing
and trading of

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. OHERE)
Segment revenue and results DEBR AR ELE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue L)(—I—P':l"’% Bz a8 & N Al R 5 2P &l
and results by operating and reportable segments: DEA R EE DT -
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE-_FE-_—_F+-A=+—HL#F
E
Manufacturing

and lace elastic webbing Total
HEREE
AT HEREE
ER R E# BHAY st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FEx FET
Segment revenue from REIAEFH)
external customers DEBWA 3,515,230 977,560 4,492,790
Segment gross profit DEBEF 622,201 227,712 849,913
Segment profit DEPE A 226,453 116,708 343,161
Unallocated other income RABEMUA 24,283
Unallocated other gains A BEM R R EHR
and losses 58,949
Unallocated corporate expenses KO B ER Y (36,466)
Share of result of a joint venture ~ DMEAEEESE 2,539
Finance costs BERKA (75,794)
Profit before taxation B AT A 316,672
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) DEBER (&)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) PEBMAREE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-_Z-_—F+=ZA=+—HL#HF
E
Manufacturing
and trading of Manufacturing
elastic fabric and trading of
and lace  elastic webbing Total
BEREER
B HERES
EHRES S MRS wmEt
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FAT FTAT FAT
Segment revenue from REIINAEFH)
external customers DERUEA 3,712,461 1,080,200 4,792,661
Segment gross profit D RPERN 763,743 348,089 1,111,832
Segment profit DEEH 327,072 207,991 535,063
Unallocated other income AOBEMBA 27,542
Unallocated other gains and losses 7 7 it £ i Wz M 518 2,041
Unallocated corporate expenses A B ZEMS (50,203)
Share of result of a joint venture ~ DMEAEMEEE 3,906
Finance costs BERA (61,732)
Profit before taxation B A A 456,617

The accounting policies of the operating and
reportable segments are the same as the Group’s
accounting policies. Segment profit represents
the results of each segment without allocation
of corporate items including mainly bank interest
income, change in fair value of a derivative financial
instrument, net foreign exchange gain, corporate
expenses, share of result of a joint venture and
finance costs. Corporate expenses include
directors’ remuneration paid or payable by the
Group and certain administrative expenses for
corporate function. This is the measure reported to
the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment.

RENARED BN B REARE
BEBRAR o D EENES D&
G EPARDELEER  H
TEBEBRRTAMERA - TTEER
TEARFEES - HMNEWzFE - B
XX DERELERRELRBEK
Ko pERAXBRAEECEEN
E=EMe MRECEAENE TITR
P o T BRERREEERD
BERMHERBENTE A
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. OHERE)
Segment assets and liabilities THBEERAE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets UTABAREEIREERAHRED LS
and liabilities by operating and reportable segment: STHEERBED

As at 31 December 2022 R-ZEBE-_—_F+=ZH=+—H

178

Manufacturing
and trading of
elastic fabric

Manufacturing
and trading of

and lace elastic webbing Total
HEREE
A HEREE
ERRE# BHAT st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TER TEx
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEEE 4,336,652 681,789 5,018,441
Property, plant and equipment M -~ BB KA 4,674
Right-of-use assets EREEE 14,565
Interest in a joint venture NE &P ENER 39,417
Deferred tax assets EREBIEEE 9,071
Other receivables, deposits and ~ E A EUTIE « 4 K
prepayments B FIA 25,415
Tax recoverables BIEEEE 4,526
Pledged bank deposits EEARITER 68,428
Short term bank deposits RHEISRTTIERX 36,954
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBRNEIRS 1,051,165
Total assets BERE 6,272,656
LIABILITIES afE
Segment liabilities nEPAE 783,883 190,517 974,400
Other payables and accrued ~ EAbfE BN
charges fEETE A 25,448
Bank and other borrowings R1T R H A& 2,098,200
Lease liabilities HESE 16,235
Tax payables RIS 10,191
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIEAE 9,735
Total liabilities BERE 3,134,209
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. OHERE)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) THBEERAEB(E)
As at 31 December 2021 R-B-_—%+=-HA=+—H
Manufacturing

and trading of Manufacturing
elastic fabric and trading of

and lace  elastic webbing Total
B HERES
EHRES S MRS BEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET FET
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEEE 4,926,126 787,685 5,713,811
Property, plant and equipment L ERT g 6,054
Right-of-use assets ERERE 18,595
Interest in a joint venture NEELENER 38,669
Deferred tax assets ELERIBEE 5,576
Other receivables, deposits and ~ EAbEWFIE « & K&
prepayments EURE S 30,041
Tax recoverables AU el TE 4,783
Pledged bank deposits SRR ITIER 121,607
Short term bank deposits RAERITER 163,814
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRR S 898,868
Total assets BERE 7,001,818
LIABILITIES =i
Segment liabilities =) =K 1,062,375 281,469 1,343,844
Other payables and accrued Hip ERIE R
charges JETE 46,581
Bank and other borrowings SR1T M E A fE TR 2,160,404
Lease liabilities HEBE 20,208
Tax payables FEZRIIR 46,745
Deferred tax liabilities ERERIEAE 9,698
Derivative financial instrument THEEBTHA 1,092
Total liabilities BEeE 3,628,572
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment
performances and allocating resources between
segments:

° all assets are allocated to operating and
reportable segments, other than certain
property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets for corporate use, interest
in a joint venture, deferred tax assets, tax
recoverables, pledged bank deposits, short
term bank deposits, bank balances and
cash and certain corporate assets.

o all liabilities are allocated to operating and
reportable segments, other than bank
and other borrowings, lease liabilities for
corporate use, tax payables, deferred tax
liabilities, derivative financial instrument and
certain corporate liabilities.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. OoHWER(E)
Other segment information H fth 7 &8 & K}
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE-_Z_—_+=-A=+—HILE
E
Manufacturing

and trading of ~ Manufacturing
elastic fabric and trading of

andlace elastic webbing  Unallocated Total
HEREE
i) HEREE
HRRE4S BHET KA o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr TEr Fhr FhEr
Amounts included in the measure of rEN BRI NHEE
segment profit or segment assets: B AREE
Additions of property, plant and equipment FEWE - BRE LR E 336,935 49,979 293 387,207
Additions of right-of-use assets REFAEEE 3,385 - - 3,385
Depreciation of property, plant and n% - BERXENE
equipment 286,093 39,301 1,713 327,107
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 35,199 7,180 4,031 46,410
Gains from net remeasurement of credit ~ E ZERFEEEER
loss allowance for trade receivables BREEMIEFEE 2,199 47 - 2,670
Allowance for slow-moving inventories B ERE 39,263 2,163 - 41,426
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. OHERE)
Other segment information (Continued) HithnBER (2)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-_Z-_—F+=ZA=+—HL#HF
E
Manufacturing
and trading of Manufacturing
elastic fabric and trading of
and lace elastic webbing Unallocated Total
REREE
Bt BEREE
HRREHS B ROE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL FAL THr TAL
Amounts included in the measure of e HEFANBEE
segment profit or segment assets: B AREE
Additions of property, plant and equipment FEE - BERFE 191,828 33,151 5,650 230,629
Additions of right-of-use assets AEERELE 93,229 4,324 8,924 106,477
Depreciation of property, plant and n% - BERXENE
equipment 267,666 64,583 1,723 333,972
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 19,741 6,637 4,311 30,689
Losses from net remeasurement of credit & SEMFUAE E B EE
loss allowance for trade receivables EEFTEFEER 11,204 763 - 11,967
Allowance for slow-moving inventories &3 S 33,940 1211 - 35,151
Other than the segment information disclosed M EXHWEBERNSILERIN » TBKE
above, there was no other information reviewed by RS EMEEEMEEENEMER o

the CODM for both years.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Mainland
China, Hong Kong, Vietnam, Sri Lanka and the
United States of America. The Group’s revenue
from external customers based on the location of
the customers are detailed below:

DEER (#)

AEBEEBURFEARM - FE
Mo HERR MR o REERE I
REFPOWATIREE P A= Sl

5 W

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t+—HLEE

2022 2021

—E-CF —E-—fF

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#&xT FHET

Hong Kong BB 1,015,613 989,605
Mainland China AP 3 912,809 961,213
Sri Lanka HERFR 850,102 909,576
Vietnam i) 405,096 423,498
South Korea FHTE 248,618 328,232
Taiwan = 207,845 322,406
Thailand = 151,808 78,339
Bangladesh = ANAL 115,225 113,473
Indonesia e 101,249 157,547
Macau SBPS 97,499 136,328
Others Hit 386,926 372,444
4,492,790 4,792,661

Non-current assets (excluding financial assets and
deferred tax assets) by geographical location of
assets are detailed below:

REEMGESREDWNIFRBDEE
(TEReREEREERBEE)

BT

As at 31 December

W+=A=+—H
2022 2021
—E-F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Mainland China AR B A B 1,639,411 1,822,655
Vietnam =] 838,010 883,533
Sri Lanka HrE/E-R 667,964 606,209
Hong Kong B 26,346 35,208
3,171,731 3,347,605
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of
the total revenue of the Group for the years ended

31 December 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

DEER (#)
FRETEEFHNEHR

REBEE-_ZT-_—_FR-_FT-—F+=
B=+—BItFE  EASEEEK
AB10% M EFPWALT

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=1+—HLEE

2022 2021
—E-CF B
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Revenue from manufacturing and trading of R B &is & B E 8 449
elastic fabric and lace [EE S Xz PN
— customer A — BFH 533,696 616,527
— customer B - %P7 492,619 441,546
Revenue from manufacturing and trading of & B &% I B = 8 445510
elastic webbing WA
— customer A — BFH 70,877 54,479
— customer B - BBz 94,022 112,103
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OTHER INCOME 7. HRA
2022 2021
—E-CF B
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Government grants (Note) BT e (M) 15,308 12,250
Compensation income from customers RERPREERA 1,226 1,284
Bank interest income IRITHEUA 16,038 21,850
Net proceeds from sales of scrap materials  #5%6 BERI TS 2B H 58 8,540 4,404
Gain from bargain purchase from WiE — B E B HZEE
acquisition of a business (Note 33) WeiE e (FF5E33) - 3,900
Others Efh 8,313 7,006
49,425 50,694
Note: GE
The amount includes HK$12,516,000 (2021: HK$9,367,000) BBt ERERE-_S-—F+-A=
unconditional government grants received during the year +—HIFTEEHNE UK 415& 16 15 R T 4 Bh &

ended 31 December 2022. During the year ended 31
December 2022, the Group also received government
grants of HK$2,531,000 (2021: HK$1,473,000) in relation to
purchase of equipment.

Government grants in relation to purchase of equipment
received in current and prior years of similar nature are
deferred and are released to other income over the useful
lives of the related equipment. Amounts of HK$2,792,000
(2021: HK$2,883,000) were recognised in profit or loss during
the year ended 31 December 2022. As at 31 December
2022, amounts of HK$14,294,000 (2021: HK$15,390,000)
remained to be released and are included in deferred income
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

12,516,000/ 7T (= Z = —%F :9,367,000/8
o) c REEZ 2::¢+:HE+*E¢
FE - AEBTABERERNEFHEE
2,531,000/ 7T (—ZZF = —4 1,473,000/
JT) °

RAFENBAFERINEBRERE
BEBEEUEENRFHEBESHBELT  &E
Eﬁ&fﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁ%%i“w&)\ B

2::¢+:HE+ HIEFE B
Wa SHERSE2,792,0008 T (ZE = —
F o 2883000;‘%7%) RZE-_—_F+—-A
=+—8" 14,294,000/%75(_7’_*¢
15,390,000/ 70) 0B £FRRR - WHNER A BF
AR R ABLEWA ©
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OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

8. HtthmkEiE

2022 2021
—E-F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Loss on disposal of property, HEDE - BEKERE
plant and equipment B8 (427) (135)
Change in fair value of derivative financial ~ $T4£ & @ T A QA FEEZH)
instrument (Note 29) (FF5E29) 1,092 310
Net foreign exchange gain SN R FRE 57,857 1,731
58,522 1,906
FINANCE COSTS 9. ®MERK
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Interests on: T3 EIERIFE
Bank borrowings IRITER 77,613 58,936
Other borrowing Efb g 4,239 1,002
Lease liabilities HEAE 9,031 6,283
90,883 66,221
Less: amounts capitalised in the cost of B BBREBEKAZE
qualifying assets AteE (15,089) (4,489)
75,794 61,732

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year ended

HE-_T-_—_F+-_A=+—HIF

31 December 2022 arose on the general borrowing
pool and are calculated by applying a capitalisation
rate of 6.02% (2021: 2.05%) per annum to
expenditure on qualifying assets.
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 10. EERFETHAEME
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION
The remuneration paid or payable to the directors ENSRENEARRIES RITHEE
and chief executive officer (‘CEQ”) of the Company ([TEAER]) OBl T :

was as follows:

Executive Directors Independent non-executive Directors

yEs BUFHGES

Mr. Zhang
Haitao ~ Mr.Wu Ms.Zheng Mr.Chan  Mr.Lu Mr.Cheung Mr.Ding  Mr.Sai  Mr.Kuo
Mrlu  (CEQ) Shaoln  Tingting YiuSing® Libin® ~ YatMing  Baoshan ChunYu  Dah Chih Total
RERRL
Brt (THAH) ROWEE SEBLt REERE BUMEL R-Bit THURE RERAL JKRks a3t
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSOOO  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS§000
T Tér TEr TAr  TEn  TEn TR TR TEr  TEr  TEn

Fortheyearended EZ-F_%

31 December tZB=1-H

2022 LLEE
Fee s - - - - - - 300 200 - 250 750
Slaries and Bk

alowances 3,576 4834 3,092 2,362 2215 1475 - - - - 17,614
Discretionary MEgA

performance

honus? 3,600 - 2,100 2,400 1,500 1,200 - - - - 10800

Conrbutonsto~~~ RIERTEFE
refrement benefts {37
schemes 59 2 59 18 18 3 - - - - 216

1,23 42862 5,251 4780 3793 2,709 300 20 - 20 29380

Fortheyearended EHZ=F--F
31 December t2A=t-A

221 I:3:
Fee s - - - - - - 300 200 83 148 731
Selaries and EehEy

alowances 3,623 4916 3,136 2,31 2,81 1,493 - - - - 17800
Discretionary BEERRI

performance

honug? 6,000 - 3500 4000 3000 2,000 - - - - 18500

Contrbufonsto~ R{KERIEE
refiement benefts 38
schemes 60 2 60 18 18 29 - - - - 212

9,683 4983 6,6% 6,369 5299 3922 300 200 8 g 3243
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10.

188

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF

EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION

(Continued)

a Executive directors of the Company are entitled
to discretionary performance bonus which are
determined by the remuneration committee of the

Company with reference to market conditions and
financial performance of the Group.

b Mr. Chan Yiu Sing and Mr. Lu Libin were appointed
as the executive directors of the Company on 10
February 2021. Mr. Kuo Dah Chih was appointed
as the independent non-executive director of the
Company on 28 May 2021.

o] Mr. Sai Chun Yu retired as the independent non-
executive director of the Company on 28 May 2021.

The executive directors’ remuneration shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

The independent non-executive directors’
remuneration shown above were mainly for their
services as directors of the Company.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021, no remuneration was paid by the Group to
the directors or chief executive of the Company as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office. None of the
directors or chief executive of the Company has
waived any remuneration during both years.
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11.

12.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z=—

e B R MY A

- —FH+-_A=+—HIEFE

EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION 11. EEFHH
During the years ended 31 December 2022 REE-TE-_—_FR-_ZFE-_—F+=
and 2021, the five individuals with the highest A=+—HBLEFE AEEREHS
remuneration in the Group are directors of the FMALTAARRRES - HEMNH
Company with their remuneration as disclosed in FE10H R -
note 10.
During the years ended 31 December 2022 and REE-TE-_—_FR-_T-_—F+=
2021, no remuneration was paid by the Group to A=+—HBLt&E - ZIKE BB Em R
the five highest paid individual as an inducement to LZEREEFMA TN EATH - A
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation 18 N 88 30 0 BR AN 5 B B 1) 2R B 5
for loss of office. TERBERE -
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 12. BREEANER
2022 2021
—F-= T
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FAT
Profit before taxation has been arrived at BF B F 2K (GFA)
after charging (crediting): THBIE
Auditors’ remuneration ZEETN & 2,479 2,510
Staff costs B TR
Directors’ remuneration FEE 29,380 37,243
Other staff costs HAh B TR
— salaries and other benefits -¥re REMER 775,656 820,997
— contributions to retirement benefits —RIRRE T B TR
schemes 57,783 60,464
862,819 918,704
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BENEEITE
equipment 327,107 333,972
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 46,410 30,689
Depreciation capitalised in inventories BN FENTE (299,216) (288,210)
74,301 76,451
Cost of inventories recognised as an ER BRI NFERA
expense (Note) (FF5E) 3,642,877 3,680,829
Note: The amount includes allowance for slow- Mz : ZeRBeEREBE_2S-__F+=
moving inventories of HK$41,426,000 (2021: AR=T—BLEFEFHEFTERRB
HK$35,151,000) for the year ended 31 December 41,426,000 0 (=T = —4F :

2022.
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13.

190

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

13. FAEBiBX

2022 2021
—EC_F =%
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET FAT
Current tax: BNERTHIE -
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBENEH 24,821 34,724
The PRC Enterprise Income R Bl
Tax (“EIT) (Te%FmEsl) 6,519 13,965
Withholding tax on dividends from B AFIREZ
subsidiaries TR 3,884 943
Income tax in other jurisdictions Efth el AR R ATISI 3,198 193
(Over)under provision in prior years: BFFEEE (%) T -
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBFIEM (219) 1,783
The PRC EIT Bl TS (2,727) 784
35,476 52,392
Deferred taxation (Note 30) EIERIA (F15E30) (2,282) 2,879
33,194 55,271

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime of the
Hong Kong Profits Tax, the first HK$2 million of
profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed
at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be
taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not
qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.
Accordingly, the Hong Kong Profits Tax of the
qualifying group entity is calculated at 8.25% on
the first HK$2 million of the estimated assessable
profits and at 16.5% on the estimated assessable
profits above HK$2 million.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income
Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation
of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC companies
is 25% for both years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021, unless there is any applicable preferential
tax treatment.

The Company’s subsidiaries, Dongguan Best
Pacific Textile Company Limited (“Dongguan
BPT”) and Dongguan New Horizon Elastic
Fabric Company Limited (“Dongguan NHE”),
had obtained the qualification as high and new
technology enterprises since 2010 and 2016,
respectively, which were further renewed for an
additional three years from the year ended 31
December 2022. Hence, Dongguan BPT and
Dongguan NHE had been subject to the preferential
tax treatment and the applicable tax rate for the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 was
15%.

Withholding tax on dividends was calculated at 5%
of the dividends received and estimated dividends
to be received from the subsidiaries in the PRC
during the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021.

13.

FRE®BX (47)

REEFBEERPAEHA ([ RRAEHR
B REXRMBPANERMAA - BR
FEEREMEREEREGFE &
ARERARIREE—T = _FR=F
Tt A=t HLEMBEFED
HEB25% -

ARARKMB AR REBANEER
NE) ([ REBE]) RREHE®E T
MERAR ([REBE] HEZ
—EFR T -AFRESS RN
TEER  HAERHPeaHEz—_Z=
T+ - A=+—HIFERE—F
BIINER=F - At - R=BALE
SHEZEEEHEGE  REEZ
T FR - —FF+_A=+—
BIEMEFEREBHER15% °

BREMNTBHIMIOEHE T _—FK
—E - —F+-_A=+—HItWEF
EBHEME AR S WE LA &K
Bz B H5%ATE ©
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13.

192

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Pursuant to the relevant Vietnam Enterprises
Income Tax rules and regulations, the applicable tax
rate for the subsidiary operating in Vietnam is 20%.
The subsidiary in Vietnam is eligible for a tax holiday
for two financial years since the first financial year
of taxable profits and a tax concession at a tax rate
of 10% for the following four financial years. With
the new incentive in place during the year ended
31 December 2018 and by fulfilling certain stated
requirements as set by the Ministry of Industry
and Trade, the subsidiary in Vietnam had been
eligible for a tax holiday for four financial years since
2018, a tax concession at a tax rate of 5% for the
following nine financial years and a tax concession
at a tax rate of 10% for the next following two
financial years.

Withholding tax on shareholder’s loans interest was
calculated at 5% of the interest paid and estimated
interest to be paid by the subsidiary in Vietnam
during the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021.

Pursuant to the Inland Revenue (Amendment) Act,
No. 10 of 2021 in Sri Lanka, the applicable tax
rate for the subsidiaries operating in Sri Lanka is
24% for both years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021. By fulfiling certain export requirements as
set by the Board of Investment of Sri Lanka, the
subsidiaries of the Group in Sri Lanka had enjoyed
a preferential tax rate of 14% for the years ended
31 December 2021. In terms of the changes to the
Inland Revenue Act No. 24 of 2017, as passed in
parliament on 9 December 2022, the subsidiaries
of the Group in Sri Lanka are liable for income tax
rate of 30% from 1 July 2022 onwards. In addition,
one of these subsidiaries is currently eligible for a
tax holiday till the year ending 31 December 2024.

Taxation arising in any other jurisdiction is
calculated at the rate prevailing in the relevant
jurisdiction.

13.

FRE®BAX (47)

BIEHEBAERECEMERARRE
Bl RBEEEZHBARMNER
RE20% © Bk B RRE @RS
ERR AN BRFEREEERER
METRFEENRIEBERE - RREE%
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TROMBETERFEZERE10%H
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 13. BB (&)
Income tax expense (credit) for the year can be RFEEREHRAS (KE) AJEigE 8
reconciled to the profit before taxation per the 7 N H b 2 U 5 2% A BR AR A i R
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other BR - #ynT
comprehensive income as follows:
Hong Kong The PRC Others Total
BB hE R st
2022 2021 2022 201 2022 2021 2022 201
“B-CE -E--F ZE-CE “E--F B —E--F ZBoCE O CEC-F
HK$000  HK§000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000
TEn Tin Tén T Tén Thn Tén T
Profit before taxation Gl 164414 225453 126569 137560 25680 93604 316672 456617
Taxation at the domestic income & RFTEH 23t
tax rate Efia 21128 37,200 31,642 34,390 4210 19,632 62,980 91,222
Taxeffect of expenses ot~ AR AR
deductible for tax purpose ByE 4,197 1872 6,631 5616 5,713 6,620 16,541 14,108
Tax effect of income not taxable  BEEHMALNF
for tax purpose hee (5,072) (3,209) - - (3,081) (3431) (8,153) (6,636)
Tax effect of share of resut of a - PEAS N EEE
joint venture k2 (419) (645) - - - - (419) (645)
Tax effect of estimated tax losses KERMEHHES
not recognised iRz 2 8 3 1484 371 5,737 6,050 7,229 6,452
Utiisation of tax losses previously 2P % & ATE24)
not recognised WEFR (187) ) (1,193) (131) - (11167) (1,380)  (11,307)
Tax effect on deferred HELAXDE
tax iabiltes resuing 7l / REEEH|E
from withholding tax on WAl
undistributed profits/unsettied  ETHIEE B
interest income of subsidiaries  Fifse/ 2 - - (7,395) 1908 442 273 (6,953) 2,181
Wihholaing tax on dvidends ~ MELARE 2B
from subsidlaries 1 - - 3,884 943 - - 3,884 943
(Over) under provision in prior ~ BAFE A
years (BE8) PR (219) 1783 2,727) 784 - - (2,946) 2567
Effect of tax concession HikEEnE 2 (165) (165) (8879  (28814) (8,552 (14635  (37,589)  (43614)
Income tax expense for the year AEEFTEREY 25211 36,862 3454 15,067 4,469 3342 33,194 55,271
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E - FE - —“F+-A=+—HILFE

14. DIVIDENDS 14. RE
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-_—F
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FET FHET
Dividends for ordinary shareholders F N WZJ%/TLEE’\JZIR/D\ET AR AR
of the Company recognised as RZIRE
distribution during the year:
2022 Interim dividend — HK7.28 cents —Z — —F/RHKE — 5K
(2021: HK7.5 cents) per share 7288 (ZE=_—F:75
,%%-SMD 75,698 77,985
2021 Final dividend - HK11.8 cents ~ —Z = —FRHEKE — K
(2021: 2020 Final dividend HK7.4 HS%M(fvf F:Z
cents) per share —EFERAKREERT.4
/%%MJ) 122,697 76,946
198,395 154,931

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period,
a final dividend in respect of the year ended 31
December 2022 of HK4.22 cents per ordinary share
(approximately HK$43.9 million in aggregate) has
been proposed by the directors of the Company
and is subject to approval by the shareholders in
the forthcoming general meeting.

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings
per share attributable to owners of the Company is
based on the following data:

15.

RBERREGERE  ARAIESCRE
mEBE_T-_—_FF+-_A=1+—H1
FEZARBREAGR L @422
Il (& $£443. 95%‘%}%75) MEZE R FE
JEM R A E FESARERHALE -

BRER

ARTEE AR TRERRBER
RIT R IR A T B & -

2022 2021
—EC-C—F =%
Earnings ZX
Earnings for the purposes of the basic ~ FLEIREARZF M = 92T
earnings per share (profit for the year (RREHEANEGFER
attributable to owners of the Company) ) (F#7T)
(HK$’000) 209,199 401,794
Number of shares v ¢E|
Number of ordinary shares for the MEREARRFIM S 0 E B
purpose of basic earnings per share 2B 1,039,808,000 1,039,808,000
No diluted earnings per share for both years ended REBEE_ZE-_—FR-_F-—F+—
31 December 2022 and 2021 were presented as A=Z+—BIWMEFE  WEZIF
there was no potential ordinary shares in issue for PR#sE R R - B EFE I EEETT
both years. BEEBER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

16. Y%  BENRRHE

EQUIPMENT
Computer
and office Motor Construction
Buildings  equipment vehicles  Machinery in progress Total
£
BF BWOERE HE WE  EERIR H)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THT TAT TR TR FET
COST AR
At 1 January 2021 A —
—A—H 1,235,845 122,544 77,825 3,089,672 98,903 4,604,789
Exchange adjustments E3aE kA 23,146 1,566 1,864 52,185 3,430 82,190
Additions NE 8,204 14,286 639 67,887 139,613 230,629
Acquisition of business (Note 33) Yt %7 (P333) - 3471 - 20,248 - 23,719
Transfer upon completion TERK RSB 184,559 - - - (184,559 -
Disposals HE - (3,950) (1,854) (17,299) - (23,109)
At 31 December 2021 NS
+-A=+-H 1,451,754 137,916 78,474 3,192,693 57,387 4,918,224
Exchange adjustments fE 5 AR (88,055) (6,401) (5,707) (190,490) (10,707) (301,360)
Additions RE 6,047 4,370 3,520 90,868 282,402 387,207
Transfer upon completion TER R 41,674 - - - (41,674) -
Disposals & - (2,008) (2,222) (34,423) - (38,653)
At 31 December 2022 A —
+-RA=1—H 1,411,420 133,877 74,065 3,058,648 287,408 4,965,418
ACCUMULATED E i
DEPRECIATION
At 1 January 2021 A3
—R—H 257,966 59,850 46,897 1,269,774 - 1,634,487
Exchange adjustments P 5 6,772 1,090 1,186 31,076 - 40,124
Provided for the year FEAE 66,954 19,236 6,290 241,492 - 333,972
Eliminated on disposals HEF i - (3,531) (1,589) (10,594) - (15,714)
At 31 December 2021 R-B-—&
+-A=1+—H 331,692 76,645 52,784 1,531,748 - 1,992,869
Exchange adjustments ERAR (25,036) (3,929) (3,821  (111,619) - (144,405)
Provided for the year FERE 67,476 11,068 5,853 242,710 - 327,107
Eliminated on disposals HE R i - (1,988) (1,828) (24,813) - (28,629)
At 31 December 2022 R-BE-ZF
+=A=1+-H 374,132 81,796 52,988 1,638,026 - 2,146,942
CARRYING AMOUNTS REE
At 31 December 2021 N_T-—F
+-A=+-H 1,120,062 61,271 25,690 1,660,945 57,387 2,925,355
At 31 December 2022 R=ZB==f
+=A=1+-H 1,037,288 52,081 21,077 1,420,622 287,408 2,818,476
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E - FE - —“F+-A=+—HILFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 16. Y% - MERRE &)
EQUIPMENT (Continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment, Lt BEMKEER (2T
except for construction in progress, are depreciated BRI DIEERANRBREFRAER
on its cost less their residual values on a straight- SERA TR AT FERITE ¢
line basis at the following useful life or rates per
annum:
Buildings Over the shorter of the term of BF FEIEK20 2 25F (ARG &
the lease or 20 to 25 years BE)
Computer and office  20%-50% BN AE 20%-50%
equipment B
Motor vehicles 10%-20% RE 10%-20%
Machinery 6%-20% MR 6%-20%
17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17. FHAEEE
Leasehold Leased
land  properties Total
HE i HEmE et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FERT FERT
At 31 December 2022 R-B-_—_F+=-A=+—8H
Carrying amount BREE 164,374 122,855 287,229
At 31 December 2021 RZZE—_—F+=-HA=+—H
Carrying amount BRmE 185,468 164,908 350,376
For the year ended BE-Z_—_#+=ZA=+—H
31 December 2022 LEFE
Depreciation charge EER 6,523 39,887 46,410
For the year ended BHE_T-—F+-H=+—H
31 December 2021 IEFE
Depreciation charge WEEH 6,471 24,218 30,689
2022 2021
—E_-_— =%
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FERT FAT
Expense relating to short term leases 252 HiFAE A RMF S 12,702 7,207
Total cash outflow for leases HERSROARE 60,632 25,093
Additions to right-of-use assets NEFRAEEE 3,385 106,477
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

For both years, the Group leased various offices
premises, staff quarters, warehouses and leasehold
land for its operations. The lease terms of leasehold
land used for factories ranged from 40 to 99 years.
A lease for a piece of land used for warehouse was
negotiated for a term of 40 years. The lease terms
of factory premises were negotiated for terms of 3
years. Lease for office premises, warehouse and
staff quarters were entered into for fixed term of 2
to 6 years (2021: 2 to 6 years). Lease terms were
negotiated on an individual basis and contained
a wide range of different terms and condition.
In determining the lease term and assessing the
length of the non-cancellable period, the Group
applies the definition of a contract and determines
the period for which the contract is enforceable.

In addition to the leases mentioned above, the
Group regularly entered into short term leases for
staff quarters, warehouses, office premises, motor
vehicles and machinery and equipment. As at 31
December 2022 and 2021, the portfolio of short
term leases is similar to the portfolio of short term
leases to which the short term leases expense
disclosed above.

17.

EREEE (&)

RZMEFE  AEEAHLEHRE
ZHERBANEYE BIEE  BER
MELTH - EmERGeHE T M
SN F40E99F - —1EEEH
%7 AT B40F B
EYENHEOBEBRHBEEIEFE - B
=¥ AEREIBEMNALYI T
BEHE2E6F (ZTE-—4F : 256
F)  MEBMNZENEERTE BB
SN EER NG - RE T E
NiHE A RESHEAORER - A&
EERAYHNTEELETA LB
HMITHHERR] ©

BT EMMEE ASBETHRE T
BE BRERBAEYE - REME
EhREFIVEEEE KT =
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E - FE - —“F+-A=+—HILFE

18. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 18. REELENER
Details of the Group’s interest in a joint venture are REBEREELENERFBROT
as follows:
2022 2021
—E-F —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Cost of interest in a joint venture REEDERER 2R
Unlisted JEETH 15,434 15,434
Share of post-acquisition profits and D LU EER R K HAth 2 HE
other comprehensive income, net of Y35 (430 2 UERL &
dividends received 23,983 23,235
39,417 38,669
Details of the Group’s joint venture at the end of R ERESERE  AEBEEEPE
the reporting period are as follows: ZEIBWE
Proportion
Place of of ownership
incorporation/ Principal place class of Proportion of interest held Voting rights held by the
Name of entity Form of entity registration  of operation ~ shares held by the Group (Note) Group (Note) Principal activity
AL/ FEROEE  AREEE REUA  AREREZRERE
ERER EREY  OMME ITEERY  AERLH (Hzt) (&) IEEH

2022 2021 2022 2021
E-CF -“F--% CZB-CE _E--F

Charming Elastic Fabric ~ Limited Liabilty HongKong ~ Hong Kong ~ Ordlinary 51% 51% 60% 60%  Trading of elastic
Company Limited Company &% 3 Lk webbing and
(‘Charming Elastic’) ARA7 investment

FEBRTARARAR holding
([BBERS)) BERMARR

RERK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &=

18. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE
(Continued)

Note:

On 4 November 2015, the Group acquired
40% equity interest in Charming Elastic from an
independent third party at a cash consideration of
HK$10,000,000. Charming Elastic also owns 100%
equity interest in Jiangxi Charming Elastic Mfg. Co.
Ltd, which is engaged in manufacturing of elastic
webbing in the PRC.

Pursuant to the shareholders’ agreement entered
into among a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, the other shareholder of Charming Elastic
who by then held 60% equity interest in Charming
Elastic and Charming Elastic on the same date (the
“Charming Elastic Shareholders’ Agreement”),
the shareholder who holds more than 50%
equity interest in Charming Elastic (the “Majority
Shareholder”) and the Group were entitled to
appoint or remove three and two directors out of the
five directors at the board of directors of Charming
Elastic respectively.

The shareholders of Charming Elastic (the Majority
Shareholder and the Group) had also contractually
agreed sharing control over Charming Elastic,
as certain decisions about the relevant activities,
including but not limited to business, financial and
operational matters of Charming Elastic, require
unanimous consents from at least two directors
appointed by the Majority Shareholder and one
director appointed by the Group. Accordingly, the
Group has joint control over Charming Elastic and
the investment in equity interest in Charming Elastic
is accounted for as an interest in a joint venture.

The Charming Elastic Shareholders’ Agreement
also involves terms that granted rights to the Group
to purchase additional equity interest in Charming
Elastic and rights to the other shareholder of
Charming Elastic to exercise to sell equity interest
of Charming Elastic to the Group, accordingly, the
Group recognised derivative financial assets and
liabilities since the date of acquisition of Charming
Elastic at the consolidated statement of financial
position (details as set out in Note 29).

e B R MY A

TE-F+-A=Z+—HIEEE

REERENER (&

Bz : R-Z—RHE+—AWE  KEE
4 MRE10,000,0008TEBILS
ZHRESBRIBENA0%ME -
FBIRIRA IR A Jiangxi Charming
Elastic Mfg. Co. Ltd (ERFREE
BUE RIS ) 100% B AR HE -

REBEARARZZEWMBAR - AEIR
@%Wh—uk%(ﬁ“hhﬁ%%
BIRTEE0% M AHE) U R B BISRRS
KRB RIS B R a5 ([ SRR
TRRIGBE])  FAEGEBRRTHR
HE50% A LR RR ([EBIRR]) &
AEED R ARZEIHBRLAEBRR
§§$§£@§$¢m_u&ﬁu§

FEERTENRR (ET2RENAE
E) MERHRERZEBERRTH
zHE - AREHELY (BEETR
RGBERTHRS - ML EE
H)METARAERLATIERREME
MEDMUEEMAAKREREN—
UEE—HAE - @Al - REEHG
BRRS A HLFEESE MR AER
RERENREARIIARGEDRE
YRS ©

FEBIRHERRGHETS MR TAE
I ) S BB A R AR 7 I R T
BEARIR T 5 — (B R ERN A R A
& A BARIR S A RV 5K - EUE
AEE B KBEAREKRIR® B RN
BMBIRARERTLEEREERE
& (FHBENHIE29) »
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18.

200

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 18.
(Continued)

Summarised financial information of Charming
Elastic, adjusted for any differences in accounting
policies, and a reconciliation to the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements, are
disclosed below:

REERXENER (&)

FPEBREZVHENME (e
AERRZEFRMEZERMEFE) BRE
MBHREANZREEHRBEEDT

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&T
At 31 December R+=A=+—H
Current assets M EE 52,750 55,336
Non-current assets IEMBNEE 12,790 15,506
Current liabilities mEIAEE (9,162) (15,930)
Equity 1 (56,378) (54,912)
For the year ended 31 December #HZEZE+-A=+—HLEFE
Revenue WA 75,416 80,671
Profit for the year FEm A 4,977 7,659
Other comprehensive income HEmzmEilias (1,712) 1,801
Total comprehensive income PHE R AREE 3,265 9,460
Dividend received from the joint FREWELTLERE
venture during the year - 906
Reconciliation of the above summarised _t it 1 75 & £ B B4R &
financial information to the carrying I mARPEROASER
amount of the Group’s interest in BEPENER Z REEY
the joint venture recognised in the FREDINT -
consolidated financial statements:
Net assets of Charming Elastic BEBBE 2 EETE 56,378 54,912
Group’s effective interest REE L ERER 51% 51%
Group’s share of Charming Elastic’s net N &EE A BIEES 2
assets BEFE 28,753 28,005
Other adjustment H Az 878 878
Goodwill BES 9,786 9,786
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest A& BT A RBIRIR H s 2
in Charming Elastic SRME 39,417 38,669
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

INVENTORIES 19. FE&
2022 2021
—E-H —E-—1F
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FET FHT
Raw materials R # 405,750 542,365
Work in progress M 422,780 570,960
Finished goods IRk 307,246 343,472
1,135,776 1,456,797
TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 20. ESEWFEREREE
2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET FHT
Trade receivables B S EWIE 651,675 845,799
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (19,948) (24,636)
Total trade receivables B 5 EW B AR 631,727 821,163
Bills receivables N ES S 23,018 28,267
Total trade and bills receivables B 5 MEWGRIE & IR
k] 654,745 849,430

As at 1 January 2021, trade receivables
from contracts with customers amounted to
HK$793,497,000.

Trade receivables from third parties mainly
represent receivables from customers in relation to
the sales of elastic fabric, lace and elastic webbing.
The credit period granted to the customers ranges
from 30 to 90 days from the date of issuance of a
monthly statement with respect to sales delivered
in the particular month.

BRBEERIERERAR / —E-—FFR)

R-BE-_—F—F—B kEEFA
#IHE FEWFIE A793,497,000/8
ﬁ: °

EWE = FESFETESHTEE
MEmER - EHRENSTEBED
BUREFEZHE BETFTEFHNEEHRA
BEREAEFEHEEAMWALERZLA
HA#EZT30E90H -
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20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 20.

(Continued)

The following ageing analysis of trade receivables,
net of credit loss allowance, is presented based
on the date of issuance of monthly statements at
the end of each reporting period and the ageing
analysis of bills receivables is presented based on
the date of issuance of the bills at the end of each

reporting period.

BEZRUMEREVERE &)

AT AN ERE R REE 5 YK
BIGREEERBEBRAGER LA
HIZ2 5 R DT MR B HREBER
FREREREEAR2I0KRED

1 e

2022 2021
B T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T

Trade receivables B S EWRIE
0 - 90 days 0—90H 595,237 765,207
91 - 180 days 91—180H 35,058 49,914
Over 180 days HiAm180H 1,432 6,042
631,727 821,163

Bills receivables EWEE

0 - 90 days 0—90H 19,688 26,002
91 - 180 days 91—180H 3,330 1,746
Over 180 days #1180 H - 519
23,018 28,267
654,745 849,430

Trade receivables balances with related parties
included in the Group’s trade receivables balance

are listed below:

FEAREBE 5 BRI A SR BLRE
BT B 5 R WG IR SRS S0 T

2022 2021
—ECCE - —4F
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FET T
Related parties 2l
Related companies* [E2):/NT 46,630 54,401
Other related companies® =) /N 63,808 112,399
110,438 166,800
* Related companies controlled by close family * AR RS TESNTBRRENKBE
members of certain directors of the Company (these Bl EEE A B (R FEE /AR
directors are key management personnel of the FEEBAR) -
Company).
# The related companies are fellow subsidiaries of the # ZEBRGB AR AU AEEETHEAR
non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries who RAIEBEAFEZWB ARG EZERR
have significant influence over certain subsidiaries of BRI RMBAR -

the Group.
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TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

The above trade receivables balances with related
parties are unsecured, interest-free and with a
credit term of 30 to 90 days from the date of
issuance of a monthly statement for sales delivered
in that month. The following is an aging analysis
of trade receivables balances with related parties
presented based on the date of issuance of
monthly statements at the end of each reporting
period.

20.

BEZRUREREVRE (&)

A FEEETNE S REKRIBLER R
mEH 28  EEHRELAEE
Afm A&EEZR T HERET30H £90
B ATHAEBEHFINE S EWKIE
EHRN S RERMSERBIZALEER
W HEZ27AERER DT ©

2022 2021

—E-CF —E-—4F

HK$’000 HK$’ 000

FET FH&T

0 - 90 days 0—90H 102,684 155,974
91 - 180 days 91—180H 7,730 10,826
Over 180 days HBim180H 24 -
110,438 166,800

All bills received are held by the Group for future
settlement of trade receivables and are with a
maturity period of less than one year. The Group
continues to recognise their full carrying amounts at
the end of the reporting period.

BRBEERIERERAR / —E-—FFR)

AREBRRKRGEHE 5 WA
BB REENEHBARH DN
—F o ARERBENHEEREHE
FERE 2 RMREE -
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20.

204

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

The Group’s trade receivables that are
denominated in currencies which are not the
functional currencies of the relevant group entities
are set out below:

20. EFRUREREBRERE (@)

NI EE BRI ERNERET
BENAREEE 5 RUGIRSSIIN T

United

States Vietham
Dollar Dong Renminbi
(“US$”) (“VND”) (“RMB”)
xR HMrEE AR
(MEx])) (HEED (AR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FERT
At 31 December 2022 R-B-_—_F+=-A=+—8 154,314 4,559 1,385
At 31 December 2021 N_E_—F+-A=+—H 260,332 12,640 1,156

As at 31 December 2022, included in the Group’s
trade receivables balance are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of HK$40,839,000
(2021: HK$58,715,000 ) which are past due as at
the reporting date. Out of the past due balances,
HK$1,678,000 (2021: HK$2,465,000) has been
past due 90 days or more and is not considered
as in default as these balances are either from
debtors with long term business relationship or are
individually insignificant. Other than bills receivables
with aggregate carrying amount of HK$23,018,000
(2021: HK$28,267,000), the Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

Details of impairment assessment of trade
receivables and bill receivables are set out in Note
38.

RZE-_—_F#+=-_A=+—H8 " K
SEESRUFELEGBEEERR
540,839,000 L (=& = —%F :
58,715,000 7T) MERNR + ZEF X
ERHREBEHD B - B4
F 1,678,000 L (=ZF=—%F
2,465,000/ 7T) WFIAE #HI90 B
HHBAO0OH B RWARIEELD B
EEBRBERPERBHENED
AXEBEBITEKN - BREER
523,018,000 L (T = —4F :
28,267,000/ 70 ) W EIKEEIN - K
SEMERZEESRIFEEAERY -

BB 5 RUGIA KB W R B R ER
HEVFF BB MY ESS -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 21. HtEKWRE  REREMLR
AND PREPAYMENTS b |
2022 2021
—E-HF —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FERT FAT
Deposit paid EfERE 29,127 31,884
Deposit paid for acquisition of property W EEYZE - BB kR
plant and equipment BffiES 26,609 30,811
Prepayments TEfT IR 48,527 45,443
Interest receivables FEWFIE 850 1,384
Other tax recoverables E b AT Y o] 7 18 39,285 48,808
Other receivables Ho M FEUGRIE 22,471 28,213
166,869 186,543
Analysed as: DR
Current assets mENEE 127,460 128,194
Non-current assets FEMENE E 39,409 58,349
166,869 186,543
Non-current deposits stated on the consolidated BEMBRAKRMENIERDIZEE
statement of financial position include certain BETH2ReERKEYE  BEKR
rental deposits and deposits paid for acquisition of HENENES -

property, plant and equipment.

Details of impairment assessment of other B B E A W RIE R IZ & 2R ER &
receivables and deposits are set out in Note 38. HIFFIBE A MIFE38 ©

BRBEERIERERAR / —E-—FFR)
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OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 21. HMEWRE - RERFAEFRK
AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued) 5 (#&)
Other receivables balance with related parties AN B H fib fE I 5RIA /Y B2 B S

included in the Group’s other receivables are listed
below:

Mt U IR A SRS A T

Amounts due from related companies FE R BB A B FRIE
2022 2021
e —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Related parties 2L
A related company* — A A 7] 741 872
Other related company? )N 1,859 2,296
2,600 3,168
* A related company controlled by close family * HARRABTESHAERRENXE
members of certain directors of the Company ZHINEN AR (ZEEEFALRRA
(these directors are key management personnel MNEZEEBAR) - ZoBEIIESH
of the Company). The amount is non trade nature, ME - REER RERAKREX
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. BE REBE-ZZT-__F+=ZA=
The maximum outstanding amount of such other T—HIEFE - EZBEBARMEE
receivables with the related company during the year K E fth FE U FRIE 2 e K M R IR B
ended 31 December 2022 is HK$1,367,000 (2021: #51,367,0008 T (ZTZ—%F ¢

HK$872,000).

# The related company is a fellow subsidiary of the #

non-controlling shareholder of subsidiary who has
significant influence over subsidiary of the Group.
The amount in non trade nature, unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand. The maximum
outstanding amount of such other receivables
with the related company during the year ended
31 December 2022 is HK$2,296,000 (2021:
HK$2,681,000).

BEST PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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ZEB AR BYUALENBARAS
ERTE KB ARIEERBRRAR
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PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, SHORT 22. BHEBBTER  EHETHE
TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK REBRITHEBRES
BALANCES AND CASH
As at 31 December 2022, pledged bank deposits RZEBE-_—_F+_-_A=+—8 oK
represent deposits pledged to banks to secure the HRITGEREERTRITERLRAEE
bills payables issued by the Group, carried at fixed BHNENZEBEROER - BEF
interest rate ranged from 0.25% to 1.55% (2021: FENF0.25%E1.56% (= F = —
0.30% to 1.65%) per annum. F 1 0.30%%E1.65%) °
As at 31 December 2022, short term bank R-ZE-_—_F+-_A=+—H %58
deposits comprise bank deposits of fixed interest RITEFREBERCINPE A=A
rates ranging from 1.30% to 2.30% (2021: 1.30% ZTEANEEFHMENF1.30%
to 2.03%) per annum with an original maturity £2.30%(ZF=Z—F :1.30% %
between three months and twelve months. 2.03%) BYERTTIFHK °
Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the RITEHRLBESEEAIEBFENE
Group and bank deposits carry at variable interest S MREINHAB A=A THFE
rates with an original maturity of three months or BRITFER - RZTE_ZF+=H
less. As at 31 December 2022, the variable interest =+—H  EFEFMENF0.001%
rates ranged from 0.001% to 3.00% (2021: 0.001% £3.00% (ZF=Z—%F : 0.001%&E
to 1.73%) per annum. 1.73%) °
The Group’s pledged bank deposits, short term SR TR EENE KT
deposits and bank balances and cash that are ENAEEDEHMRITENR - BT
denominated in currencies which are not the HRBITER R SEHIIAT -
functional currencies of the relevant group entities
are set out below:
Euro Sri Lankan Singapore
HK$ Us$  (‘EUR") RMB VND Rupees (‘LKR”) Dollar (“SGD”)
B HERFEL ;g
BT #n (&n)) AR%® HEE (HE#FER) ([ $msg 7 )
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$O000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FATL Thr TEr  TATL  TEn TEL TERL
At 31 December H=Z=—%
2022 +ZA=+-H 184 52,594 68 1,687 1,063 3,826 390
At 31 December R-Z-—F
2021 +-A=1+-H 379 66,428 78 5,844 1,797 954 -
Details of impairment assessment of pledged bank EHEEEARITEFER RHRITER

deposits, short term bank deposits and bank
balances are set out in Note 38.

R ARAT 4 8 2 L 18 3T 4 0 3 LB B
538 -
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23.

208

TRADE PAYABLES 23. BESRE{IRIE
The credit period granted by the Group’s creditors AEEBERAGLTHEERNFH30
ranges from approximately 30 to 90 days. The £90H - U TREBSHENFIERE®
following is an ageing analysis of trade payables HEHERNEZEZAHZINERER D
presented based on the invoice date at the end of #r -
each reporting period:
2022 2021
—E-F —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FETT
0 - 90 days 0—90H 278,631 359,387
Over 90 days B3890 A 22,894 10,806
301,525 370,193
As at 31 December 2022, included in the Group’s N-_E-_—_"FF+_-_A=+—H
trade payables balance is an amount due to a joint HANEEFBE FENI I;ﬁ e
venture of HK$24,476,000 (2021: HK$26,328,000). 24,476,000 0 (—F = —4F :
Such balance due to a joint venture is unsecured, 26,328,000 1) TJEEH/\%/JE%M
interest-free and with a credit term of 30 days from I8 o ZERENEEDEEH BEEF
the date of issuance of a monthly statement for kel ZEHAALTEEE AHK
purchases delivered in that month. These balances i%?‘ﬁ HEIREEFT30H - RS H
are aged within 90 days at the end of the reporting T4 REE » ZEEBARETI0H
period. ﬂq o
The Group’s trade payables that are denominated AIEMBEBR T2 e gzt
in currencies which are not the functional currencies BENAEFERE S EMNRBEYWOT -
of the relevant group entities are set out below:
us$ EUR VND HK$ RMB
EH B HEE BT AR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TET THET FEL TET
At 31 December 2022 R-Z-"Ft-A=t+-H 26,506 - 15,728 - 310
At 31 December 2021 ~ RZZE_—F+-A=+—H 47,760 35 19,711 125 -
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BILLS PAYABLES 24, ENEE
The bills payables are secured by pledged bank ERRBE T2 & m 2 R
deposits as set out in Note 22. The following is an THERIEER - U TNRENZEERE
ageing analysis of bills payables presented based WERERFEERZHAHETN
on the date of issuance of the bills at the end of BRER AT -
each reporting period:
2022 2021
—ECCE —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
0 - 90 days 0—90H 120,977 282,431
91 - 180 days 91—180H 106,634 161,607
227,611 444,038
The Group’s bills payables that are denominated NFEHEAEE TR BB
in currencies which are not functional currencies of ENAEEREMNZEIHINET -
the relevant group entities are set out below:
uUs$ EUR VND
E BT MR E
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FHT F&T FHET
At 31 December 2022 R-ZBZZF
+=A=+—H 4,962 1,086 245
At 31 December 2021 RZT_—%F
+=-—A=+—H 29,800 4,466 965

BRBEERIERERAR / —E-—FFR)
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25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED 25, HiENSFERETER
CHARGES

2022 2021

—E-H —E-—4F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FH&T FET

Accrued staff costs JFE AT B T 5657 E 131,276 168,669

Other accruals EfbpEsrE A 48,896 36,410
Payables on acquisition of property, plant ~ WEEME - MEKEREN

and equipment FERTFRIE 48,182 50,092

Other payables HAb e 30E 61,353 101,891

Total HaEt 289,707 357,062

As at 31 December 2022, included in the Group’s
other payables balance is an aggregate amount
due to related companies of HK$10,156,000 (2021:
HK$9,240,000).

These related companies are fellow subsidiaries of
the non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries who
have significant influence over certain subsidiaries
of the Group. Such balances due to these related
companies are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

R-_E-_—_F+_-_AF=+—8 -
FFARNE B E b RIBE S
10,156,000 . (= &E = —F
9,240,000 7)) HEN @I AR R
B o

ZEEM AR RYAKEETHER
RIEAEARTE ZH B AR HE R
RORRMEBAR - ZFRNEBA
AR AEER RENMBRERE
2 o

26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 26. EHEE
2022 2021
—EC-F T —F
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FET FH&T
Deposits received in advance for: B FIIE B BRS¢
Manufacturing and trading of elastic fabric & & B &FE AW
and lace ER R E % 35,756 29,815
Manufacturing and trading of elastic RER B BB MET
webbing 5,293 5,040
41,049 34,855
As at 1 January 2021, contract liabilities amounted RZE-_—F—F—B AH8EA

to HK$33,267,000.
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CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued) 26. aNEEE)
As at 31 December 2022, included in the Group’s RZZE-—_F+-_A=+—8 i A
contract liabilities balance is an aggregate amount REBEXHNABEEHRI105,0008T

of HK$105,000 (2021: HK$115,000) received from
related companies. These related companies are
fellow subsidiaries of non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries who have significant influence over

certain subsidiaries of the Group.

The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised relates to carried-forward contract

liabilities.

=

BAR -
TR5IRE RN B
PRI -

Manufacturing
and trading of

—ZT - —4%F:115,0008L) HEH
MR A R EN B - 2@ A
AAHAEEETHBARARERXN
e ZMEB AR FEERRERR R

BANARE

Manufacturing
and trading of

elastic fabric elastic
and lace webbing
HEREEEM HER
BYERRESL BEEEMET
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET TAET
Revenue recognised during the year ended N_E-__F—H—HEY]
31 December 2022 that was included inthe (T ABNABLEHNEE
contract liabilities balance at the beginning of —ZE==F+=-A=+—H
the year on 1 January 2022 IFFEERERMA 29,815 5,040
Revenue recognised during the year ended RZE-—F—H—HFH
31 December 2021 that was included in the AR EBESRNER
contract liabilities balance at the beginningof ~ —Z=-—%+-H=+—H
the year on 1 January 2021 I FEEEERRA 29,853 3,414

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount
of contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

When the Group receives a deposit from customer
before the production activity commences, this
will give rise to contract liabilities at the start of a
contract (i.e. upon receipt of manufacturing order
from customer), until the revenue recognised on
the relevant contract. Other than customers with
long term business relationship with the Group
and/or satisfying historical settlement record, the
Group typically receives 30% to 100% deposit
on acceptance of manufacturing orders from
customers.

FEOHRANAESENAL MR
fERsRan T

MAEBREEFTDRARAIMEZRL U
Bize r @8R EH0RGE (BIER
REEFPHMBEIER)EEEGNEA
& BEEMABEOERRABL -
BEREEERAMEFRBEL, %
ERBLHEELBNRLIN » KE
EETREXREE] B P YE
30%E100%% & °
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27.

212

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

27. |ITREMERK

2022 2021
—E--F B —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FET

Bank overdrafts RITEX 9,686 29,111

Unsecured syndicated loan EIRPIREER 474,869 793,883

Unsecured bank borrowings ERRIRITIER 1,508,130 1,267,386

Unsecured other borrowings (Note) SR EMER () 105,515 70,024

2,098,200 2,160,404

Carrying amount repayable®: FEEEBFUEREE" -

Within one year —FR 1,838,077 1,364,879

More than one year, but not exceeding BE—FETBARE

two years 72,374 202,464

More than two years, but not exceeding HBmEETEBRE

five years 187,749 593,061
2,098,200 2,160,404

Less: Amounts due within one year or contain & : 8B BT RER
a repayment on demand clause shown —FAEEXEE
under current liabilities RERERIETEOE (1,992,685) (1,511,615)

Amounts shown under non-current liabilities ERBE G RAA 105,515 648,789

Carrying amount of bank borrowings that are 7R —FREBRES

repayable within one year and contain a RERER G
repayment on demand clause RITIEFMERAE(E 1,363,208 1,149,761
Carrying amount of bank borrowings that are ~ HBiB—F&EER
repayable more than one year but contain a BEREFERERW
repayment on demand clause RITEFNEREE 154,608 146,736
1,517,816 1,296,497

* The amounts due are based on scheduled * BIMFAEDIRBE S R Pr e Rt SIEE R
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements HET  TERAEEENFREERENR
and include the unamortised portion of the prepaid DR 2 RIS o
transaction cost in relation to the unsecured
syndicated loan.

Note: Other borrowings represent loans from non- MIFE : EMEREREMB AR EEBRBERNE
controlling shareholders of subsidiaries which are o BEER  ZRBERTRZERSMER
unsecured, carry interests at LIBOR plus a spread EERAREE T -_NF+_A=+—
per annum and repayable from the year ending 31 ALEE282_F_AF+_A=1+—H
December 2024 to the year ending 31 December HFEER(ZTE-_—F : ARHE T =
2025 (2021: repayable from the year ending 31 —EF+ At HALEEEEERE_T_H
December 2023 to year ending 31 December 2025). FH-A=+—RILFEEER) - ZZEM
Such other borrowings are denominated in US$. BRAZEITEHE -

BEST PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2022



27.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 27. S|BITRHEMER &)
(Continued)
The Group has an unsecured syndicated loan rEEE—EEERREER([#
(“Syndicated Loan”), which would be repayable BXR])  ExEEEHE_ZT-_—F+
by installments, from the year ended 31 December “RA=T—HBLEFEEHRE_T_=
2021 to the year ending 31 December 2023 and FTZA=1T—BLEFEIHEE -
with an interest rate at HIBOR plus a spread per BILERIZRBBRITRAERENEF
annum for HK$ loan tranche and LIBOR plus a REEFE  METEFIZBBEETT
spread per annum for US$ loan tranche. The EEFEMFFNEEEZFE - REE
Syndicated Loan was guaranteed by the Company. FITYAAR AR EER -
The unsecured bank borrowings and bank A —E—F+ZRA=
overdrafts were guaranteed by the Company and/ +—8  EEFRITERRETES
or certain of its subsidiaries as at 31 December TEARE R,/ SEETFHEARRE
2022 and 2021. HER o
The Group has floating-rate borrowings with AEBEFHNEEROFFERERE
interests rates linked to HIBOR, LIBOR or Secured MITRIZERE - MBBITRAEHFREHK
Overnight Financing Rate (“SOFR”) (2021: HIBOR EREREREMNE ((ERBREBEF
or LIBOR) per annum. RDN(ZFE=Z—F : EARITREER
B mBURTTRIZEE) #45 -
The Group’s bank and other borrowings that LEESEE TR EENE KT
are denominated in currencies which are not the ENASERTREME RS @
functional currencies of the relevant group entities N
are set out below:
VND Us$
BEE Y
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiTT FETT
At 31 December 2022 R=-=2——
+=ZA=+—H - 85,800
At 31 December 2021 R_TB_—%F
+=-ZA=+—H 915 204,049
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28. LEASE LIABILITIES 28. HE&AGE
2022 2021
—Eg-= —E—F
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FERT FH&T
Lease liabilities payable: JENEERE -
Within one year —FER 38,177 42,743
More than one year but not BA—FETBAME
exceeding two years 30,394 38,005
More than two years but not BAMTETNBEART
exceeding five years 10,264 37,776
More than five years Epohakad 52,711 53,191
131,546 171,715
Less: Amount due for settlement B mBBRERTRR12EA R
within 12 months shown under FIHA(EE 2 5B
current liabilities (38,177) (42,743)
Amount due for settlement after 12 JERENBEFTRR12ME B &
months shown under non-current  Ef{E& ~ FUB
liabilities 93,369 128,972
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates FrERREEBENIMEFILEE
applied to lease liabilities range from 2.89% to MFNEE2.89%E5.50%  (ZFE=—
5.50%. (2021: from 2.89% to 5.50%.) F 1 2.89%%5.50% ° )
Lease obligations that are denominated in M EEERB e EBRINER
currencies other than the functional currencies of FMECHEERGESHINT
the relevant group entities are set out below
LKR
HEBREL
HK$’000
FET
As at 31 December 2022 R-B-Z-§+=-A=+—H 260
As at 31 December 2021 R_E-_—F+=-A=+—H 1,329
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

29. fTEERTIA

2022 2021
—E-H —E-—1F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FERT FAET
Financial liabilities TRAE
Put option Rom HRE - 1,092
Put option of Charming Elastic FEEBRBRTHNRGHE

Pursuant to the Charming Elastic Shareholders’
Agreement, subject to and conditional upon
the Group becoming the Majority Shareholder
of Charming Elastic, the other shareholder of
Charming Elastic is entitled the right to exercise its
option to require the Group to buy out all or part of
the issued shares of Charming Elastic held by the
other shareholder at any time during the period of
two years from 1 July 2020 to 30 June 2022 at a
price set out in the Charming Elastic Shareholders’
Agreement. The put option is recognised as a
derivative financial instrument at FVTPL by the
Group. The gain on fair value change of such put
option of HK$1,092,000 (2021: HK$310,000) for
the year ended 31 December 2022 was recognised
in profit or loss as other gains and losses as set out
in Note 8. Details of the fair value measurement of
the put option are disclosed in Note 38.

The rights to exercise such put option by the other
shareholder of Charming Elastic was expired and
derecognised on 30 June 2022.

BREFBERBERRERE IR K
ERAEERASERIBEETNEER
R B-ZE-_ZTFLH—HEEEZ—
T —FERNAZTHMEAREME
M FEERENS —URREET
FHEARZRAEEZEELRBER
RipmEERRERS L RERF
ERNGBBRIRENE I E BT
B - RGHRBAEEERBER
BB AFEFENTESRHITA -
REBE_FT-_—_F+-_HA=1+—H1E
FE - BERIHRAFEEIHN
W#1,092,0008 L (== —F :
310,000 T) P8 ER AH =
NEE - ki EsFTE - R HEAR
T EFENFBERENHESS -

CEEBEEENS URRTEEBER
SHHIENEFNER S —F A=
T+ HEIE AR ERER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E - FE - —“F+-A=+—HILFE

30. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following is the major deferred tax assets
(liabilities) recognised and movements during the
current and prior years.

30. EEHIR

ATRRAFERBEFENTED
RECHAEEE (BE) RED -

Unsettled
Deferred Capitalised ~ Allowance Accelerated Retirement Undistributed interest
government finance for ECL fax benefit  profits from  income from Tax Right-of-use  Lease
grants costs inventories provision depreciation obligations  subsidiaries  subsidiaries  losses assets liabilities  Total
BERR  CEA(L RHEE g Bk BWEAIN EMEAIN  BE il
RBe MENA  FEEE BERE  RENE  BAER  AOMER REEASRA  BE B HERE &%
HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$'000 HKS000  HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn  TEr  TEr  ThEx Tén  TEn TER Tén  TER Tén  TEnr  TER
At 1 January R-B--%F
2021 -f-H 2,452 (2178 3899 1,739 (729 1,73 (988) (1009 1,685 (169) 1402 (31)
(Charged) credited to ~ #78% (31%)
profit or loss A
(Note 13) (FH13) (212 179 1,488 1,670 (13,950) (56) (285 (273 11,167 (193) 263 (2879
Chargedtoother  #Ef2E
comprehensive ezl
income - - - - - (307) - - - - - (307)
Exchange EXEE
adjustments 69 61) (467) - - - (106) - - - - (665)
31 December 2021 HZZZ—%
t-A=1-8 2309 (2,060) 490 3309 (1,242) 1372 (3.946) (1379) 1282 (1,889) 166 (412
(Charged) credited to ~ #£18% (41%)
proft or loss A
(Note 13) (Ft13) (39) (929) 1,887 (518) (14914 11 3511 (442) 13,718 600 (603 2,282
Credtedtoother  #EMZE
comprehensive WaRstA
income - - - - - 313 - - - - - 313
Exchange EREE
adjustments (125) 205 348 - - - 435 - - - - 863
At31December  W=F=&
2022 tZA=1-A 2,145 (2,784) 7,155 2,791 (36,156) 1,696 - (1,814 26,540 (1,289) 1,052 (664)
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DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

The above deferred tax assets and liabilities within
the same tax jurisdiction have been offset for
presentation purpose in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The following is the analysis of
the deferred taxation:

30.

FEBH (#£)

MEHRME - LABRRE—HREEDE
RENEERBEEERBBERES
MBIRN KK - AT RELEHIED
DT

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—8H

2022 2021

g —E-—4F

HK$’000 HK$’ 000

FET FH&T

Deferred tax assets FEETIEE = 9,071 5,576
Deferred tax liabilities BIEHIEAGE (9,735) (9,698)
(664) 4,122)

Withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared
in respect of profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries
from 1 January 2008 onwards. Under the EIT Law,
deferred tax liabilities have not been provided for in
the consolidated financial statements in respect of
temporary differences attributable to accumulated
profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
HK$1,557,918,000 as at 31 December 2022
(2021: HK$1,497,657,000), as the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The Group had unused tax losses of
HK$299,911,000 as at 31 December 2022 (2021:
HK$438,863,000). A deferred tax asset had
been recognised in respect of HK$189,570,000
(2021: HK$91,589,000) of such losses. No
deferred tax assets have been recognised in
respect of the remaining HK$110,341,000 (2021:
HK$347,274,000) due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams of respective group
entities. Included in unused tax losses are
losses of approximately HK$233,623,000 (2021:
HK$371,389,000) with expiry dates as disclosed
in the following table. Other losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.

BRBEERIERERAR / —E-—FFR)

BT N\FE—A—B# PEKHEB
N B Fh BT R B B S R A% B B 2B B AN
TEHNR - BIBEERSHZE - ARA
EEAIEHEOERZEMAER
mA BRI ZEN LKA T
Bo MUYERNGREYBEREREF
BB ARIR-_ZE_—_F+=-_A=
T —HEN M EENGEREE
1,557,918,0008 L (=& = —4F :
1,497,657,000/8 70) {EHIRER TH &
B o

RZEBE-_—_F+-_A=+—8B K&
B r R E) AT IE B 18 4 299,911,000
B (ZZ ——4 438,863,000/
JC) ° BEZEE1E189,570,000%8 7T
(ZZT=——4 :91,589,000/ 1) Kk
ERBEECERER BRSEEE
BE /9 R 2R A AT B9 N RTFEORIME - BRI
ERERERE T 110,341,000 7T (=
T —4F 347,274,000 7T ) IR AE
RBEE - APHAREBHERIEEE
#7233,623,000/8 L (T - —4F :
371,389,000/ ) + HE/HIA W&
Fri e - EfbEian MR 4SS -
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30.

31.

218

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 30. EEBIE (&)
31 December
+=ZBA=+—H
2022 2021
—E-CF —E- 1
HK$’000 HK$'000
Year of expiry BEIFEH FERT FET
2024 :g:mi 6,161 10,992
2025 —E-RhF 25,580 45,394
2026 :Zﬁ:/_\i 33,173 59,282
2027 “EC4AF 26,249 44,652
2028 :%E_)\E 24,461 -
2029 —EZhF 117,999 211,069
233,623 371,389
SHARE CAPITAL 31. B&
The detailed movements of the Company’s share ARAIBRAEBF BRI

capital are set out below.

Number of
shares Amount
RAEE £
HK$ HK$'000
BT THEL
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SHRAE.01 Bz LBk
Authorised: Ny
At 1 January 2021 and 31 December A ZZE-—F—A—HAR
2021 and 2022 —EC-FR-E-C
+-A=1t—H 50,000,000,000 500,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRET
At 1 January 2021 and 31 December R -Z-—F—HA—HK
2021 and 2022 R ERZFCCE
+-A=+—H 1,039,808,000 10,398,080 10,398
There was no movement in the Company’s share AN BIRRAS A WA B 4F [ 39 f A ] 2

capital during both years.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS
Defined contribution plans

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) under the rules and
regulations of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying employees in
Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ salaries with a cap
of HK$1,500 per month per employee and are
charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund. No forfeited
contribution is available to reduce the contribution
payable in the future years as at 31 December
2022 and 2021.

The Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to
make contributions to the state-managed retirement
schemes operated by the local governments based
on certain percentage of the monthly salaries of
their current employees to fund the benefits.

Eligible employees in Vietnam currently participate
in State Social Insurance Fund, which is a defined
contribution pension scheme operated by the
local municipal government. The calculation of
contributions is based on certain percentage of
employee’s payroll.

The only obligations of the Group with respect to
the above defined contribution retirement benefits
schemes are to make the required contributions
under the respective schemes.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the total
costs charged to profit or loss are HK$56,970,000
(2021: HK$59,321,000), representing contributions
paid/payable to the above defined contribution
retirement benefits schemes.

32.

RIREREE
REHRK S

REBRE R B MHERES 2K
RAIRRAE - BEFEREEEERE
B2HEBFIHABEeE ([RESE
2 #ENEREEFMNETES
LbEE - ERAEBHREES H1,500
BIL - ERBAERBIBRAERSFENR
Al BENFIER - SEHGAER K
H2EKERNR - RESFEE
EREAEBEESHRBE  ABELX
AAEBESRE RIE-__FK
—E-_—F+-A=+—8 ¥ER
V2 WA FR AT A BARL A R 2R F R /Y R A

K

ARAHPENERRRRERAE
BAFONETED LR BFEE
MBI R E IR RRFTBIEL R - (R
BHER

BEAEREERAMZ2EBARHL SR
REE I —RBMT BAEEN
RERFRARETE - HFTDRIEESR
HEETEDLEE -

AR ER Bl Lt R OE HBUR K& R T &l
MM — B T ARBESTEEL ATAM

=+
e

HE_ZT-_—_F+-_HA=+—H
FEFE  REHBROKANERE
#56,970,0008 L (ZF = —4F :
59,321,000/87C) + Bl Bt 7 FEH R
RINEFFTEINER AR -
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32. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS
(Continued)

Defined benefits plans

Under the Payment of Gratuity Act, the Company’s
Sri Lanka subsidiaries are required to operate
defined benefits plans by paying gratuity to
eligible employees who have served continuously
for five years and more under one employer.
The calculation of gratuity is based on certain
percentage of employee’s salaries and their number
of years of service. The details of the defined
benefits plans operated by the subsidiaries in Sri
Lanka are as follows:

RIRBERETE (2)

REBMNTE

REBMEXMNE  NARNHTER
B RARARILAERMNETE - @
RBREEERBAFRALNE
EREEXMNEME - BillE THRIE
BEHETWET AN REEFZRF
FHAE - BT EM R B RAIRL
HSRERRAE EIF BT

Retirement benefit obligations BHRENEE
2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FERT FA&T
At the beginning of the year REH] 9,789 9,060
Current service cost IR B AR SRR AR 1,029 1,355
Interest cost FLB R 614 809
Actuarial loss (gain) BEEE (W) 1,541 (2,195)
Acquisition of a business* I i — TR 75 - 1,882
Contributions paid [RANEE TN (272) (1,241)
Exchange gain PE 5 e (4,493) (510)
Others i (17) 629
At the end of the year RER 8,191 9,789

*

Being the addition due to the transfer in of
employees to a subsidiary upon the completion of
the acquisition of a business on 1 February 2021 as
disclosed in Note 33.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS 32. BRHKRBFGFE (2

(Continued)

Defined benefits plans (Continued) REBRGE (2Z)

Retirement benefit obligations (Continued) BHRERNEE(2Z)

The amounts recognised in the consolidated i ??/.:\JE N H A 2 E W R ER A
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive SR -

income are as follows:

2022 2021
—ECCF —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Current service cost IR AR TS A A 1,029 1,355
Interest cost LB 614 809
Acquisition of a business Ui — IR 275 - 1,882
Recognised in profit or loss RIBEER 1,643 4,046
Actuarial loss (gain) breakdown is as BEEE () BAmT
follows:
Loss (gain) from change in financial M REEEHEE
assumptions (Wezs) 1,541 (2,407)
Experience adjustments BRI - 212
Recognised in other comprehensive REMZEHAXER
expense 1,541 (2,195)
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32.

222

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS
(Continued)

Defined benefits plans (Continued)
Retirement benefit obligations (Continued)

This obligation, which is not externally funded,
is based on an actuarial valuation of the defined
benefit plan based on the projected unit credit
method, which is the benchmark method specified
in HKAS 19 carried out by a professional actuaries
as of 31 December 2021. The gratuity liability
of the subsidiaries in Sri Lanka is based on an
actuarial valuation carried out by Messrs’ Willis
Towers Watson Actuaries, whose principal place of
business is located at 2nd Floor, Tower B, Unitech
Business Park, South City-1, Gurgaon-122001,

32.

RIRERETE ()

REBME (&)
RABRNEE(E)

WERABESERINEETTINE
XBEMBE_T _*E‘i' A=
+— EIT;zi‘Equ 46 T ECAROE (1t
7%% BE: /‘iﬁ“J%197ﬁ?aEE’]%
BEE)HR ;E%mf'JquglJLﬂEl’H
THEARER HEBRHMHBAA®
B& & EIAHEMessrs’ Willis
Towers Watson Actuaries (EX &
LB 2nd Floor, Tower B,
Unitech Business Park, South City-1,
Gurgaon-122001, Haryana, India) i

Haryana, India. The principal assumptions used for THRBRENHAER - AR —B®
this purpose are as follows: MNEZ/HBLT -
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—1F
Discount rate per annum FREIR X 25% 11%
Annual salary increment rate FHPERE 25% 9%
Retirement age RIREFBR 60 60
Withdrawal rate R 15% 15%

As the amount of retirement benefit obligations is
insignificant, no sensitivity analysis on assumptions
used in the actuarial valuation is presented.
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ACQUISITION OF A BUSINESS

On 29 January 2021, the Group entered into an
assets sale and purchase agreement (“Assets
Sale and Purchase Agreement”) with Textprint
Lanka (Private) Limited (“Textprint”) (an indirect
wholly owned subsidiary of MAS Holdings (Private)
Limited, being the non-controlling shareholder
of Trischel Fabric (Private) Limited (“Trischel”), a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) in
relation to the purchase of assets and liabilities with
a cash consideration of US$3,538,197 (equivalent
to approximately HK$27,598,000) consisting of
(i) property, plant and equipment which mainly
included printing machines, washing machines,
boilers, steamers, fabric inspection machines,
dryers and other equipment for printing synthetic
fabrics and the associated finishing processes
currently used at the manufacturing plant of
Textprint, (i) inventories of Textprint; (i) retirement
benefit obligations; and (iv) amount due to Trischel
as at 31 January 2021. Pursuant to the Assets Sale
and Purchase Agreement, Textprint shall transfer
up to 252 of its employees to Trischel. Completion
of this acquisition had taken place on 1 February
2021.

The acquisition had been accounted for as
acquisition of business using the acquisition
method.

33.

WiE — B R

R_ZE_—F—AZ+NRB x&E
EATextprint Lanka (Private) Limited
([Textprint]) (MAS Holdings
(Private) Limited® 2 &K B
A\ MMAS Holdings (Private)
Limited R A RBIZEZEME R A
Trischel Fabric (Private) Limited
([Trischel]) M 3FEMRRER) T L&
EEEm=([EEEEHR]) 18
BRHALIESMN(ES538,197F L (HE
#)27,598,0008 ) BEEENKE
& BEPBFEOME  BWENI&E -
FEBRBRA Textprint R IERFE 5
EVENTEME - JEMRME - SRME - 207 -
B ME Rk EMmRE - F
VA& A 4 Ak D ENTE R AE R 1 N T
T - (i)TextprintFE : (i) RIKE
MEE: RivVRZZEZ—F—HA=1
—HE[ Trischel I FIA - RIBEEE
& ik - TextprintZB[A) Trischel# 3
RZ252%EE - ZWBSEHEE N =
T —F-HA—HB%K e

ZWEBERDUNRBEARBEIER
& o

BEERERERAT/ —E- —FER 223



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E - FE - —“F+-A=+—HILFE

33.

224

ACQUISITION OF A BUSINESS 33. WE—EEXK#)
(Continued)
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at RUBBERHBBNEERERE
the date of acquisition
HK$’000
FAT
Property, plant and equipment L E Y 23,719
Inventories "E 16,815
Retirement benefit obligations BRBAEE (1,882)
Amount due to Trischel JE{~ Trischel BYRIE (7,154)
31,498
Analysis of cash outflow in respect of g — IR TSR
acquisition of a business: WE M
Cash consideration ReERE 27,598

Bargain purchase gain amounting to HK$3,900,000
on acquisition of a business from Textprint is
recognised in profit or loss within the other income
(Note 7) in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income. The bargain
purchase gain is resulted from the revaluation of
machinery acquired from Textprint as performed by
an independent valuer in Sri Lanka.
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34. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

34. BEARARHMAELE

2022 2021
—EC- —E—%F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
Capital expenditure in respect of the EAREYE BF
addition of property, plant and equipment HENEFTHNER
contracted but not provided for BENE AR 126,291 130,167

Note:

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
22 December 2016, Dongguan BPT and seven
independent third parties entered into an agreement
in relation to the formation of a company to be
established in the PRC (‘the Investee”) to engage
in insurance business and related financial activities
in the PRC. Pursuant to such agreement, Dongguan
BPT has agreed to make a capital contribution of
RMB140,500,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$
HK$158,765,000) in return for approximately 7.022%
equity interest in the Investee. As at the date of these
consolidated financial statements are authorised
for issue, formation of the Investee is subject to
the approval from China Insurance Regulatory
Commission and no contribution was made by the
Group to the Investee.

Bt AR FBHA-T—RNE+_A
“+_BMREREE  RxiBAmn
tRBBILE=ZFRL—BHE A
REBEFHAEZAR ([HERELD
Al UEHBEREREEES MIEHE
WHEE - RIFZ e ReBAD
RE/ITE AR 140,500,0007T (10
ER49158,765,000087T) - LAEH
%&"&ﬁ/&m@?.on%mﬂﬁé o M

LHRAMERRERERGEY - &
ﬂ&’%xé“ RIEGR BRI ERER
xgmﬁt/ﬁ BAEETEAERE

_H/Eﬁf\v\ °
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35.

36.

37.

226

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
has pledged bank deposits amounted to
HK$68,428,000 (2021: HK$121,607,000) to secure
the bills payables issued by the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group does not have any contingent liability so
far as the management of the Group is aware that
is pending or threatened by or against the Group.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that it
will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from
prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of
debts, which mainly include bank and other
borrowings as disclosed in Note 27 and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
share capital disclosed in Note 31 and reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital
structure by considering the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital. In view
of this, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, new
shares issue as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debts.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

38. &#@ITH

Categories of financial instruments SRTAEESE
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FRT FHET
Financial assets CRIEE
Financial assets measured at amortised ¥R ANEHE &Y
cost TREE 1,863,740 2,095,200
Financial liabilities TEAE
Financial liabilities measured at amortised — $&#E SR AN 12 &Y
cost TRAE 2,917,043 3,331,697
Financial liabilities at FVTPL FHBEREATEFTEN
cRaE
— derivative financial instrument — TAESRIT A - 1,092
Financial risk management objectives and BERSEEBZERBUR

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
trade and bills receivables, other receivables and
deposits, pledged bank deposits, short term bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, trade payables,
bills payables, other payables and accrued charges,
bank and other borrowings and derivative financial
instrument. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management of the Group manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

AEENTIEZERTIABHEESRE
WOskIA b e W R IR - E U BUR
Rige  DERRITHER - RBRT
TR RITEHNERE  EHEMNK
R EBNRE - EMRNFORKRES
BR  RITMEMEFARITES
TA -ZESRIANFBREEMN
ARE - TXEJEZFEMT AR
B 1 B B % 4 f] B R 5% S R B B R
R AGEHEEBEENEEZTME
@ DAREOR K B RO EREUE E fE it
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38.

228

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk
Interest rate risk

The Group is mainly exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable-rate and fixed-rate
pank and other borrowings and bank balances, and
fair value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate
pledged bank deposits, short term bank deposits
and lease liabilities.

The Group currently does not have interest rate
hedging policy. However, management closely
monitors its exposure to future cash flow risk as
a result of change on market interest rate and will
consider hedging changes in market interest rates
should the need arise.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk section of
this note. The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is
mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR or
LIBOR arising from the Group’s variable-rate bank
and other borrowings.

A fundamental reform of major interest rate
benchmarks is being undertaken globally, including
the replacement of some interbank offered
rates (“IBORs”) with alternative nearly risk-free
rates. Details of the impacts on the Group’s risk
management strategy arising from the interest
rate benchmark reform and the progress towards
implementation of alternative benchmark interest
rates are set out under “interest rate benchmark
reform” in this note.

38.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rate risk
on bank and other borrowings. The sensitivity
analysis is prepared assuming the bank and other
borrowings outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole year. No
sensitivity analysis is presented on bank balances
as the management of the Group considers that
the interest rate fluctuation on bank balances is
minimal.

A 100 basis point (2021: 50 basis point) increase
or decrease is used in the sensitivity analysis,
which represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in interest rates. If
the interest rate had been 100 basis point (2021:
50 basis point) higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit
for the year ended 31 December 2022 would
decrease/increase by HK$16,607,000 (2021:
HK$9,047,000).

38.

ETRMITHE @)
MYEREREBREE (£)
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FIER b ()

BRRMEDHT
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. €T H (&)
Financial risk management objectives and HERBEEEZEREK ()
policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued) mERkE (&)
Currency risk B b
Certain trade and bills receivables, trade payables, ETESRUFELREKRER -5
bills payables, bank balances and cash, and r1ﬁrAIE JENT R - RITEHR LR
bank borrowings are denominated in foreign i SUARRITERHUEBEEERN
currencies other than the functional currency of the NEEE B AN INESHE - EBARSE
relevant group entities, which expose the Group lﬁﬁun%%ﬂ g o 7N 5 [H] NP A HNEE S
to foreign currency risk. The Group does not R o AT - AR BEEIEE BTN
have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, R WHEREERZEEHHPERKX
the management of the Group monitors foreign HNEE [RLBg o
exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign REBE LA 9|\¢%¥uﬂﬁﬁﬁf¢%§ﬁ)§iﬁ &
currency denominated monetary assets and R & HEAERFHEREESD T
liabilities at the end of the reporting periods are as
follows:
Assets
BE
2022 2021
—E-H B4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FH&T
EUR against HK$ BRIT BT 64 94
RMB against HK$ AR H BT 3,215 7,204
US$ against HK$ ETHBT 213,124 334.860
VND against US$ MG HET 7,199 29,262
HK$ against US$ TR ZETT 183 379
RMB against US$ ARKEHZET 9 44
LKR against US$ HEBRELLET 3,826 954
US$ against RMB ETLHARE 887 994
SGD against US$ TR 3T 390 -
Liabilities
&
2022 2021
—ECCE - —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHTT
EUR against HK$ |80 7T %78 T 476 4,466
RMB against HK$ AR ST 143 143
US$ against HK$ ETLHABTT 105,716 281,613
VND against US$ M E R ETT 23,849 29,813
HK$ against US$ BILHETT 99 402
EUR against US$ BRIT 5 T 1,144 36
RMB against US$ AR R ZETT 310 -
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of foreign currency
denominated intra-group balances which have been
eliminated in the consolidated financial statements
of certain subsidiaries of which the functional
currency are RMB, HK$ and US$ at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

38.

£RTHE (&)
BEEKRETEEERBE (£)

mEER (&)
E¥mE (&)

REREHRAERE - LIMNEHERN &
BARREESRNEEESIIAT
BRAZEHRONDEERER/RARE 8
TERETHE THE R RN S M5

Amount due from/(to)
group entities

P,/ (f%) EEERRUE

2022 2021

e —FF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

HK$ against RMB BILHARE 557,736 585,407
US$ against RMB ETHRARKE 17,311 28,383

Sensitivity analysis

Since the exchange rate of HK$ is pegged with
US$, the Group does not expect any significant
movements in the US$/HKS$ exchange rates.
Therefore, the following sensitivity analysis does not
include the effect between US$ and HK$.

BRANE DT

BB TTER T - AREFEHX
T ETTERY EEMERE -
bt AR D AT I B FE T
BILHENFE -
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38.

232

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Currency risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
to a 10% increase and decrease in the functional
currency of the respective group entity against
relevant foreign currencies and all other variables
were held constant. 10% is the sensitivity rate
used by management in the assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currencies denominated
monetary items and intragroup foreign currency
balances and adjusts its translation at the period
end for a 10% change in foreign currencies rates.
A positive number below indicates an increase in
post-tax profit for the year where foreign currencies
strengthen 10% against functional currency (HK$
or RMB or US$) of the respective group entity. For
a 10% weakening of foreign currencies against
functional currency (HK$ or RMB or US$) of the
respective group entity there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the result for the year.

38.

£HTHE &)
BERKRETEEERBE (£)

mEER (&)
E¥mE (&)

TRFIAEEHSEBR TR E
W AR RN TR 10% B BURE - T
FIEEMEHERZTTE - 10%BEE
B LERAT e A B E B A BRIt
R o BRI D ATIE B IE A B H 2 A
SNETIENERIBEE REBRRARM
HNEE S S5 - WA BR R 32 10% A IE 2 &
BABREBRE - O ESBERINE L
BEEBERNEEE (BT AR
ZETT) FHE10% B AREER %%
FlEgm - INEH R EBERNEE
(BT ARENEL) BEI10%E
HAFEXEEERRREARNTE -
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. €MTIH#)

Financial risk management objectives and HERMREEEEREEK (£Z)
policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued) mERER (&)
Currency risk (Continued) EmE e (&)
2022 2021
—E-F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FABT
Increase (decrease) in post-tax REERBIERT
profit for the year o CrA)
Foreign currency against HK$ HNEE BT 232 236
Foreign currency against RMB HNEEH AR 48,955 52,257
Foreign currency against US$ HNEEH ZETT (1,115) 38
In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is EREERE  ARMEHBEAERED
unrepresentative of the inherent currency risk as the 2 B AP S f2 B F A Y R B - UERURR
exposure at the end of the reporting period does DT T RERRALEEE R

not reflect the exposure during the year.

Other price risk H (B 157 bz
The sensitivity analysis of the derivative financial MESBHMTENGFRERESITR TX
instrument is disclosed in the section “fair value [EMT A AVEFE | —5FE -

measurements of financial instruments” below.
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38.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause
a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge obligations by the counterparties as at
the end of reporting period are arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group identifies trade receivables
that are credit-impaired and assesses their ECL
individually, and performs impairment assessment
under ECL model on the remaining trade balances
based on provision matrix. The estimated loss
rates are estimated based on historical observed
default rates over the expected life of the debtors
and are adjusted for forward-looking information
(for example, the current and forecasted default
rates in Asia-Pacific, North America and Europe
as published by international credit agency,
which reflect the general credit risk of the major
debtors and the geographical market that they
operate) that is available without undue cost or
effort. Such forward-looking information is used
by the management of the Group to assess both
the current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions at the reporting date. The grouping
is regularly reviewed by the management of the
Group to ensure relevant information about specific
debtors is updated. In this regard, the management
of the Group considers that the Group’s credit risk
is significantly reduced.

38.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The Group had concentration of credit risk on
trade receivables as 17.2% (2021: 15.1%) of the
total trade receivables were due from the Group’s
largest debtor based in Hong Kong and 42.0%
(2021: 43.7%) of the total trade receivables were
due from the Group’s largest five debtors, which
were mainly based in Hong Kong and Sri Lanka as
at 31 December 2022.

Bills receivables, pledged bank deposits, short term
bank deposits and bank balances

The credit risks for bills receivables, pledged bank
deposits, short term bank deposits and bank
balances are limited because such amounts are
placed in banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies or state-owned
banks.

The Group has concentration of credit risk on liquid
funds which are deposited with several reputable
banks.

38.
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ERARRAETE ()
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38.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

38.

€T R &)

BEEBEERRERBE (&)

EE R KRBERNG (&)

AEBENABEERRD FFEERE

NHIEER

Other financial

Internal assets at
credit rating  Description Trade receivables amortised cost
R R AT ERAY
REEETR B 5 WA Hitem&EE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of Lifetime ECL - not 12m ECL
default and does not have any past-due credit-impaired
amounts or the past-due amounts are
insignificant
iV ﬁ%ﬁ%i%ﬂAFﬁ B EEmg 2HEHEEER 128 AFEEEEEE
TR B IAN N E R — REEEERE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due Lifetime ECL - not 12m ECL
dates but usually settle after due date credit-impaired
BRAE EBARERIPRREEERERE 2HEHEEER 1218 A A A E E 518
HIRREE — REEFERE
Doubtful There have been significant increases Lifetime ECL - not Lifetime ECL - not
in credit risk since initial recognition credit-impaired credit-impaired
through information developed internally
or external resources
it FRANBINEEIRZNER AT AE  HEEEEE HITEEE S &R
BB B BIRERARBEZE N — REEEFERE — REAEFERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is  Lifetime ECL - credit-  Lifetime ECL - credit-
credit-impaired impaired impaired
E1a BEBETZEEREEERE > HITEEE B > HITEIEE AR
— BAEEERE —BEEERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the Amount is written off ~ Amount is written off
debtor is in severe financial difficulty
and the Group has no realistic prospect
of recovery
i g5 EEBETEBARAREVBRNER MiEZeH W% 258

AEERSEERIKE A 5L
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures
of the Group’s financial assets at amortised cost

38. &€@IE %)
BEEKRETEEERBE (£)

ERARRAETE ()

TREMBETEREEBREN GH
AEEREHEAAIENEREER

which are subject to ECL assessment: RHEERR :
2022 2021
External Internal 12m or Gross carrying  Gross carrying
Notes creditrating credit rating lifetime ECL amount amount
1288 s i
W ABEEIR AHEETR 2HEBEEER REAR REAE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT
Financial assets at amortised
cost ~
REERAIENERERE
Trade receivables 20 N/A Note (a) Lifetime ECL (provision 635,577 827,775
matrix)
g I RWTIE @A Mzt (e) PHRBEEER
(BipER)
20 NA Note (g) Credit-impaired 16,098 18,024
TER Mt () BEEERE
651,675 845,799
Bills receivables 20 N/A N/A 12m ECL \ 23,018 28,267
e TEA TR 12HAESEERE
Other receivables and deposits 21 NA Note (b) 12m ECL N 52,448 61,481
At YR R iR & TER MEE(b) 12EARHEERE
Pledged bank deposits 22 Notg (© N//i 12m ECL N 68,428 121,607
EEARTER MizE(c) TER 12EAARHEERSE
Short term bank deposits 22 Note (c) N/A 12m ECL ) 36,954 163,814
EHRITER () TR 12EARHEERE
Bank balances 22 Note(c) NA 12m ECL ‘ 1,050,868 898,387
RITHEER izt () am 12EARHEESE
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38.

238

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Notes:

() For trade receivables, the Group has applied the
simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the
credit loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for
debtors with significant outstanding balances that are
credit-impaired, the Group determines the ECL on
these items by using a provision matrix, grouped by
internal credit rating.

(b) For the purposes of internal credit risk management,
the Group uses past due information to assess
whether credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition. All of these balances are either
not past due or have no fixed repayment term at 31
December 2022 and 2021.

(c) The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
pledged bank deposits, short term bank deposits
and bank balances is limited because most of such
balances are placed in banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies or
state-owned banks, for which the Group considers
to have low credit risk.

Provision matrix — internal credit rating

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the
Group applies internal credit rating for its customers
in relation to its manufacturing and trading of elastic
fabric, lace and webbing operation. The following
table provides information about the exposure to
credit risk for trade receivables which are assessed
on a collective basis within lifetime ECL (not
credit-impaired). Credit-impaired customers with
gross carrying amount of HK$16,098,000 (2021:
HK$18,024,000) as at 31 December 2022 were
assessed individually.

38.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. €MTIA#E)
BHEEBEEERERBE(E)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

EE R RBENG (&)

(Continued)

Gross carrying amount AREIAEEE
2022 2021
Trade Trade
receivables receivables
g8 —E-—F
EZEWRRE BFEKF0E
HK$’000 HK$ 000
Internal credit rating REEE TR THET FHT
Grades 1-2: Low risk 1-2 4 - KRk 553,422 718,689
Grade 3: Watch list 3 BRAE 82,155 106,725
Grade 4: Doubtful 4 % - 75k - 2,361
635,577 827,775

During the year ended 31 December 2022, lifetime
ECL (not credit-impaired) on trade receivables was

provided based on the provision matrix.

As at 31 December 2022, the weighted average
loss rate applied in determining the lifetime ECL (not

credit-impaired) was 0.6% (2021: 0.8%).

HE T -_—"F+-_A=+—HItF
B BIRKZEBEZHEHEEE
B(RBEEEZERE) NIREREEE

£z -

R-_E-_—_F+-_A=+—H " JE

AREBEE=MEHESR

R OCREE

ZERE) NEFHYEIERA0.6%
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BAERRERERAR/ —E-—F5RK 239



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= A

W

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z=—

38.

240

A BB WA

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Gross carrying amount (Continued)

The following table shows the movement in lifetime
ECL that has been recognised for trade receivables
under the simplified approach.

- —FH+-_A=+—HIEFE

€T R &)

BEEBEERRERBE (&)

EE R KRBERNG (&)

ARETHE AR (48

TRBRE R BORH 9 KRR
HERA) 2 HITE HO S B A

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
2HES 2HES
FEFB FEFE
(RBE (%%
FERE) ZERE) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHEL THEL
At 1 January 2021 RZE-—F—F—H 12,669 - 12,669
Changes due to trade receivables EHRE SEUFBREE
recognised:
— impairment losses recognised on E —E_—%-A-A
financial assets carried forward from RBNRAEDRER
1 January 2021 REEE - 13,615 13,615
— transfer to credit-impaired - BREEEERE (4,409) 4,409 -
— impairment losses recognised on new  — FELMHLREBE
financial assets originated BRARERE 6,612 - 6,612
- impairment losses reversed - BEERESE (8,260) - (8,260)
At 31 December 2021 RZB--#+ZA=+-H 6,612 18,024 24,636
Changes due to trade receivables EHRRE SEUTBRBEE :
recognised:
— impairment losses recognised on new  — BE4A R EREE
financial assets originated BRERAERE 3,850 - 3,850
— impairment losses reversed — BEERESE (6,516) 4 (6,520)
- Write-off — HisH - (408) (408)
Exchange adjustments PEE 34 5 2 (96) (1,514) (1,610)
At 31 December 2022 R-ZB-_Z#+ZA=+-H 3,850 16,098 19,948
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Gross carrying amount (Continued)

During the year, there were impairment losses
reversed due to the settlement of trade receivables
carried forward from prior year. As a result, a
reversal of provision of HK$6,520,000 (2021:
HK$8,260,000) has been recognised in the current
year.

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there
is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or when the trade receivables are
over two years past due, whichever occurs earlier.

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
of the Group to finance the operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
Group relies on bank and other borrowings as a
significant source of liquidity. As at 31 December
2022, the Group has unutilised banking facilities of
HK$3,729,742,000 (2021: HK$3,901,847,000). The
management of the Group monitors the utilisation

of borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities and lease liabilities. The tables have been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities and lease liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. Specifically, bank borrowings with a repayment
on demand clause are included in the earliest time
band regardless of the probability of the banks
or financial institutions choosing to exercise their
rights. The table includes both interest and principal
cash flows.

To the extent that interest flows are floating rate,
the undiscounted amount is derived from the
interest rate at the end of the reporting period.

38.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. €MTIH#)

Financial risk management objectives and HBRAKREEEERBER (2)
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) RBESRAR (&)
Liquidity tables B EZ K
Carrying
Weighted  Repayable amount at
average ondemand  Between  Between More Total  the end of
effective ~ orwithin 3monthsto  1yearto than undiscounted the reporting
interestrate 3 months Tyear  5years  Syears cashflows date
BREXY REERA
mEYY @Ak =fAZ AERRE  EREH

RRNE & -§ -FERF BERF  REAE ]
HK$000  HKBOO0  HKS000 HKSO00  HK§'000 HK$000
TEn  TEn  TEn  TEn TAL TAL

At 31 December 2022 RZE-ZF+ZB=1-A
Non-derivative financial Fi4LRaE

liabilities
Trade payables BAEMTE NARER 301,525 - - - 30152 301,525
Bills payables ERZE NATER 120917 106,634 - - 21611 221,611
Other payables and acorved ~~ EMERFEREEE

charges N/A TER 289,707 - - - 289707 289,707
Bank borrowings - variable rate  $E{7fE3 - 78 6.02% 1414624 512488 - - 197112 1,874,637
Bank borrowings - fixed rate ST 3 - E8 342% 122,082 - - - 122082 118,048
Other borrowings - variable rate R {3 - 78 6.52% - - 112876 - 112876 105,515

2248915 619,122 112,876 - 2,980,913 2,917,043

Lease liabilities G 4.06% 11,606 34,818 54886 119,207 220,498 131,546
At 31 December 2021 R_E_—F+-A=1-H
Non-derivative financial FiEeRAE

liabilities
Trade payables BAERTE NATRER 370,193 - - - 310193 370,193
Bills payables EfZE NA TEf 282,431 161,607 - - 444,038 444,038
Other payables and accrued ~~ EMERFEREFER

charges NANER 357,062 - - - 357,062 357,062
Bank borrowings - variable rate 8 {Tfs 3 - 28 206% 1318999 196306 606,248 - 2121553 2000380
Other borrowings - variable rate £ fttfg3t - 38 2.78% 1079 32387 28593 - 71776 70,024

2,339,481 390,300 634,841 - 3364622 3,331,697

Lease liabilities HEER 5.2%% 13,453 38,964 U421 1224% 269,354 171,715
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidiity tables (Continued)

The amounts included above for variable interest
rate instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities
are subject to change if changes in variable interest
rates differ to those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2022, the aggregate
undiscounted principal amount of bank borrowings
with repayment on demand clause amounting to
HK$1,517,816,000 (2021: HK$1,296,497,000) are
included in “Repayment on demand or within 3
months” time band in the above maturity analysis.
Taking into account the Group’s financial position,
the management of the Group does not believe that
it is probable that the banks or financial institutions
will exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment. The management of the
Group believes that such bank borrowings will be
repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements.

38.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E - FE - —“F+-A=+—HILFE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. ¢RI H &)
Financial risk management objectives and HBRAKREEEERBER (2)
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) RBESRAR (&)
Liquidity tables (Continued) THEELE (&)
For the purpose of managing liquidity risk, the REERBESRARME  A&EEE
management of the Group reviews the expected BERBHZAEGEEEAH (W
cash flow information of the Group’s bank TRAH) BEERAKERITEROMG
borrowings based on the scheduled repayment e REER
dates set out in the agreement as set out in the
table below:
Carrying
amount at
Weighted Between Between Total  the end of
average Within 3 months to 1yearto undiscounted the reporting
interestrate 3 months 1 year 5years  cash flows period
AEE  REEHE
il 3571 ZfiRz BERE LRI
il =AM -§ -FEIF ik KEfE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
antt ThEn Tin Tin Tin TR
Bank horrowings iGN L
At 31 December 2022 RZE-ZF+ZB=1-R 583 1,187,538 211,985 196,308 1,595,831 1,517,816
At 31 December 2021 RZE-—E+ZF=1-H 181 1,000,560 129,358 154,629 1,284,547 1,296,497
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Disclosure of risks arising from the interest
rate benchmark reform

Several of the Group’s LIBOR bank loans will be
subject to the interest rate benchmark reform.
The Group is closely monitoring the market and
managing the transition to new benchmark interest
rates, including announcements made by the
relevant IBOR regulators.

LIBOR

As at 31 December 2022, all LIBOR settings
have been either ceased to be provided by any
administrator or no longer be representative,
except for US dollar settings which will be ceased
immediately after 30 June 2023.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, certain
borrowings linked to US$ LIBOR with principal
amounting HK$163,800,000 had been refinanced
and linked to SOFR. As at 31 December 2022, the
Group has SOFR linked borrowings amounting to
HK$85,800,000.

HIBOR

While the Hong Kong Dollar Overnight Index
Average (“HONIA”) has been identified as an
alternative to HIBOR, there is no plan to discontinue
HIBOR. The multi-rate approach has been adopted
in Hong Kong, whereby HIBOR and HONIA will co-
exist.

38.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Disclosure of risks arising from the interest
rate benchmark reform (Continued)

Progress towards implementation of
alternative benchmark interest rates

As part of the Group’s risk management for
transition, new contracts entered into by the Group
are linked to the relevant alternative benchmark
rates or interest rates which are not subject to
reform to the extent feasible.

The Group is planning to transit the LIBOR-linked
contract through introduction of, or amendments
to, fallback clauses into the contracts which will
change the basis for determining the interest cash
flows from LIBOR to alternative reference rate at an
agreed point in time.

The following table shows the total amounts
of outstanding contracts and the progress in
completing the transition to alternative benchmark
rates as at 31 December 2021 and 2022. The
amounts of financial liabilities are shown at their
carrying amounts.

Financial instruments

38.

TRIA#)
NREEXEELNEAMRKE (&)

BEREENRNERER

ERASEBREREZEN—F D
AEBERFTHME O EBEERLEE
F RN A 1TEE AN SRR HIA
RS o

AEBETLAESIBBES AT AR
ERIRE R - BEREBERTTRE
FEEBH G A - IR A TE B
HEEENSRSRENERARE

RITREREBTAENBEFIE -

TRERNR_ZFEZ—FR=FT-—

+ZA=+—HHNREESVRER
TREBEEEREENENER - &
HEESHENEREEYR -

Transition progress for

prior to transition Maturing in HK$’000 financial instruments

BEAMNEMIA HEBER Tiar SRIENBEER

Non-derivative financial liabilities

FTESRER

Bank and other borrowings linked to US$ LIBOR 2023-2026 509,782  Expected to transit
(2021: 750,462 in latest by June 2023

EETRABITRER S BMBNRTR —Eo=ER 509,782 TEHIEMW_T_=F

HifEw “EoRE (ZZ-—%: NARBE
750,462)
Bank borrowings linked to HIBOR 2023-2027 995,500  HIBOR will continue till maturity
(2021: 1,409,942)
BERRTAERSHHORITER —Eo=EFR 995,500 EARITRERSHHE
e o2 (ZF=—%: BEZ5H

1,400,942)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

Fair value of the financial liabilities that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial liabilities are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. The following table gives information about
how the fair values of these financial liabilities
are determined (in particular, the valuation
technique(s) and inputs used), as well as the level
of the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (Level 1 to 3) based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements is observable.

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets that the
entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset, either directly or
indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for
the assets.

38.

£RTHE (&)
SRMIA>AFENE

MERHEERATETEHERE
EHAPE

AEEHOEMABIINEREHHE
RN FEE - Ti‘%@%ﬂﬁﬁ%
ZETRBEZATEEERENE
R (T8 E 2 P 68 8 69 i (B il B A
gi8) - URERRFHEFEH ABE
EI’JTEEE/T\&F“W%J TH R FEAERE
R(B—2=M) -

. —RBABBRSERAINE
EI,HHHHEE’J 2HRRANEE
KRBT IS ME CRFE)

. F_RBABEBELSTERASE —
FmENEEN A BZAME
BERNBABE &

. FZRBABEBER/EENTA
BB ABUE

HMBERERERAR / B —FFR 247



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E - FE - —“F+-A=+—HILFE

w3

38.

248

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38.

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the financial liabilities that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis
(Continued)

Fair value as at 31 December
RTZA=+-BHATE

Fair value  Valuation techniques and key

TRIA#)
ERMITAZAVEFTE(F)

DIEEMHEEZAFEFENSHEA
BENAFEE)

2022 2021 higrarchy  inputs Sensitivity

8B CR-E 0 LVEER MERARIERANE 8
HKS$'000 HKS 000

BB

TR Thr
(1) Derivative Putoption-  Putoption-  Level3 Fair value derived by valuation The fair value of the derivative financial liabilty as a whole is negatively
financial fabiity < 1,002 model, Monte Carlo Simulation ~ carrelated with the WACG and postively correlated with the discount for
(see Note 29) Model. The key unabservable lack of marketabilty and the expected volatilty of comparable companies.
inputs used by the Group mainly
included expected volatiity As at 31 December 2021, itis estimated that with all other variables held
of comparable companies, constant, an increase/decrease i

Weighted Average Cost of Captal
['WACG") and discount for lack of
marketabilty.

WAGC by 3% would have decreased/increased the fair value of the
derivative financial ibilty by HK$299,000/HK$335,000;

Discount for lack of marketabilty by 5% would have increased/
decreased the fair value of the derivative financial liabilty by
HKS121,000/HK$109,000;

Expected volatiity of comparable companies by 10% would have
increased/decreased the fair value of the derivative financial liabilty
by HK$252,000/HK8236,000.

() fiEegak REME - DREE- 528 RRERIGHREEEELS fﬁﬁmﬂﬁfﬁﬁ NHEREEMETERAR R - B ERENTER
(RMz29) - 1002 MATE: ZK&IFWE?EZJT AEEBRDANBERENLL -
are )\ IRt ERATELAL \ )
ANERRE  MEDIEANE N_E--ET-A=1-0 HIEFEEREREAENERT -
([ T&{MZL‘MJ)&&J&A% L ‘ o ‘
EETIEE - ETHERAEN/ %% BERTESRARNATER) /
29 000ETT /335,000 :
- BTEMTREN/ Bo5% BERTEERAENATELN/
mmw,ooo%m/mg,ooo%x
TEHSARMERREEN/ HO10%  BEHfTERARNAT
11/ ) 25200078/ 296 000FETT
# The derivative financial liability represented the put # PTESBARERASESERE

option granted to the other shareholder of a joint
venture of the Group and the rights to exercise of
such option was expired on 30 June 2022.

There is no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and
Level 3 during both years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the financial assets and liabilities
that are not measured at fair value on a
recurring basis

The management of the Group estimates the fair
value of its financial assets and financial liabilities
measured at amortised cost using the discounted
cash flows analysis.

The management of the Group considers that
the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their
fair values.

Valuation process

The financial controller of the Group is responsible
to determine the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group uses market-observable data
or information provided by counterparty financial
institutions to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available or counterparty
(investee or fund manager) cannot provide sufficient
information in relation to fair value, the management
of the Group engages third party qualified valuers
to perform the valuation. The financial controller
reports to management of the Group semi-annually
to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value
of the assets.

Information about the valuation techniques and
inputs used in determining the fair value of various
financial instruments are disclosed above.
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38.

39.

250

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement

38. €T H (&)

BRIV EFEHYIR

Derivative

financial

liability

TEemAas

HK$'000

FET

At 1 January 2021 R-E-—&F—F—H (1,402)
Total gains: Bl

—in profit or loss — FTABER 310

At 31 December 2021 RZE-_—F+=-A=1+—H (1,092)
Total gain: Bl

—in profit or loss — FTAER 1,092

At 31 December 2022 R-B--f+=-HA=+-—H -

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company’s Pre-IPO share option scheme (the
“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) and share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
were adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on
8 May 2014 for the primary purpose of providing
incentives to directors and eligible employees, and
will expire at the end of five years and ten years
from the date of grant of respective share options
for Pre-IPO Share Options Scheme and the Share
Option Scheme, respectively.

For the Share Option Scheme, no share option was
granted since its adoption.

At 31 December 2022 and 2021, there is no
granted share options remained outstanding under
the Pre-IPO Share Options Scheme.

Details of the principal terms of the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme and Share Option Scheme are
disclosed in the “Report of the Directors” included
in the Annual Report 2022 of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 40. BEBAIRS
Other than disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated BRGEMBERERAEMBIOFAFEESE
financial statements, the Group had the following 9|\ CAREBERFEANR T BB SR
related party transactions during the year: Z
@
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Nature of transaction HK$’000 HK$'000
REME TEx TAT
Sales of goods to a joint venture mEETEHEEY 1,961 1,969
Purchase of goods from a joint venture BEECERERY 75,416 80,671
Sales of goods to a related company* 7] CARHEEY 117,846 117,536
Sales of goods to other related companies Wﬁ@@ﬂ&?%%%%# 779,006 847,062
Interest expense on other borrowing from one of the & /A — [ H 4 BFHE X A)
other related companies* R EMERFERE 3,030 1,002
Operating expenses to other related companies* [ ftb BF#E A B] 2 1
RERX! 65,719 70,150
* Related companies controlled by close family * AR 7%:':%%9}955%%%3@32%%

members of certain directors of the Company.

# The other related companies are fellow subsidiaries
of the non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries
who have significant influence over subsidiaries of
the Group.

(b) Compensation to key management personnel of the
Group which represents directors of the Company is
set out in Note 10.

i H) B Bt 2 )

* ZEHMEB AR R ASENE R
EEEEK%%ZW% CIE 22

RHRARMBA

() AEEXEE
B B ERPA B RE 0 ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #E - FE - —“F+-A=+—HILFE

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(©

252

The Group also has the following related

40. BHBARS (#)

(©

REB AL BEEAEEA

party transactions and balances regarding AUMZERERZEE N E
to the lease agreements entered into by the B R 5 M tEtk o
Group as a lessee.
2022 2021
= —T-F
Nature of transaction/balances HK$’000 HK$'000
R/ HEHHE THART FAT
Interest expense on lease liability to a related A —E@H A A NHE
company* BEMBRAY 1,510 567
Lease liability to a related company* m—EEBAREREE
BfE 12,633 19,104
Interest expense in respect of rental IE e EYE
premises to Mr. Lu FEFAY 1,216 1,039
Lease liability in respect of rental premises ~ MELAEEERENE
to Mr. Lu HEaE 7,697 10,677
Interest expense to one of the other related [ E Ar —fél E i BAEE A &)
companies’ THMERT 532 776
Lease liability to one of the other related A E R —fEE A R A )
companies® BEHEaE" 7,012 11,739

A related company controlled by close
family members of certain directors of the
Company.

# The other related companies are fellow
subsidiary of the non-controlling shareholder
who have significant influence over
subsidiaries of the Group.

Details of the other balances with related
parties at the end of reporting period are
disclosed in the consolidated statement of
financial position and Notes 20, 21, 23, 25,
26 and 27.

Details of the acquisition of a business from
a non-controlling shareholder of a non-wholly
owned subsidiary during the year ended 31
December 2021 are disclosed in Note 33.
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41.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES 41. MBARIZFHTE
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Company RZEZ—FR-_F-_—F+=-A=
has the following subsidiaries: +—8  XRARBUTHERR :
Proportion of ownership
interest held by the Company
as at 31 December
Charter capital/ _zixﬂ_ﬂ
Place of paid up RT=A :t_ H
incorporation/  Place of share capital/ fisRnRREI
Name of subsidiary establishment operation registered capital 2022 2021 Principal activities
Ralz A ERER/
MEARER LB feny BRRE/EMER  —3--f T TEEE
% %
BPT Holdings BvI Hong Kong Ordinary US$20,000 100 100 Investment holding
BRAEER RERNES B Li#R20,000 7T RERR
Best Pacific Textile BvI Hong Kong Ordinary US$100 100 100 Investment holding
International Limited EBRUES e EERI00ET REER
BREOBEARERAT
Best Pacific Textile Limited ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100 100 Investment holding and
BRGRERAR BB &b L#A710,000% 7T trading of elastic fabric
and lace
REBRREEENA
MERREH
Best Pacific Investment Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 100 100 Investment holding and
(Hong Kong) Limited Bk e TERIET provision of agency
RERE(BE)ERAR services 1o group
companies
RENRRAEE
RARERERS
Best Pacific Management Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100 100 Provision of
Senices Limited (Formerly &8 e LaERIET management servioes
known as Best Pacific to group companies
Textile (Hong Kong) Limited) RS
BREBREARA (M ERRK

BRYHE (FE)BRAF)

BRBEERIERERAR / —E-—FFR)
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41.

254

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 41.

M AR 2B (&)

Proportion of ownership
interest held by the Company

as at 31 December

Charter capital/ _M_ﬁ]
Place of paid up RT=F :t_ H
incorporation/ Place of share capital/ fisRnRREILS
Name of subsidiary establishment operation registered capital 2022 2021 Principal activities
AL/ ERER/
HWEAREE RIBEH Rewd HRkA/dMEx ¥ “Z--F IEER
% %
New Horizon Investment Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100 100 Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Limited e e ZER10,000%T and trading of elastic
HERE(FR)ARAT webbing
REBRREEEM
Best Pacific International Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100 100 Investment holding
Investment Limited. A 36 TERIAL RESR
BEERRERRAT
(Formerly known as
New Horizon Elastic Fabric
{Hong Kong) Limited)
(MREEELAY
(B%)BRAR)
Dongguan BPT The PRC The PRC Paid-up registered 100 100 Manufacturing and
REiR G i capital trading of elastic fabric
(Note ii HK$1,427,021,270 and lace
(B i) (2021: HKS$1,394,272,942) HEREERIED
BRAMER AR REH
1,427,021, 2707
(22—
1,304,272, 9427 T0)
Dongguan NHE The PRC The PRC Paid-up registered 100 100 Manufacturing and
RrER G i capital trading of elastic
(Note i HK$367,250,000 webbing
(B i) BRAMER HEREERIES
367,250,000

BEST PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 41.

=
A

7 R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

(i) INCiPA=S E )

Proportion of ownership
interest held by the Company
as at 31 December

Charter capital/ _ZFID‘_EJ
Place of paid up RT=F :t_ H
incorporation/ Place of share capital/ fisRnRREILS
Name of subsidiary establishment operation registered capital 2022 2021 Principal activities
e,/ ERER/
WEAFER ki fens HrmA/ dMEx %= “T--F  IEER
% %

Dongguan Best Pacific The PRC The PRC Paid-up registered 100 100 Purchase of
International Trading HE E capital machineries, parts and
Company Limited RMB1,000,000 raw materials

REBRIREFRRAT arafan RS - TRREN
(Note ii AR1,000,0007T H
(Fzki)

New Horizon International ~ BVI Hong Kong Ordinary US$100 100 100 Investment holding
Investments Limited EBRUES &b LAR100ET RERR

BEERRERRAT

Best Pacific International BVl Hong Kong Ordinary US$100 100 100 Investment holding
(Vietnam) Company Limited XBEZEE e LERI00EZT RERR

BEER (4m) ARAT

Best Pacific (Vietnam) Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100 100 Investment holding
Company Limited Tk e LERIET RELK

B2 (0m) ERAT

Best Pacific Vietnam Vietnam Vietnam Charter capital 100 100 Manufacturing and
Company Limited il i VYND1,881,200,000,000 trading of elastic fabric

BREHRARAR ERER and elastic webbing

1,881,200,000,00087 & HERBEELAN
HHREEGR

Best Pacific International Sri~ BV Hong Kong Ordinary US§100 100 100 Investment holding
Lanka (Panndla) Limited ~~ E£BELEE B ZERI00ET REBR

Best Pacific Textiles Lanka ~ Sri Lanka Sri Lanka Ordinary Sri 75 75 Manufacturing and
(Private) Limited (‘BPTL")  H1EH RS Lankan rupee trading of elastic fabric

4,715,125,600 and elastic webbing
LiB1R4,715,125,600 HERBEELEN
HEETEL R REES

BRBEERIERERAR / —E-—FFR)
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41.
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DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 41. MIBRATZFHE &)
Proportion of ownership
interest held by the Company
as at 31 December
Charter capital/ _ZM_E]
Place of paid up RT=F :i: H
incorporation/ Place of share capital/ fisRnRREILS
Name of subsidiary establishment operation registered capital 2022 2021 Principal activities
e,/ ERER/
KEARER vk s fens Bk /ifER  —B-ZF o IBER
% %
Best Pacific International i~ BVI Haong Kong Ordinary US§100 100 100 Investment holding
Lanka (Thulhiriyg) Limited ~ EBRELESE e EERI00ET RARKR
Trischel Sri Lanka Sri Lanka Ordlinary US$74,395,779 51 51 Manufacturing and
B S B S (2021: US$68,695,779) trading of elastic fabric
LiEIR74,095,119 1 HEREERILED
(ZB=-%: HFt
68,605,77957T)
NexTex Innovations BVI Hong Kong Ordinary US§100 100 100 Investment holding
International Company ~ EBELEE &b LER100ET RERR
Limited
NexTex Innovations Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 100 100 Investment holding and
Incorporation Limited e e EER1,000ET marketing
BREANZARAT RERRREH
NexTex Innovations Inc. The United States of The United States of Ordinary US$0.02 100 100 Marketing
America America LER00ET =i
*H *E
Best Pacific International BVI Haong Kong Ordinary US§100 100 100 (Noteii) Inactive
(Singapore) Limited RERLHE B ERERI100 T (Posgii) Eaez
BRER (%) BRAT
Bravo Great Development BV Hong Kong Ordinary US§100 100 100 (Noteii) Inactive
Limited RERIES Bt LBR100 21 (i) EREX
BRERERAT
Guizhou Best Pacific Textle  The PRC The PRC Registered capital 100 100 (Noteii)  Investment holding
Technology Holdings i t HK$10,000,000 (Wstii) AR
Company Limited &R
EMERGERBAR 10,000,000 &7t

EROR (AR EN 8BRS

BREERERAR)
(Note ii
(Pitsi)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 1. fBREIZFHIE &)
Proportion of ownership
interest held by the Company
as at 31 December
Charter capital/ :éiia
Place of paid up m+_ﬁ:t:a
incorporation/ Place of share capital/ fisRn RIS
Name of subsidiary establishment operation registered capital 2022 2021 Principal activities
AT/ ERER/
HWEAREE R Fewd MrmA/dMEx ¥ “3--F IEER
% %
Guizhou Best Pacific Textle  The PRC The PRC Registered capital 100 100 (Noteii) Inactive
Technology Limited e i RMB10,000,000 (Wshi) EEgx
EMERGBHRERAT AMERARE
(Note i 10,000,000 7
(Bii)
Guizhou New Horizon Elastic  The PRC The PRC Registered capital 100 100 (Noteii)  Manufacturing and
Fabric Company Limited i RMB10,000,000 (Fz5ii)  trading of elastic
EMERELGNERAR HERARE webbing
(Note i) 10,000,000 7T REREEEMET
(B3i)
Best Pacific Textile Singapore - Singapore Singapore Ordinary SGD50,000 100 (Note iv) N/A Inactive
Private Limited $IR SR 350, 00037 T (Hfziv) TER  EREE%
BRGRNIRERAT
Notes: MizE -
(i) As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, other than BPT 0) RZE-__FR-_F-—F+= )EJ =

Holdings which is a directly wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, all of the above subsidiaries are
indirectly held by the Company.

(ii) The companies are wholly foreign owned enterprises
established in the PRC.

(iii) The companies were established or incorporated
by the Group during the year ended 31 December
2021.

(iv) The company was incorporated by the Group during

the year ended 31 December 2022.

None of the Company’s subsidiaries had issued
any debt securities at the end of the reporting
period.

+—B  BEESHBZERAARR
E2EWMB QRN - Fﬁﬁuiﬁﬁ%
AT ARFREREA

(ii) ZERRBEPBEKRIININEGEE B

o
(i) ZERARAAEERBE_T_—F
ToRA=t—HALEFEEMRIKTL
vy REAFHAEEREE—T——
tTZRA=+—H if‘%}ﬁzﬁ °

ARAHHERARR®RE
I?&%ﬁ?{ﬂﬂ"ﬂffﬂ RE I ©

H ] 48 SR B
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DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

41.

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interests

The table below shares details of non-wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Group that have material
non- controlling interests:

Place of incorporation
and principal place of

Proportion of ownership and

voting rights held by

(Loss)

B8 A Rz 515 (4
BREEARFERBEEZFZENBL

RS

TRAXNEKEHEEEANFERELR 2
F2EMBARGFE

profit allocated to

Accumulated

Name of subsidiary  business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
EMEIHHR FEREREEL
WRARER IRERHY FERRAZRL PREFERER (F8) &R it FBRER
As at 31 December Year ended 31 December As at 31 December
Rt=A=t-A BEt-R=t-HL%E R+=B=t-A
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2001
—ECCE B —BICE Bk —BCCE it Sl
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$'000
Tén Fihr T Fir
BPTL Sri Lanka 25% 25% (7,133) (7,682) 22,994 30,224
HELRS
Trischel Sri Lanka 49% 49% (8,588) 7,234 75,238 61,564
HEL RS
(15,721) (448 98,232 91,768
Summarised financial information in respect of BERABEEEAFIEREROAERS
each of the Group’s subsidiaries that has material B AR ERBIMEF T -
non-controlling interests is set out below. The DA B 75 8 R it #5 &£ B (9 2R 4K 85 Al
summarised financial information below represents H4& %8 o
amounts before intragroup eliminations.
As at 31 December
R+=—BA=+—8H
2022 2021
—E-C—F B
BPTL HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER FAET
Current assets MBEE 145,169 135,483
Non-current assets FEREBEE 455,075 396,097
Current liabilities nEaE (416,243) (357,756)
Non-current liabilities FRBAE (92,009) (52,919)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AR RIS AEGEER 68,998 90,681
Non-controlling interests of BPTL BPTLIFZ s 22,994 30,224
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DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 41.

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries
that have material non-controlling interests

(Continued)

B A B 2 & 1E ()

BREERFERBEEZFZENBL
AFE(E)

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t-HLEE

2022 2021
—EC-CE —E-—F
BPTL (Continued) (#) HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER FAT
Revenue WA 221,486 180,135
Loss for the year FEEE (28,529) (30,724)
Loss attributable to owners of the Company RARHEE AEIEE (21,396) (23,042)
Loss attributable to the non-controliing BPTLIFE R = B L 18
interests of BPTL (7,133) (7,682)
Loss for the year FEEBE (28,529) (30,724)
Other comprehensive (expense) income ARHR AR EHAL
attributable to owners of the Company 20 (FAX) W (287) 656
Other comprehensive (expense) income BPTLIEEAR o A
attributable to non-controlling interests of Hi 2w (%) K
BPTL (97) 218
Other comprehensive (expense) income for the  FEEM 2 (5 ) W
year (384) 874
Total comprehensive expense attributable to AR AIHEA AEEEE
owners of the Company EEECEE (21,683) (22,386)
Total comprehensive expense attributable to  BPTLIEZR RG2S B 2
non-controlling interests of BPTL FX B (7,230) (7,464)
Total comprehensive expense for the year FEEEMAL B (28,913) (29,850)
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41. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) M. MBLARIZFIE &)
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries BEEAFEREZZIZENRE D
that have material non-controlling interests AR (&)
(Continued)
As at 31 December
W+=A=+-8
2022 2021
—E--F —E-—F
Trischel HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
Current assets MENEE 234,467 312,214
Non-current assets FRBEE 213,187 206,698
Current liabilities mEaE (243,451) (318,017)
Non-current liabilities FRBAE (50,656) (75,257)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AR RS AEEER 78,309 64,074
Non-controlling interests of Trischel Trischel JEFE R 2R 75,238 61,564

260

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=+t-HLFE

2022 2021
—EC-CF —E—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TEx FAET
Revenue WA 451,417 521,599
(Loss) profit for the year FE (BE) 57 (17,526) 14,761
(Loss) profit attributable to owners of the RRAER NES (BE)
Company gl (8,938) 7,527
(Loss) profit attributable to the non-controlling  Trischel JEFE % i a5 15
interests of Trischel (B518) & A (8,588) 7,234
(Loss) profit for the year FE (E18) &7 (17,526) 14,761
Other comprehensive (expense) income RRFHER AELEM
attributable to owners of the Company 2 (%) = (432) 517
Other comprehensive (expense) income Trischel 312 i i o FE (i
attributable to non-controlling interests Hihz2m (Fx) W
of Trischel 413) 496
Other comprehensive (expense) income FEAEMZ2E (FAX) K&
for the year (845) 1,013
Total comprehensive (expense) income KARHEAEEEE
attributable to owners of the Company (Fx%) Waiags (9,370) 8,044
Total comprehensive (expense) income Trischel JE2E Hx%ﬁnﬂ’éfﬁ
attributable to non-controlling interests 20 (AX) hmBE
of Trischel (9,001) 7,730
Total comprehensive (expense) income FAZHE (%) KmEHE
for the year (18,371) 15,774
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 42. METHELECEBNYER
ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s THRANSEREZHEAZAEE
liabilities arising from financing activities, including s RIERSKIERSEE - g7
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising BEBEEZBENABRESREERN
from financing activities are those for which cash IARAKRBEREFRNAEEBHFEHE
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in MEXRIERMEGTYRERELEA
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows f& o
as cash flows from financing activities.
Bank and
Dividends other Lease
payable  borrowings* liabilities Total
BITR
EfRE Hitrfg HEEE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAET THL THIL
At 1 January 2021 R-ZE-—F—[—H - 2,286,521 90,132 2,376,653
Financing cash flows BMERSNE (154,931) (189,593) (27,028) (371,552)
Dividends declared (Note 14) EERRE (fiFE14) 154,931 - - 154,931
Finance costs (Note 9) AR (F1359) - 59,938 6,283 66,221
New leases entered/lease modified ]S HTFHE
HEEE] - - 102,442 102,442
Exchange adjustments fE 5 % - 3,538 (114) 3,424
At 31 December 2021 RZFE-—F
+-A=1t—H - 2,160,404 171,715 2,332,119
Financing cash flows BMERESME (198,395) (153,898) (47,930) (400,223)
Dividends declared (Note 14) EEIRRE (FiFE14) 198,395 - - 198,395
Finance costs (Note 9) BE KA (FI3E9) - 81,852 9,031 90,883
New leases entered/lease modified &1 7 #HTFHE
MEEET - - (1,810) (1,810)
Exchange adjustments PE 5 FE2E - 9,842 540 10,382
At 31 December 2022 N-E-_—F
+=ZA=+—H - 2,098,200 131,546 2,229,746
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BiZ T - —F+=-H=+—H

ATEMENTS

EFE

43. INFORMATION ABOUT THE 43. BEBEAAXLQABBERARER
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEIT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Unlisted investments in subsidiaries RETBARZELTIRE 151,642 111,010
Amounts due from subsidiaries R ENGIE R 546,210 612,728
697,852 723,738
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments ~ E M EWEIE ~ & &
BRHIA 253 249
Bank balances and cash IRITEHR RIS 97 101
350 350
Current liability RBEE
Other payables HAb e IR 22 7
Net current assets RBEEFE 328 343
Net assets BEERE 698,180 724,081
Capital and reserves EAXR#E
Share capital (Note 31) B (B5ES1) 10,398 10,398
Reserves ] 687,782 713,683
698,180 724,081
Composition of reserves fEEAR
2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET
Share premium & & E 593,250 593,250
Retained profits REB &= A 94,532 120,433
687,782 713,683
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZ=—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

43. INFORMATION ABOUT THE 43. BBAXRXRNBRARER (&)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
Movement in retained profits of the Company ANTREBEREE
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—1F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FAT
At 1 January n—H—H 120,433 58,259
Profit and total comprehensive REFERMNEEZE
income for the year ks 172,494 217,105
Dividends recognised as distribution R KRR
(Note 14) (FF5E14) (198,395) (154,931)
At 31 December W+—A=+—8H 94,532 120,433
The movement of share premium is set out in the B aEBRNESFRCEEREK °

consolidated statement of equity.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL INFORMATION SUMMARY

hLFEFHENRE

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years, prepared on
the basis as set out herein, is set out below:

AEE A E D ER B F R IR A RS a2
REMETIERE BEMNAGBERELT

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-A=T—-HLEFE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
B —T-—§F ZEZTF ZET-NF ZT-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FHL FEL FAT
(Note)
(MI3E)
Results ES
Revenue WA 4,492,790 4,792,661 3494274 3,637,762 3,212,625
Profit for the year FE R 283,478 401,346 249,193 299,079 280,232
Earnings per share BREAF
— Basic (HK cents) — 2R (B) 28.77 38.64 24.79 28.92 27.34
- Diluted (HK cents) — 5% (L) N/ARER NATER NATEA 28.92 27.29
At 31 December
W+=BA=+-8H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—EZ-f —IZ-—4F ZZZTF —E-NEF ZE-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FAT FET FET FET
(Note)
(HI5E)
Assets and liabilities BEEREE
Current assets MBEE 3,079,054 3,623,493 3,018,630 2,596,408 2,227,922
Non-current assets ERBEE 3,193,602 3,378,325 3,308,217 3,268,819 2,960,513
Total assets EEAE 6,272,656 7,001,818 6,326,847 5865227 5,188,435
Current liabilities rEIN=EE 2,900,945 2,808,343 2224353 2589414 1,707,791
Non-current liabilities *RBEE 233,264 820,229 1,084,313 660,735 1,023,224
Total liabilities B4 3,134,209 3628572 3,308,666 3,250,149 2,731,015
Equity attrbutable to owners XA &HEA AJE
of the Company g 3,040,215 3,281,458 2,934,303 2,531,895 2,372,657
Non-controlling interests TR R 98,232 91,788 83,878 83,183 84,763
Total equity RS %E 3,138,447 3373246 3,018,181  2,615078 2,457,420
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has e : BE2=F—NAF+-_A=+—AHLFE &

applied HKFRS 16. Accordingly, certain comparative financial
information for the year ended 31 December 2018 may
not be comparable as such comparative information was
prepared under HKAS 17 Leases.
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